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Axis AB

Arsredovisning fér rakenskapsaret 2021-01-01--2021-12-31

Styrelsen och verkstédllande direktéren avger foljande
arsredovisning for rakenskapsaret 2021,

Férvaltningsberattelse
Resultatrakning
Balansrikning

Foréndring av eget kapital
Kassaflddesanalys

Noter

Underiecknad verkstallande direktor i Axis AB intygar att resultat- och
balanssikning har faststillis pa ordinarie drsstimma 2022.04.12, Arsstdmman
beslutade att godkinna siyrelsens forstag till vinstdisposition. Undertecknad intygar
dven att innehéllet 1 drsredovisningen och revisionsberittelsen verensstimmer med

originalen.
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FORVALTNINGSBERATTELSE

Axis AB (Axis) ar eft helagt dolterbolag il Canon inc, Japan. Axis adress till huvudKontoret &r Emdalavigen 14, 223 68 Cund.
Bolagets sate &r i Lund.

Verksamhet

Axiskoncernen, ddr Axs AB dr moderbolag, erbjuder intelligenta sakerhetsitsningar som méjliggdr for

en smartare. och sakrare vérld. Som marknadsledare inom nétverksvideo driver Axis branschutvecklingen
genom att kontinuerligt lansera innovativa ndtverksprodukier, baserade pa dppna plaitformar, som
adderar dkat kundvarde och distribueras i ett globalt partnematvark, Axis har [angsikiiga relationer med
pariner och erbjuder dem kunskap och banbrytande nétverksprodukter pa befintliga och nya marknader.

Viésentliga héndelser under riakenskapsdret

Infor 2021, och med tidigare ars paverkan av pandemin, var forvantningarna stora pa aterhamining.

Forsta halvaret 2021 gick enligt de forvéintade planerna, darefter uppstod en global brist pd slekironiska
komponenter. Fér Axis resulterade detta i omedeibara effekter form av begransad produktionskapacitet

och lagre férsaljning. Denna paverkan forvintas fortsatta dven under del av néstkornmande &r.

Axis formaga att forisatta utveckia affdrsverksambeten, trots asdkra och utmanands marknadsforhéifanden, ger
en bra position nédr den giobala komponentbristen avtar och videotvervakningsindustrin birjar &terhdmta sig 2022,

Axis AB Ingar sedan 2015 som eft dotterbotag | Canon-kancernen med Ganon inc som def ytiersta moderforetaget.
Under 2018 fbrvérvade Ganon Inc yiterligare dgarandelar { Axis AB, il motsvarands ca 88%.

Axis AB:s akiler har per 13 november 2018 avnoterats fran Nasdag Stockholm.

Dérefter paborjades en process av tvangsinitsen av resterande akiier. Detta avslutades 11 februari 2020

ech Canon Inc Innehar nu-ddrmed elt 100% dgande:

Flerdrsiiversikt

2021 2020 2019 2018
Nettoamsétining 162:390 147 616 161 518 158290
Resultat efter finansieila poster 57 268 133 580 77 265 55 246
Balansomslutning 3181287 3528897 3447576 3457 572
Soliditet 98% 97% 96% 92%
Medeltal anstilida ’ 0 0 ] 0
miljs

I syfte att minska verksamhatens och predukiernas paverkan pa miljon arbetar Axis med en tvergripande
miljdpolicy vars malsatining ar att sékerhetstélla att bolaget filthandahaller produkter och Bsningar

pa ett effektivt och miljtwanligt st samt att juridiska skyldigheter cch miljoregler efterlevs.

Axis upprittar halbarhetsredovisning i enlighet med ARL, Denna finns att tiliga pd www.axis.com.

Personal

Bolaget har likt faregaende ar ef haft ndgon anstalld personal,
Finansiella risker

Bolagets finansiella risker hanteras via styrelsens fasistdlida policies. Bolaget &r frémst exponerat for
valuta=, och kreditrisker.
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Véisentliga risker och osdkerhetsfaktorer

Axis AB dr moderbolag i en internationell koncern med verksamhet och kunder dver hela varlden. Bolagets
riskhantering syftar till att rinimera riskar och skerheistdlls ait verksamhetan kan drivas effektivt och i
finje med ledningens och styrelsens strategiska intentioner.

Risker kan gene rél[t delas in i externa, strategiska, verksamhetsrelaterade och finansiella risker. Axis AB
ansvarar huvudsakiigen for Axis-koncernens finansielfa fidden och dr faljakiligen dérfir frdmst exponerat mot
olika-finansiella risker.

Finansielia risker definieras frAmst som valuta-och kreditrisker, dér valutariskemna arden del
som kan leda {ill signifikant resultatpdverkan. Valutarisken avser risken att valutakursfirdndringar feder il
en negativ paverkan pa bolagets kassafidide, resuliat och stéllning.

Arbetet med all hantera och forhalia sig till den riskexponering som bolaget utsétts for fortgar I6pande.
Hantering och koordinering av finansielia samt forsékringsbara risker sker huvudsakligen pa bolagets
ekonomi--och finansavdeining utifran en av ledningen faststélid finanspolicy. Mot bakgrund av bolagets
goda likviditet och 1ga beléning beddms kreditrisken sem begrinsad.

Firslag till vinstdisposition

Tilt arsstimmans forfogande star:

Balanserat resultat och andra fria reserver 2751354 715
Arets resultat 203 980 885
Totalt: 2955 335 710 krondr

Styrelsen och verkstéllande direkléren freslar alt vinstmedlen disponeras sé

iill aktiedgarna utdelas 5,038781 kronor per aktie, totalt 350000000
i ny rékning overftrs 2605335710

2 955335 710 kronor

Utdelningen ska betalas senast 31 maj 2022.
Styrelsens bedomning &r att en vinstutdelning l'enfighet med styrelsens ftrslag ar forsvarlig med hansyn tift 17 kap. 3 § andia
och tredje styckena aktiebolagslagen.

tsin badmning har styrelsen tagit hansyn till de krav som. verksamhetens art, omfatining och risker stéller p& det egna kapitalet
samt bolagets cch koncemens konsolideringsbehov; likviditet och stélining 1 Svrigt

Styrelsens baddmning 8r att den foreslagna vinstutdelningen inte paverkar bolagets elier koncernens majligheter att fullgbra sina
forplikieiser pa kort elfer 1ang sikt eller formagan att gbra erforderliga investeringar.

Vid en samilad beddmning a'u bolagets ach koncernens ekonomiska forhalianden anser styrelsen saledes inga hinder foreligga for
att géira den foreslagna vinstutdelningen.
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21.01.01 20.01.01
RESULTATRAKNING -24.12.31 -20.12.31
Neftoomséttning Not.3 162 390 147618
Bruttoresultat 162 390 147816
Administrationskostnader -54 802 57 110
Ovriga rérelseintakter 176 742
Ovriga rirelsekostnader -334 215
Rérelseresultat Not 4,5,8,: 102 429 91033
Resultat frdn finansiella investenngar
Ovriga rénteintakter och liknande intékier Not 8 217 43738
Ovriga rdntekostnader och liknande kostnader Not g 47278 ~1.191
Resultat efter finansiella poster . b7 268 133 580
Bokslutsdispositioner Not'10 203 335 127099
Skatt pa arets resultat Not 11 -56 622 -57.178
RETS RESULTAT 203 981 203 500
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BALANSRAKNING
TILLGANGAR 21.12.31 20.12.31
Anliggningstillgangar
Immaterielia anldggningstillgangar
Ritligheter Not12 1367 2212
Summa immateriella antdggningstillgangar 1387 2212
Finansiella-anlggningstilyangar
Andelari dotterforatag Not 13 39 508 38 508
Summa finansiella anldggningstiligangar 39.508 39 808
Summa anldggningstiligdngar 40895 41720
Omsittningstiligingar
Kortfristiga fordringar
Fordringar hos koncermfdretag 707705 1718 585
Forutbetalda kostnaderoch upplupna intékier Not 14 3101 2:042
Summa fordringar 710808 1718627
Kortfristiga placeringar Not 15 169 889

. Kassa och bank Not 16 2250697 1 768650
Summa omsiitningstillgangar 3140 392 3487217
SUMMA TILLGANGAR 3181287 3.528 937
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BALANSRAKNING

SKULDER & EGET KAPITAL 21,12.31 20.12.31
Eget kapital

Bundet eyet kapital

Aktiekapital Not17 894 694
Summa bundet eget kapitat 694 694
Frilt eget kapital

Overkursfond 842 942
Balanserat resultat 2750412 2896912
Arets resulial 203981 203 500
Summa-fritt eget kapital 2955 335 3101354
Summa eget kapitai 2956029 3102048
Obeskattade reserver

Periodiseringsionder Not 18 181 929 306 624
Ackumuierade veravskrivningar 1071 -
Summa avsittningar 193 070 396 624
Skulder

Kortfristiga skulder

Leverantorsskulder 5473 2208
Skulder i koncemforetag 4 218 4216
Aktuella skatteskuldar 13 244 12231
Ovriga skuider 7295 B118
Upplupna kostnader och fdruthetalda intakter Not 19 1960 3 551
Summa kortfristiga skulder 32 188 30325
Summa skulder 32188 30325
SUMMA EGET KAPITAL OCH SKULDER 3181 287 3. 528 897
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FORANDRING EGET KAPITAL

Rapport tver fordndring eget kapital
Bundet egef kapital Fritt eget kapital

Balanserat Arets
Aktiekapital Overkursfond resultat resultat

Ingdende balans 2020-01-01 694 942 2738720 158 182
Omtbring resultat foregaende ar 158 182  -158182
Arets rosultat 203500
Utgéende balans 2G20:12-31 694 942 2886812 203 500
Ing&ende balans 2021-01-01 694 ‘ 942 21896'912 203 500
Omidring resultat foregéende ar 203 50C  -203°500
Utdelning ~-350 000

Arets resuliat 203981
Utgdende balans 2021-12-31 694 942 2750412 203881
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21.01.01 20.01.01
KASSAFLODESANALYS -21.12.31 -20.12.31
Kagsafldde fran den idpande verksamheten
Resultat fére finansnetto 102 429 91033
Justeringar for poster som €] ingéri kassaflodet:
Av-och nedskrivaingar ’ 606 1478
Erhallen rénia 217 43738
Erlagd rénia 47 278 -1191
Belald skaft -56 622 -57 179
Kassafidde fran tden lpande verksamhelen fore
fordndring av rirelsekapitalet 1.252 77879
Kassaflbde fran férindringar i rorelsekapitalet
Okning/rainskning av fordringar 837 932 834257
Okning/minskning av kortfristiga skulder 1863 5421
Kassafltide frén den (3pande verksamheten B41.047 717 557
Kassafltde fran investeringsverksamheten
Férsdlining av anlaggningstiligangar - 100
Kassafidde. frén investeringsverksamheten E 100
Kassafidde frin finansieringsverksamheten
Utbetald utdeining =350 000 -
Kassafldde fran finansieringsverksamheten =350 000 -
Arets kassaflide 491 047 TA7 657
Likvida medel vid arets bérjan 1768:650 1050993
Férdndring likvida medel 491 047 717 857
Likvida medel vid drets slut Mot 18 2259 697 1768 650
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NOTER

Not 1 Redovisningsprinciper

Arsredovisningen har uppréttats enligt Arsredovisningsiagen {1995:1554) och BFNAR 2012:1 Arsredovisning och Koncernredovisning (K3).

Koncernredovisning

Axis AB Ingar sedan 2015 som elt dotterbolag i Canen-kencernen med Canon Inc som det yitersta moderféretaget.
Under 2018 férvarvade Canan inc yiterligare dgarandelar i Axis AB, till motsvarande ca 98%.

Varefter bolaget Axis AB:s -aklier har per 13 november 2018 avnoterats fran Nasdag Stockhelm.

Darefter pAbbrjades en process av ivangsiniisen av resterande aktier. Detla avsiutades 11 februar 2020

och Canen Inciinnehar nu darmed ett-100% dgande.

Koncernredovisning avidmnas av Canon Inc. Dehina finns tillgénglig pa www.canan.com

Ingen koncarnradovisning har uppréttats med stéd av Arsredovisningsiagen 7 kap. 2§ punkt 1.

Redovisningsvaluta
Arsredovisningen #r uppréttad | svenska kronar-och beloppen anges | tusentals kronor om ingef annat anges.

Poster i utldndsk valuta
Transaktioner i utldndsk valuta omrdknas enligt de-valutakurser som géller pa transaktionsdagen. Fordringar
och skulder i ullandsk valuta omraknas till balansdagskurser. Uppkomna kursdifferenser ingar i rérelseresultatet.

intakisredovisning

Vid férsdljning redovisas inkomsten som int8kt ndrde vasentliga formaner och risker som &y forknippade med

agandet av varan har dverforts frdn bolaget till kdparen. Forséljningen redovisas efter mervédrdesskatt; liknande skatter
och rabatter.

Koncernbldrag
Savilerhdlina som ldmnade koncernbidrag redovisas som bokslutsdisposition i enlighet med alternativregeln.

Inkomstskatter

Aktuell skatt

Aktuell skatt avserinkomstskatt fir innavarande rakenskapsar samt den del av tidigare ridkenskapsars inkomstskatt
som annu inte redovisats. Aktuell skatt berdknas utifran den skattesats som géller per balansdagen.

Uppskjuten skatt

Uppskiuten skatt 8 inkomslskatt som avser framiida rakenskapsar till foljd-av tidigare Wandelser,
Redovisning sker enligt.balansrdkningsmetoden. Enligt denna redovisas uppskjutna skatteskulder och
uppskjutna skattefordringar p& tempordra skiffinader som uppstar mellan bokfdrda réspektive skattermassiga
vérden for tillgangar och skulder samt for ovriga skattemédssiga avdrag eller underskott.

Uppskjutna skattefordringar nettoredovisas mot uppskjutna skatteskuider endast om de kan betalas med ett
nettobelopp. Uppskiuten skatt bersiknas ulifrin beslutad skattesats pa balansdagen. Effekder av faréindringar
i géllande skatiesatser resultatfors | den period féréndringen lagstadgats, Uppskjutna skattefordringar
reducaras tilf den del detinte dr sannolikt att den underliggande skattefordran kommer att kusna

realiseras inom éverskadlig framtid, Uppskjuten skattefordran redovisas som finansiell anfdggningstiligang
och uppskjuten skatteskuld som avsattning.

Immateriella anidggningstillgangar

Axis immaterialla anlaggningstillgangar utgérs av forvdrvade rattigheter.

Forvarvade ratligheter redovisas till anskaffningsvérde efter avdrag for ackumulerade avskrivningar
enligt plan: | anskaffningsvérdet ingar ulgifter som direkt kan hénforas till férvéirvet av tillgangen.

Avskrivningar enfigt plan

Avskrivningar enligt plan girs berskniat p& ursprungliga anskaffpingsvérden med hansyn {agen till eventuelt restvirde
och baseras pé tillgangamas badémda nytjandeperiod. Avskrivningarna sker linjart dver nyitjande perioden som varerar
mellan.3 och 12 &r.

Nedskrivalng av icke-finansiella tiligangar

Nar det finns en indlkation pa att en tllgangs virde minskat, girs en provining av nedskrivningsbehov, Har tillgdngen
ett atervinningavérde som 4r 1agre dn-det redovisade virdet, skrivs den ner till Atervinningsvérdel, Under éret har
inga nedskrivningar gjorts.
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NOTER

Not 1 Redovisningsprinciper {forts)

Finansielia instrument

Axis finansiefla instrument utgtrs av Andelar | dotterfiretag, Andra finansiella tillgangar, Kundfordringar, Fordringar hos dvriga
koncernforetag, Ovriga fordringar, Kassa ach bank, Leverantérsskuider; Skulder till Guriga koncernfiretag och-Ovriga skulder.
Samtliga finansiella instrument borisett fran Andelar i dotterftiretag redovisas och virderas i enlighet med kapitel 11 1 K3,
utifran anskafiningsvérdet. Andelari dofterforetag vérderas till anskaffningsvéardet vid firvarvatidpunkten, vilket

utdver inkapspriset inkluderar Bvriga ulgifter som dr direk! hanforliga fill rirelseférvarvet samt eventuell tildggskbpeskiling.

Kassaflddesanalys

Kassaflddesanalys uppréttas enligt den indirekta metoden:

Arets férdndiing av kassabehdliningen delas upp i rirelseverksamhet, investeringsverksambet
respektive finansieringsverksamhet. Utgangspunkien for den indirekta metoden ar rirelseresultatet
justerat med sadana transaktioner som inte medfdrtin- eller utbetalningar, Med likvida medel avses
kassa och bankmedel samt kortfristiga placeringar, Samtliga poster ingdande | likvida medel kan
relativt omgaende konverleras till kontanter.

Nyckeltalsdefinition

Soliditet

Eget kapital gch vbeskattade reserver {(med avdrag for uppskjuten skatt) i forhalande il

balansomsiutiing

Not 2 Uppskattningar och heddmningar

Axis.gdr uppskattningar och beddmningar om framtiden. De uppskatiningar for redovisningsandamal som blir f8jden
av-dessa kommer, defintionsméssigt, séllan att motsvara det verkliga resultatet. De uppskatiningar och antaganden

som innebér en betydande risk fir vsentliga justeringar i redovisade vérden fr tillgdngar och skulder under ndstkemmande
ar behandlas'| huvuddrag nedan.

Aktier | dotterbolag

D& Axis har forvéirvat bolag finns det en osakerhet kring de forvarvade bolagens bokibrda vérde.
Far attstyrka bokfirda vérden § aktler i dotterbolag per balansdagen gir Axis arfiga nedskrivningstester.

Upplysningar till enskilda poster

Not 3 Nettoomsiittningens férdeining

21-12-31 20-12-31
Koncernintern forséljning 162 390 147 616
Summa 162.390 147 616
Mot 4 Personal
I likhet med féregdende &r har Axis ej haft ndgon-anstélld personal.
Kénsfordelning bland ledande biefaitningshavare | koncemen
21-12-31 20-12-31

Antal pa Antatpa

balansdagen Kvinnor balansdagen
Styrelse 8 25% 8

Erséttning till styrelse:

21-12-31 20-12-31
Styrelsearvode 2000 2 000
Summa 2000 2000
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NOTER
Not & Avskrivningar

21-12-31 20-12-31
Avskrivaingar av immateriella
anldggningstiligangar uppgar tilk: 606 1478

606 1478

Iresultatrakningen redovisas avskrivaingarna | posten administrationskostnader.
Not & Revisionsarvodan
Kostnader for revision tas i sin helhef av dotterfiretaget Axis Communications AB
Not 7 Inkép och f6rsdlining mellan koncernforetag

21-12-31 20-12-31
Andel av drels {otala inkop som skelt fran-andra :
firetag inom koncernen 0% 0%
Andel av arets tolala forsélining som skett {ill andra
féretag inom koncernen 100% 100%
Mot 8 Ridntelntdkter och liknande resultatposter

21-12-31 20-12-31
Ranteintdkier 2070 4733
Valutakursdifferenser A7 39 005
Summa 2 117 43738
Not 9 Rintekostnader och liknande resultatposter

21-12-31 20-12-31
Rintekostnader ' -555 -597
Vaiutakursdifferenser -48 145 -72
Gvriga finansielia kostnader -578 -522
Summa -47 278 -1191
Not 10 Boksiutsdispositioner

21-1231 20-12-31
Ateritiring av periodiseringsfond 204 625 127 500
Féréndring avskrivningar dverfunderstigande plan <1280 -401
Summa 203335 127 098
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NOTER
Not 11 Skatt pa arets resultat
21-12-31 20-12-31
Justaring tidigare ars aktuelia skatt : - 44
Aktuefl skatt -56:622 57 165
Summa -56 622 -57 179
Avstamning drets skaftelosinad
21-12-31 20-12-31
Redovisat resultat fore skatt 260603 260 679
Skatt berdknad enligt géllande skattesats 20.6% (21.4%) 53 684 55 785
Rinteintakt periodiseringsfonder 2938 1.380
Redovisad skattkostnad 56622 57 165
Not 12 Rittigheter
: 21-12-31 20-12-31
Ingdende anskaffningsvirde 31720 31720
Arets anskaffningar - -
Utrangering & -
Utgdende anskaffningsvéarde 31720 31720
ingéende ackumulerade avskrivningar enligt plan : 29727 -28 249
Arets avskrivning enligt plan 606 ~1 478
Utrangering - -
Utgaende ackumuterade avskrivningar el plan <30333 28 727
Underavskrivningar - 219
Utgaende planentigt restviarde 1387 2232
Not 13 Andelar i dotterféretag
21-12-31 20-12-31
ingaende anskafiningsvarde 39508 39:608
Avyttring - -100
Utgaende anskaffningsvarde 39 508 39508
Antal Andef Kuat Eget Arets Bokfort vérde
akfier Réster och vérde kapital residtat
kapitai 2141231 20-12-31
Axis Gommunications AB 1599 99,99% 100 2201719 517 514 342 342
org.nr. 556253-6143
Sate: Lund, Sverige
Gren & Karlsson Firmware AB 500 100% 100 1190 . - 50 50
org.ne, 556304:6209
Séte: Lund, Sverige
Axis Technologies AB 500 100% 200 293 “ 50 50
org.nt. 5564850765
Stte: Lund, Sverige
Axis Alfa AB 500 100% 200 156 - 100 100

org.nr. 5565894547
Si4te: Lund, Sverige
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Org rir 556241-1065

Not 13 Andelar | dotterféretag (forts)

2M Holding AB
org.nr. 556599-4588
Séate: Lund; Sverige

Axis Stockholmsledet 11 AB
org.nr. §59011-4384
Sate: Lund, Sverige

Axis Commmunications Comerio de Servicos Lida /E
Sate: Brasilien

Axis Video Systems India Pyt Ltd:
Séte: Indien

Axls Comuncacones Chile Limitada
Siéte: Chile

Axls LAC S.A. de CV
Sé4te: Mexico

Axis Communications de Argentina §A
Sate: Argentina

Axernst Communications Kenya Limited
Sale: Kenya

Not 14 Forutbetalda kostnader och upplupna intdkter

Foruthetalda kostnader forsakringar
Féruthetalda patentkostnader
Summa

Not 15 Kortfristiga placeringar

Kortfristiga placeringar, foretagscertifikat

Antal Andel Kvot Eget Arets Bokfort varde
aklier Réster och vérde Kapitai resuitat

kapital 21-12-31_ 20-12-31
500 100% 200 228 425 50 376 100 100
1000, 100% 50 11 644 8.703 38856 38858
1 0% 209 -70-424 =13324 - -
1 0,1% 301 5333 963 B *
= 1% 79 1.555 227 1 1
1 0.1% 27 14 760 978 - -
50000 10% T2 2080 1140 7 7
10 A% 173 507 53 2 2
39508 39508

21-12-3% 20-12-31

- 4068

3101 974

3101 2042

21-12-31 20-12-31

169 889 -

169 889 -

Sida 13




2022051705307

Axis AB

Org nr 55624 1-1065

NOTER

Not 16 Kassa och hank

21-12-31 20-12-31
Banktillgodohavanden 2.259 897 1768 650
2 259 697 1768 650
Not 17 Eget kapital
Antal aktier
2021 2020 2021 2020
kvotvéirde  kvotvérde Antal Antal
A-aktler 0,01 0,01 89467 250 69461 250
Mot 18 Periodiseringsfonder 21-12-31 20-12-31
Periodiseringsiond inkomstar 2015 - 204625
Periodiseringsfond inkomstar2016 191.999 1971989
191989 396 624
Not13 Upplupna kostnader och firutbetalda Intikter
21-12-31 20-12-31
Upplupna rantekostnader - 1
Upplupna kostnader patent/varumarke ) 1805 35850
Qvriga upplupna Kostnader 3585 -
Summa 1960 35851
Gvriga upplysningar
Not 20 Eventualfrpliktelser
21-12-31 20-12-31
Hyresgaranti * 10306 6046
Crig garanti ) 128 125
10 434 68171

*Avser hyresgaranti ulstalid till firman for Axis Communications Pty Lid samt Axis Communicafions SAS:

Not 21 Hindeiser effer rikenskapsarets utgéng

Inga vésentliga hindelser finns att rapporiera,

Not 22 Transaktioner med narstaende

Der: 31 december 2021 uppgick foretagets kortfristiga fordringar hos koncernfaretag till 708 Mkr-(1.716), Kortfristiga skulder
il koncernforetag uppgick 1 4-Mkr {(4). Transaktioner med nérstende &r prissatta pd marknadsmassiga vilikor.

Samtiliga koncernfiretag redovisas i not 13 Andelar i dotterforetag. Infarmation om styrelseledamabter samt erséitning

1l dessa redovisas | not 4 Perganal. Utbver den ersattning tii styrelseledaméter'som anges i not 4 har inga transakiioner
med nérstiende fysiska personer &gtrum. Ersdttning il den verkstallande direkidren har skett frén Axis Communications AB.
Axis har Inte lamnat 1an, stilit garantier siler inga{t borgensférbindelse fir nagon av styrelsens ledamoter eller andra

ledande befattningshavare. Inga finansiella transaktioner med huvudagaren Canon Inc eller dess dotterforetag finns.,
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Qrg nr 5562411065

Not 23 Resultatdisposition
Férslag till vinstdisposition
Balanserat resultat ach-andra fria reserver

Arets resultat
Totalt:

2751354715
203 980 995
2 955 335 710 kronor

Siyrelsen ochverkstallande direktéren foresidr att vinstmedien disponeras sa

till aktiedgarna uidelas 5.038781 kronor peraktie, totalt
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REVISIONSBERATTELSE

Till bolagsstdmman | Axis AB
organisationsnummer 556241-1065

Rapport om érsredovisningen

Uttalanden

Vi har utfért en revislon av drsredovisningen fr Axds AB
fér rékenskapsﬁret 2021-01-041 - 2021-12-33,

Enligt var uppfattring har &rsradovisningen upprattats 1
enlighet meid rsredovisningslagen och ger en'i aila
vasentliga avseenden rattvisande bild av Axis ABs
finansiella stdlining per den 31 december 2021 och av
dess:finansiella resultat och kassafldde for dret enligt
&rsredovisningslagen. Férvaltningsberdittelsen r fireniig
med arsredovisningens. §uriga delar.

Vi tillstyrker darfor att Eolagsstémman faststiller
resultatrékningen och balansrakningen.

Grund for uttalanden

Wi har utfrt revisionen enligt Internatlional Standards on
Auditing {ISA) och god revisionssed | Svetige. Vart
ansvar enligt dessa standarder beskevs nérmare'i
avsnittet Revisons ansvar, VI dr oberoende I Torhdllande
tilk Axls AB enligt gad revisorssed | Sverige och har i
Gvrigt fullgiort vart yrkesetiska ansvar enligh dessa krav.

Vlanser atf de revislonsbevis ¥l har Inhdmtat &r
tiirdckilga:och andamalsenliga sam grund fér vra
uitalanden.

Styrelsens och verkstéflande direkférens ansvar

Det &r styrelsen och verkstdllanda direktbren som har
ansvaret fir att Srsredovisningen Upprittas och att den
ger en rétivisande bild entigt arsredovisningsfagen.
Styrelsen ach verkstillande direktéren ansvarar dven fisr
den interna kontroll som- de bedémer ar nBdvindig for
att upprétta en Srsredovisning som Irite inhehiiler ndgra
vasentliga felaktigheter, vare slg dessa beror pa
oegentiigheter eller misstag:

Vid uppréttandet av Srsredovisningen ansvarar styrelsen
ach verkstillande direktdren for bedémningen.av
bolagsts férmBga att fortsatta verksamheten, De
upplyser, n#r 8 Br tilldmpligt, om fﬁ;ha”'llanden som kan
paverka form8gan att fortsitta verksamheten och att
anvéfida antagandet om fortsatt drift. Antagandet om
fortsatt drift. tillampas dock inte om styrelsen och
verkstaflande direktdren avser att likvidera bolaget;
upphtra med verksamheten eller inte harndgot
realistiskt alternativ tilf att gdra ndgot av detta.

Revisorns ansvar

Véra mal &r att uppn en rimlig grad av sikerhet om
huruvida &rsredovisningen som helhet inte innehaller
négra visentliga felaktigheter, vare sig dessa beror pi
oegentligheter eller misstag, och att [dmna en
reviSionsberattelse som Innehdller vBra uttalanden.
Rimlig sékerhet dr en hdy grad av sdkerhet, men &r

Ingen garanti fiir att en revislon som utfors enligt ISA
och god revisionssed | Sveriga alltid kommer att
upptickes en vsentlig felaktighet om en sBdan finns,
Felaktighater kan uppstd p8 grund av oegentligheter
efler-misstag-och ahses vara visentliga om e enskilt
eller tillsammans rimiigen kan férvéntas paverka de
akonomiska beslut som anvandare fattar med grund |
drsredovisningen, :

Som del'av an revision enligt 1SA anvandar vj
professionalit omddme och har en professionsllt skeplisk
instalining under hela revisionen, Dessutorn:

« fdentifierar och beddmer vi viskarna fir vasentiiga
felaktigheter i &rsredovisningen, vare sig dessa beror
pé-oegentligheter eller misstag, utformar och utfor
granskningsBtgidrder bland annat utifedn dessa risker
och Inh#mbar revisionsbevis som &r tillrlickliga och
Andamalsenliga for att utgdra en grund for vBra
uttalanden. Risken for att inte upptacka en vasentlig
felaktighet tHl folid av cegentligheter ar hégre dn-fBr
en visentiig falaktighst som berdr pd misstay,
eftersom oegenttigheter kan innefatta agerande i
maskopl, forfalskning, avsiktligs uteldmnanden,
felaktig information eller 8sidosattande av intern
karitroll.

« skaffar vi-oss an forstielse av-den dal av bolagets
interna-kontroll sor har betydelse fér var revision
fér att utforma granskningsatgarder som & [dmpliga
med hansyn til omstandigheterna; men inte fir att
uttala oss om effektiviteten i derr interna kontroflen.

« utviirderar vl [Bmpligheten | de redovisningsprinciper
som anvands och rimligheten | styrelsans och
verkstéllande direktorens uppskattningar i
redovisningen och tillhdrande upplysningar,

s drar vi enslutsals om Emplighaten | alt styrelsen
och verkstéllande direkttren anvinder antagandet
om fortsatt drift vid upprattandet av
frsredovisningen. Vi drar ocksd en slutsats, med
grund i de Inhdmtade revisionsbevisen, om huruvida
det finng ndgon vésentily osakerhetsfaktor som
avser sidana hiindelser sller forhdllanden som kan
leda till betydande tvivel om holagets firméga att
fortsétta verksamheten, Om vi drar slitsatsen att
det finns en vasentlig osikerhetsfaktor; méste vi |
revisionsberattelsen Fista Uppmarksamheten pa
upplysiindarna | 8rsredovisningen om den vasentiiga
oskerhetsfaltorn eller; om sfdana upplysningar ar
otitirickliga, madifiera uttalandet om
drsredovisningen, Vara slutsatser baseras pd de
revisionsbevis som inhdmtas fram till datumet for
revisionsherattelsen, Dock kan framtida héndelser
eller forhalianden géra att ett bolag inte i8ngre kan
fortsatta verksamheten.

= Uutvirderar vl den dvergripande presentationen,
strukturen och Innehdllet | rsredovisningen,
daribland upplysningaina, och-om:Arsredovisningen



Deloitte.

Bterger de underliggande transaktionerna och
héndelserna pa ett sétt som ger'en rittvisandsa bild.

Vi maste informera styrelsan-om bland annat revisionens
planerade omfattning och inrikining samit tidpunkten 8
den, Vimiste ocksd Informera om betydelsefulia
iakttagelser under revisionen, daribland de eventuslia
betydande brister i den interna kontrollen som vi
identifierat.

Rapport om andra krav enligt lagar och
andra forfattningar

Uttatanden

Utiver var ravision av arsredovisningen har vl Sven
utfirt en revision av styrelsens och verkstaltande
direktérens farvattning fot Axis AB for rakenskapsiret
2021-01-01 - 2021-12-31 samt av fivslaget Lilt
dispositioner betréffande bolagets vinst eller forlust,

¥ tillstyrker att bolagsstdmman- dispenerar vinsten
enfigt firslaget 1 firvaltningsberatielsen och beviljar
styrelsens fedamdter och verkstiliande direkt&ren
ansvarsfrihet fir rakenskapsaret;

Grund for vttalandern

Vi har utfart revisionen enfigt god' revisionssed i Sverige,
Vrtansvar enligt denna beskrivs narmare | avsnittet
Revisorns angvar, Vi droberoande | farhillande Il Axis
AB.enligt gad revisorssed 1 Sverige och’har | turigt
fullgjort vt yrkesetiska ansvar enligt dessa krav.

Vi-anser att de revisionsbevis vi har inhimtat ér
tilirdickliga och dndamisentiga sam grund for vira
uttsdanden.

Styrelsens ach verkstéllande direktirens ansvar

Det & styrelsen som har ansvaret for farslaget till
dispositioner betriffande bolagets vinstaller foriust, Vid
farslag till wideining innefattar detta bland annat en
beddmning av om utdeiningen &r férsvarllg med hansyn
ti de krav som bolagets verksamhetsart, omfatiniog
och iisker stiller pd storieken av bolagets egna kapltal,
kansolideringsbehov, likviditet ach stéllning | &vrigt.

Styrelsen ansvarar for bolagets organisation och
farvaltningen av bolegets angeldgennater, Detta
innefattar bland annat att fortiipande beddma bolagets
ekonomiska situation ochi att tillse att bolagets
organisation &r utformad s att bokforingen,
medelsfirvaltningean ach bolagets ekonomiska
angeldgenheter | durigt kontrolleras pa et betryggande
satt, Verkstéllande direkidren ska skbta den [bpande
farvaltningen enligt styrelsens riktlinjer och anvisningar
och bland annat vidta de Stgsrder som &r nddvéndiga
for att bolagets bokidring ska fullgéras i
dverensstimmielse med fag och for att
medelsforvaltningen ska skétas pd ett betryggande sétt.

Revisorns ansvar

Virt mil betraffande revisionen av farvaitningsn, ach
darmed vart uttalande om ansvarsfrihet, ar att inhiamta
revisionsbevis Fir att med en rimlig grad av sakerhet
kunna beddma- om négen styrelseledamot eller
verkstdilande direktéren | nigot visentligt avseende:

« fdretaglt nBgon Stgdrd eller gjort sig skyldig till
ndgan forsummelse som kan franleda
ersdtiningsskyldighet mot bolaget; eller

Axls A8
praanisationsiuinmer 555241 -1065

2(2)

»  panigot annat sitt handlat | strid-med
aktisbolzgslagen; arsredovisningstagen eiler
bolagsordningen.

virt md] betraffande revisionen av forstaget tiil
dispositioner av bolagets vinst eller férkist, och ddrmed
vrt uttalande om detta, Bratt med rimlig grad av
sikerhet beddma om forslaget ar frenligt med
aktiebolagslagen:

Rimlig sdkerhet &r en hog grad av sdkerhet; mien ingan
garanti for att en revigion som utfors: enligt god
revisionssed t Sverlge alitid kemmer att upptacka
Stgarder eller forsummelser som kan. forantéda
ersittningsskyldighet mot bolagét, elfer att ett forstag till
dispositioner av balagets vinst ellar férlust inte &r
forentigh med aktiebolagslagen.

Som en del aven revision enligh god revisionssed i
Sverige anvdnder vi professionelit omddmeroch haren
professionellt skeptisk instélining under hela revisionen,
Granskningen av frvaltningen och firsiaget till
dispositioner-ayv-bolagats vinst aller forlust grundar sig
frimst pd revisionen av rikenskaperna, Vilka
tilkommanda granskningsétgirder som utfbrs baseras
pi var professionella baddmning med vtgdngspunkt i
risk och vasentlighet. Det innebar att vi fokuserar
granskningen pé sidana 8tgarder, omraden och
forhidlianden som a&r vasentliga for verksambeten och
dir avsteg och dvertridelser skulle ha sdrskild batydelse
for bolagets situation, Vi gér igenom och prévar fattade
beslut, bestutsunderlag, vidtagna 8tgérder nch andra
forhallander som ar relevanta for vlrt uttalande om
ansvarsfrihet. Som Underlag for vart uttalande om
styrelsens férstag till dispositionsr betraffande nolagets
vinst eller forlust har vi gransiat styrelsens motlverade
yttrande samt ekt urval av underlagen fir detta foratt
kunna beddma om firslaget ar Mrentigt med
aktieholagsiagen.

Maims | 7% 2022
Deloitte A8
T - S

Henrik Ekstrim
Auktoriserad revisor
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S: doltars
(except-per share amounis) {except per share amounts)
2021 2020 Change (%) 2021
Net sales ¥ 3,513,357 ¥ 3,160,243 +11.2 $ 30,550,930
Operating profit 281,918 110,547 +155.0 2,451,461
Income before income taxes 302,706 130,280 +132.4 2,632,226
Net income attributable to Canon inc. 214,718 83,318 +157.7 1,867,113
Net income attributable to Canon Inc.
shareholders per share:

—Basic ¥ 205.35 ¥ 79.37 +158.7 $ 1.7%

~Diluted 205.29 79.35 +158.7 1.79
Total assets ¥ 4,750,888 ¥4,625614 +2.7 $ 41,312,070
Canon Inc. shareholders' equity ¥ 2,873,773 ¥ 2,575,031 +11.6 $ 24,989,330

Notes:

1. Canon's consclidated financial statements are prepared in accardance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

2. 11,5 dollar ameunts are translated from yen at the rate of IPY115:4).5.31, the approximate exchange rate on'the Tokyo Fareign Exchange Market as of
December 30, 2021, solely for the convenience of the reader.

Net Sales (Bilions of yen} Net Income Attributable to Canon Inc. Billions of yen)
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

Canon will further promote
a grand strategic transformation
by accelerating reform activities.

FUJIO MITARAI

Chairman & CEOQ
Canon Inc.




BUSINESS SEGMENTS

STRATEGY CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Performance in 2021

Following on from 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic continued
to affect many aspects of our livesin 2021. Even though the
pandemic necessitated numerous restrictions, we began to
see economic activity pick up again asthe vaccination rollout
gained traction and the world adjusted to the reality of having
to coexist with the virus. However, in the second half of the
term, demand grew sharply on the back of the resumption of
economic activity. This resulted in disrupted distribution net-
works mainly due to semiconductor and labor shortages, and
it even precipitated an inflationary economy ona global scale
by driving up the prices of energy resources and commodities.

In this enviranment, Canon launched a new five-year man-
agement plan, Phase VI of the "Excellent Global Corporation
Plan,” to enhance competitiveness through company-wide
organizational realignment and to improve group-wide pro-
ductivity through extensive reinforcement of Canon’s global
headquarter functions under the basic policy of “accelerating
our corporate portfolio transformation by improving produc-
tivity and creating new businesses.”

With office occupancy rates recovering, we saw signs of-a re-
covery in sales of office multifunction devices {MFDs}, while sales
of inkjet and laser printers increased thanks to the implementa-
tion of remote work and-horme studying. Sales of commercial

FiIntAMCIAL SECTION CORPORATE DATA

Canon Inc. shareholders’ equity ratio (%)

- 60 Vi

55
50
2018 2019 2020 2021

printers rose, thanks to their capacity to produce high-quality
images whilst boosting productivity. Sales of full-frame mir-
rorless cameras were strong partly thanks to a recovery in'the
digital interchangeable-lens digital camera market. Sales of
network cameras were also buoyed by the resumption of invest-
ments in public facifities and the like after grinding to a halt
during the COVID-19 pandemic, while sales of video manage-
ment systems and video content analytics software were also
solid thanks to heightened demand for mainly remote monitor-
ing systems. Stronger demand for medical equipment during
the pandemic underpinned firm sales, primarily for CT systems
and diagnostic ultrasound systems: In addition, production of
semiconductor manufacturing-equiprnent continued at maxi-
murm capacity due to aggressive investment in equipment by
chip makers to meet growing demand and address supply short-
ages. Furthermore, sales of flat parel display (FPD} lithography
equipment were strong, reflecting solid dernand for televisions;
laptop computers, and other devices.

As a result, consolidated net sales for this term increased by
11.2% yearon yearto 3,513.4 billion yen, consolidated income
before income taxes increased by 132.4% year on year to 302.7
billionyen, and consclidated net income attributable to Canon
Inc. increased by 157.7 % year on year to 214.7 billion yen.
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Phase |
1986--2000

Canon transformed its.
mindset to focus more
on total (not partial} opti-
mization and profitability
{not sales) and also en-
gaged-in thorough cash
flow management. We in-
traduced: various business
innovations, including the
selection and consolida- -
tion of business areas,
and-reform activities in
such areas-as production
and development.

Phase Il
2001-2005

Aiming to become No.
tein-all major-business
areas, Canon focused on

_strengthening its com-

petitiveness by stepping
up efforts to digitalize its
products in line withthe
changing times. We-also
reformed how we under-
take procurement activities
mainly by setting up & new
Procurerment Headguarters,
and we took steps to
reform in-house systems,
such as our personnel

Phase Ill
2006-2010

Canon pushed ahead
with new growth strat-
egies, including the
enhancement 'of existing
businesses and expansion
of new business areas,
and also implemented
supply chain management
and IT reforms. in order
to achieve real-time man-
agement that can readily
adapt ta changes.

Phase IV

2011-2015

Canon revised its:man-

* agement policy from a

strategy targeting expan-
sion of scale to a strategy
aimed at strengthening its
financial structure. While
actively pursuing M&As,
we pushed ahead with
the:rebuilding of our busi-
nass foundatior to serve
as-a new driver-of future
growth with a view to
making a8 foray into indus-
tries that can become new
growth engines in step

Phase V
2016-2020

Canon endeavored to
recansolidate its tradi-
tional core businesses,
which include cameras
and office equipment,
and completed the first
stage of its.grand stra-
tegic transformation by
waorking to expand and
sirengthen the following
four new businesses that
underpin-Canon's future:
commercial printing, net-
work:cameras, medical,
and industrial equipment.

system, with the aim of
balancing lifetime emplay-
ment with merit-based
principles.

with changes in the times.

Excellent Global Corporation Plan

‘Phase 1 to Phase V (1996-2020)
Canon launched the Excellent G!oEal Corporation Plan.in
1996, and has since strengthened its management base
through each of the plan’s five-year stages, from Phase |
through Phase V.

During Phase |, we stressed thorough cash flow manage-
ment and significantly boosted pr,éduc’:tivity through the

introduction of our cell production system, along with other

measures. In Phase If, we stepped up efforts to digitalize
our copying machines and camera offerings; endeavored to
strengthen the competitiveness of our products, and estab-
lished a.strong earnings structure. In Phase 1ll, we rode the
globalization and digitiéation wave to drive sales and-profit
higher. In 2007, we achieved record-high sales of 4,481.3
billion yert and recorded net profit of 488.3 hillion yen. Also
during that period, we turned our attention to OLED displays
and welcomed Canon Tokki (formerly' Tokki) and Netherlands-
based printer manufacturer Canon Production Printingj
(formerly Océ} into the Canon Group. '
During Phase IV, we promoted diversification via the lateral
' expansion of our existing businesses into such new businesses

as the Cinema EOS System, while also accelerating our M&A

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

strategy in pursuit of new growth. In this manner, we set out
a clear direction for shifting our focus for growth from B2C to
B28: At that time, we turned Milestone Systems (“Milestone™)
and Axis Communications {* Axis”) into subsidiaries in order
to reinforce and expand our rapidly growing netwerk camera
business. Additionally, Canon Manotechnologies (formerly
Molecular imprints) became a subsidiary, and we furthered
the development of next-generation semiconductor manu-
facturing equipment that uses nanocimprint lithography, a
technology that enables miniaturization and cost reductions
for semiconductor devices..

In Phase V, we welcomed Canon Medical Systems
Corporation ("Canon Medical”; formerly Toshiba Medical
Systems) into the Canon Group to complete our current busi-
ness setup in line with the basic policy of "embracing the
challenge of new growth through a grand strategic trans-
formation.” As a manufacturer, we strove unceasingly to

-achieve production reforms and thorough cost reductions. At

the same time, we accomplished the grand transformation of
our business portfolio by establishing new growth platforms
in commercial printing, network cameras, medical equip-

ment, and industrial equipment.
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BUSINESS BEGMEMTY
CORPORATE STRUCTURE

STRATEGY

FIMANCIAL SECTION CORPORATE DATA

Phase VI basic policy and key strategies

Building on our achievements thus far, in Phase VI, which com-
menced in 20271, we aim tosurpass our record-high sales figure
achieved in 2007 with at least 4,500 billion yen in salesin 2025,
the final year of Phase Vi. We plan to achieve this by “thoroughly
enhancing competitiveness through company-wide realignment
into'a new industry-orignted business group stricture™ and
“improving group-wide productivity through extensive reinforce-
ment of Canon’s global headquarter functions.” These efforts
will be guided by our basic policy of "accelerating our corporate
portfolio transformation by improving productivity and creating
new businesses.” We are also targeting an operating profit ratio
of at least 12%, a net profit ratio of 8% or higher, and a share-
holder equity ratio of 60% or greater.

Strategy 1

Thoroughly enhancing competitiveness through
company-wide realighment into a new industry-oriented
business group structure

In April 2021, with the ohjective of fully maximizing our wide array
of businesses and technologies, we reorganized our business divi-

sions into the following four groups according to their affinity with

each other: printing, imaging, medical, and industrial, People-to-
people exchange within these groups has already led to synergies,
and going forward, we will make every effort to reinforce organiza-
tions by reviewing technological capabilities and business domains
from the perspective of each group. Also, we will aim to accelerate
the pace of R&D to create and quickly expand new businesses more
efficiently by aggressively and boldly pursuing M&A deals and real-
izing synergies with Canon’s existing businesses.

in-addition, to coincide with the business shift to the B2B do-
main; we intend to restructure the rales and positioning of business
headquarters and sales companies and focus on developing a
first-rate sales engineer team thataccurately reflects the:needs
of customers in product development. Meanwhile, the frontier
business will be upgraded to a business headquarters {the Frontier
Business Promotion Headguarters) so it can accelerate the commer-
cialization of solutions mainly for the materials business, production
technology; and companent sales to outside businessas.

Strategy 1

nuouﬁ-feéd press ProStream 1000 series

The conti

The Printing Group mainly consists of multifunction devices,
inkjet printers, laser printers, and commercial and industrial
printers. The primary objective for this group-—the largest

of all the industry-oriented business groups—is to cement a
dominant position in new fields, including commercial and
industrial printing, and expand sales. By combining Canon’s
printing technology with the exceptional productivity and sta-
bility technigues hitherto honed by Canon Production Printing,
we will look to further deepen collaboration and expand into
new commiercial and industrial printing domains. In commer-
cial printing, we will provide products that deliver even greater
image quality and & high level of productivity, whilst also
targeting steady growth, mainly by improving workflow and
strengthening the added value of printed material.. In industrial
printing, armed with printheads that leverage our in-house
developed technology, we will strive to expand our business in
such fields as printing of labels and other packagings.

With the digital transformation (DX) of society gaining con-
siderable momentum among corporations, we will work on
improving our fineup of multifunction devices in the office
equipment business. At the'same time, because a hybrid work-
ing style that combines office-based work with remote work has
now become well entrenched at companies, we will expand our
range of products and services that can offer a printing environ-
merit free from the constraints of physical working location,
whether it be-at home or in the office. In this field in particular,
we intend to reinforce our development of hardware and soft-
ware with the aim of providing cloud-based digital services and
find an optimal balance between lineup expansion and cost re-
ductions with the use of platform-based product development.

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021




Strategy 1

.Tﬁe- EOS RS full-frame mirrorless camera

The imaging Group comprises cameras and lenses, broadcast
equipment, professional video cameras, network cameras,
automotive cameras, and similar products. :

In'this group, the first goal isto seize the number one spotin
the global interchangeable-lens camera market. As the world’s
leading camera manufacturer, we aim 1o achieve this objective
by expanding our fineup of camera models and lenses.

The second goal is to establish a solid paosition in network
cameras, for which industrial and societal demand is growing
rapidly. With demand rising in manufacturing and market-
ing fields—far such applications-as process management
at production sites or the retail customer analyses—we will
support the development activities of Axis, further deepen
collaboration with Group companies that develop. software,
and reinforce our suite of total solutions, including video
management and video analytics, that only Canon is capable
of delivering.

The third goal is to develop:new businesses.in such areas
as XR (VR/AR/MR), remote camera systems, and free view-
point video. Finally, the fourth objective of this group is to
strengthen the key component business in new fields of imag-
ing. In particular, in the dynamically evolving mobility market,
irvanticipation of a future age of unmanned vehicles, we will
‘push ahead with strategic development in such businesses
as'vehicle on-board camera and transportation infrastructure
‘based on Canon'’s optical and network technologies.

CANON ANNUAL REPCRT 2021

Caneon's CT System

The most important objective of the Medical Group is to
capture the biggest share of the global CT market. Through
an acquisition completed in September 2021, we welcomed
Canada-based Redlen Technologies into the Canon Group.
This company boasts world-leading technaology in semican-
ductor detector modules, a key device in next-generation CT
systems. By collaborating with Redlen Technologies, we can
now greatly accelerate the development of Photon Counting
CT technology (PCCT), which is expécted to be the next-
generation CT technology. We are also bolstering our product
competitiveness in the areas of MRl -and diagnostic ultrasound
systems by ensuring high-quality images and lowering costs.
Also, in the field of healthcare IT, we expect to see growth in
demand for Al-driven solutions such as radiology interpreta-
tion and diagnostic support for future personalized medical
services. These are the kind of opportunities we intend to pur-
sue in-order to achieve steady growth.

Boosting sales overseas is another priority. We will-focus
primarily on'the U.S. market and seek to expand our share in

- other overseas markets by hastening the expansion of sales

bases and sales personnel.
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Flat Panel Display (FPD) lithégraphy equipment

The Industrial Group handles semiconductor and flat panel
display (FPD) lithography systems, Canon Tokki’s OLED panel
manufacturing systems, Canon Anelva’s sputtering equip-
ment, Canon Machinery’s die bonders, and similar product
lirtes. in this group we will endeavor to scale up and aug-
ment business operations by cormbining the group's collective
strengths to meet the massive demand for semiconductors
and display panels.

In the area of semiconductor lithography systems, we will
aim to maintain the dominant position of our i-line systems
and capitalize upon favorable market conditions to expand
our market share of KrF systems. We are also taking up the
challenge of expanding the use of our nancimprint lithogra-
phy technology. Moreover, in terms of economic securityin
developed countries and regions, there is a tendency for chips
to be produced domestically or within the region. In light of
this we intend to focus our efforts on expanding sales of semi-
conductor lithography equipment not onlyin Asia, but also in
Western markets.

As for display panel manufacturing equipment, we will
strive to further increase our market share by offering increas-
ingly higher resolutioryin L.CDs and improving manufacturing
productivity. For the produciion of OLEDS we are warking
to reduce the:costs associated with the current deposition
technique and we are also accelerating the development of
equipment for new technigues and the in-house production
of materials. For sputtering equipment and die bonders, the
industrial group will work fogether to leverage its distinctive
technology and expand business operations.

FRONTIER BUSINESS

The Frontier Business Promotion Headquarters,
which was upgraded to a business headquarters
in 2021, draws upon the wealth of technologies
Canon has cultivated thus far to explore com-
mercial potential in the three fields of life sciences,
materials, and solutions. Going forward, it will
work closely with Canon HQ's R&D department
and each business headquarters to engage in a
process of selection and concentration to clearly
identify the areas targeted for commercialization
and someday establish our fifth and even the sixth
industry-oriented business groups.

Complex ceramic lattice structure in hollow shapes
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Strategy 2

Improving group-wide productivity through extensive
reinforcement of Canon’s global headquarter functions
Another key strategy of Phase VI will be the extensive rein-
forcement of Canon's global headgquarter functions in order
to achieve a total optimization across the aforementioned
Jindustry-oriented business groups. There are four points of
focus in this strategy.

The first is “thorough cash flow management.” As'we
rieeded to borrow funds to facilitate the grand transformation
of our business portfolio through MB8As, we plan on repaying
these debts in full dtirjng the period of Phase V1 50 as to pre-
pare for the next mé}or investment or economic crisis. We will
also aim to rectify the flow of capital within the Group and
obtain a high credit rating of AA ar Aal.

The second focus point is “establishing a more dynamic and
merit-based HR management system.” We will improve the
link between performance and salary while switching toa sys-
tem that better reflects the abilities of employees. At the same
time, we intend to strengthen HR development and encour-
age career transitions within the Company in line with the

In conclusion

Given that COVID-19 vaccinations continue to be adminis-
tered worldwide and the development and use of therapeutic
drugs has also begun, we expect economic activity to gradu-
ally normalize and the balance of éupp(y and demand for
sémiconduc‘tors and other components and products to
stabilize. This will likely drive a full-fledged recovery in em- _
ployment, income, and consumption. Amid this enviranment,
the Canon Group is pushing ahead with the Group-wide

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

transformation of our business portfolio. We will also push
ahead-with the nurturing of a digital-savwy workforce and the
utilization of IT tools as we endeavor to boost productivity
amid the digital transformation (DX).

The third point is “promoting cost reduction initiatives
across the whole Group.” We will aim to lower the cost-
of-sales ratio by 50% through the seamless automation of
design, praduction engineering, and manufacturing floor
processes, as well as the in-house production of manufactur-
ing equipment.:On top of this, we will build a resilient supply
network for minimizing the impacts.of unexpected events on
praduction, procurement, kand distribution. -

The fourth paint is “focusing on innovations that advance
new product development and responding to the rapidly chang-
irig business environment. " This involves the anticipation of exit
points three 1o five years from now and furthering the deveicp-
ment of technalogies and devices that will be indispensable in
the future. And on g company-wide fevel, we will take steps to
tackle various issues pertaining to decarbonization, the adoption
of renewable energy, and changes in world affairs.

business portfolio transformation, as we believe that change
is progress and transformation is advancement. The world
has been shaken to the core by the COVID-19 pandemic,
forcing people to reassess their values and lifestyles, but
Canon will stay a step ahead of changes in society and keep
reinventing itself as an excellent company not only in terms
of scale, but also quality. We look forward to your continued

support and understanding.

,g@/%z\_

Fujio Mitarai
Chairman & CEQ
Canoninc.
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PRINTING GROUP

Tapping demand from a hybrid working style
and targeting growth in the digital commercial
printing field

The varioPRINT iX series of high-speed
cut-sheet inkjet printers combines i
image quality and productivity at 2

high level.
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 office MFDs y connecting to
cloud services i contributing to improved productivity.

In commercial and industrial printing and other new fields, we
will aim o cement a dominant position in the market by en-
hancing the competitiveness of our products. We will also push
ahead with the development of products and services to capture
new lifestyle and work-style demand from offices and prosum-
ers, strengthen our DX-capable products and services, and find a
balance between product line expansions and cost reductions.

2021 Performance

In the office equipment business, we endeavored to find a
balance between development efficiency enhancements and
production cost reductions and launched a new product that
was favorably received, the imageRUNNER ADVANCE DX :
5800 series, which offers enhanced essential features, such
as low power consumption and quiet operation. Sales of con-
sumables are also recovering as.the ratio of people wha have
gone back to the office gradually returns to normal.

In the prosumer Business. sales of both inkjet and laser print-
ers, as well as consumables, were strong following the faunch
of new products desigred for teleworking and home learning.

In the production business, we boosted olir competitivenass
with the launch-of a new high-speed imagePRESS printer and
through the launch of new accessories that can automatically
inspect and adjust images. In the large-format printer category,
we launched the TZ series, our fastest imagePROGRAF print-
ers to date. We also expanded our imagePROGRAF lineup
with the introduction of the new GP series, the industry’s
first model equipped with fluorescent ink to enhance poster
printing. And, in addition to the ColorStream and ProStream
series, which are the mainstream products of continuous
feed presses, thanks to exceptional image quality and level of

CORPORATE DATA

FRAMCIAL SECTION

Canofi’s inkjet printers that are suited for remote work and learning

from home.

productivity, sales of the varioPRINT iX series of high-speed
cut-sheet inkjet printers were boosted by favorable market
assessment since going on sale in 2020. Moreover, we success-
fully expanded the-number of dealers selling the new Colorado
1630 large-format printer for graphic arts printing.as it sup-
ports a wide range of media.

Toward further growth

In this era of digital transformation (DX), the shift towards pa-
perless offices—in the sense of decreasing printing volume—will
continue to gather momentum in the coming future, but we still
anticipate firm demand for printing in terms of sharing thoughts
and work results. A hybrid working style that combines office-
based work with teleworking has gained traction among
companies due 1o the spread of COVID-19 infections, which
means we must iow pravide printing environments and ser-
vices that are impervious 1o the constraints of physical working
location by, for example, taking advantage of the cloud. Canon
will draw upon its strengths—namely, the two digital printing
technologies of electrophotography and inkjet, as well as a
worldwide sales and service network—to focus on providing so-
lutions attuned to the era of DX and aim to be the global leader
in the office and prosumer market categories. Additionally, in
the commerdal printing field, which includes the printing of
books, catalogues and direct mailings, as well as in the industrial

* printing field, which includes the printing of labels and other

packaging, we expect the shift from analogue to digital to prog-
ress even further, which is why we will fook o establish a solid
position in the market by successively launching new competi-
tive products that conserve energy and add greater value;

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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IMAGING GROUP

Maintain the world’s No.1 brand by securing
absolute market share and establish solid position
in network cameras
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The EOS RS features a more advanced function to detect subjcts
through deep-learning technology.

In interchangeable-lens cameras, we aim to secure:sustain-
able profit, maintainirig the world’s No.1 brand by securing
absolute market share. In the network camera field, we aim to
establish a solid position in the market by capturing a broad
spectrum of demand. We will also cultivate new businesses

in the field of 3D imaging application such as free viewpoint
video and XR figlds including virtual reality.

2021 Performance

The digital camera market overall held firm bucyed by solid de-
mand for high-guality image expression. Sales of the EOS R5 and
EOS R6 that were released in 2020 remained brisk and sales of RF
lenses —the lineup of which has now been expanded to 26—also
grew significantly thanks to synergies with EOS R series camera
bodies. Moreover, we Jaunched a new virtual reality (VR) imaging
production system (EOS VR SYSTEM) with a view to expanding
into new business fields. We also offered new ways of enjoying
image content; for example, we launched a new product in the
MREAL series of mixed reality {MR) head-mount displays. (HMDs}),
as'well as a new camera that captures images automatically.

In addition, sales of not only network cameras, but also video
management software and video content analytics software
applications were strong, reflecting heightened demand for,
among others, production site automation and remote monj-
toring systems during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Ire the business for video production, which includes broadcast
equipment, we launched a remote camera system that allows
users to control multiple cameras over a network. We also worked
on strengthening and expanding into new fields such-as capturing
actual images at the Volumetric Video Studio - Kawasaki, a 5tudjo
leveraging our Free Viewpoint Video System technology:

EINAMCIAL SECTION

CORFORATE DATA

Canon's volumetric video technology can produce videos from ary
viewpoint and angle.

Toward further growth
Demand for high-quality visual expression remains firm largely
as a result of more people using their extra free time to enjoy
taking pictures at home and sharing them online. We will look
to further bolster our offerings of EOS R system cameras and
RF-series interchangeable lenses:and gain a bigger market
share by launching products in a timely manner that give users
more options. Furthermore, in broadcasting and video produc-
tion fields, we will strengthen our lineup of high-image-quality
remote camera systems. We also intend to leverage the tech-
nelogies of the imaging group, such as optical technology and
image processing technology, in order to help drive growth in
image capturing, from stillimages and movies to VR videos.

In the network camera area, we will enhance our presence
in the security field with the combined strengths across Group
companies: Axis, a network camera leader with partners all over
the world; Milestone, a leading video management software
company; BriefCam, a video content analytics software com-
pany; and Arcules, a cloud services company. We also intend to
go beyond the conventional objectives of security and deploy
products and services that can handle various operations; for
example, inspecting finished products at production sites or de-
tecting congestion levels in stores or-exhibition halls.

In‘autonomous driving and other mobility fields inwhich
innovative changes are progressing at a blistering pace, we
will look to contribute to the proliferation of mobility services,
such as driver assistance systems, by leveraging our long-
honed expertise in optical and network fechnologiesto enter
the automotive camera as well as the transportation infra-
structure business.

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Canon's diagnostic ultrasound systems: provide high-definition images
that-are clear with little noise.

In order to respond t6 the growing sophistication of medical
treatment, we aim to contribute to healthcare around the
world by expanding our business field to healthcare 1T and in-
vitro diagnostics, with diagnostic imaging at its core.

We will strengthen the competitiveness of our CT, MR, and
diagnostic ultrasound systems and gain the largest shareof the
global CT market. We will also bolster our sales structure in over-
seas markets, particularly in priority areas like the United States:

2021 Performance

In'the Japanese market in 2021, sales of mainly CT systems

and diagnostic ultrasound systems for COVID-19 testing were
strong partly thanks to'the government providing support for
medical institutions. In the US, where we have continued to
strengthen aur sales structure, orders-and sales grew as'we ex-
panded business operations whilst flexibly contending with the
negative impacts of the pandemic. We have been also engaged
in joint research with the National Cancer Center Japan with

a view to commercial viability at the earliest possible time for
Photon Counting CT (PCCT), which is increasingly touted as the
next-generation of CT technology. In:September. 2021 through
an M8A deal we welcomed Canada-based Redlen Technologies
into the Canon Group. This company possesses world-leading
technology to develop and manufacture semiconductor detec-
tor modules that are used as the key device for PCCT.

Toward further growth
Inthe diagnostic imaging business, having brought Redlen
Technologies into the Canon Groupin 2021, we can now

push forward with the technological development and early

FIMANTIAL SECTION

CORPORATEDATA

Canon Medical has introduced antigen qual‘i‘fative test kit for COVID-19,
which ‘is.used at Yokohara City University Hospital.

practical application of PCCT, a technology with the potential
to deliver unprecedented diagnostic functionality and greatly
reduce radiation exposure. And to complement our proprietary
technologies, such as RF cail technology (the fundamental tech-
nology in MRI), we will look to develop next-generation high
petformance IMRI with the use of Al-driven image processing
technology. As for our diagnostic ultrasound systems, we will
take steps to reduce costs with the use of Canon’s production
engingering by realizing the in-house production and standard-
ization of platforms. Alse; by strengthening our sales network
mainly in the US, we will aim to secure the leading global mar-
ket:share in CT and establish ourselves as one of the world’s
leading manufacturers of diagnostic imaging equipment.

In the field of healthcare IT, we will aim to provide high-quality
diagnostic support and efficlent medical care by integrating
image and non-image data collected from clinical settings and
using Al and-other types-of technology to analyze and process
those data before offering them to medical institutions world-
wide. Moreover, in the field of in-vitro diagnostics, we will work
on-expanding our portfolio.and business into the field of periph-

. eral testing systems, such as test reagents for COVID-19,

In the medical component business, not only will we grow
the existing business mainly by gaining new customers and
consolidating sales functions, but with a view 1o M&A-driven
growth, we will also look to provide solutions to B2B cus-
tomers on multiple levels, including end products, modules,
processes, and services. By doing so, we will aim to further
expand this business, whose sales account for more than 10%
of the entire Medical Systems and Components Operations.

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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INDUSTRIAL AND OTHERS GROUP

Meeting robust demand for semiconductors and
flat panel displays in a bid to expand market share

CANON ANNUAL REH
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Production of OLED panel manufacturing equipment with overwhelming
competitiveness at Canon Tokki.

For semiconductor lithagraphy equipment and flat panel dis-
play (FPD) lithography equipment, we will develop and provide
functions and performance, such as throughput and overlay
accuracy, in-a timely manner so as to contribute to productivity
improvemerits for customers. We will also leverage (0T, Al, and
other digital technolagies to deliver services-and support with

a high level of customer satisfaction. In addition, for Canon
Tokki’s OLED panel manufacturing equipmient, we will endeavor
to enhance the function and performance of equipment that
use the current deposition technigue and will also accelerate the
development of new manufaciuring processes and materials.

2021 Performance

Despite the impact of COVID-19 casting a shadow over the tim-
ing of a long=term economic recovery, as well as concerns about
how semiconductor shortages and mounting US-China trade
friction might affect investments, there was only a slight impact
from these factorsand capital investment dernand from miainly
memory and logic chip manufacturers for semiconductor lithag-
raphy equipment remained firm in all sectors. Demand for FPD
lithography equipment was also solid thanks to the ongoing in-
stallation of equipment that had been pushed out to 2021 from
2020 due to COVID-19 travel restrictions, as well as the increased
demand for devices such as TVs, laptop computers, and tablets
owing to stay-at-home demand. Also, the adoption of OLED dis-
plays for mainly mobile devices contiriued, driving solid demand

for- Canon Tokki’s vacuum deposition equipment.

Toward further growth
Owing to the proliferation of the 5G telecommunications net-
work standard and cloud computing, demand foriCs, memory

ErrANCIAL SECTION
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Mass production verification of nanoimprint manufacturing equipment is
underway at Kioxia's Yokkaichi-plant. {Japan)

devices, and other types of semiconductors is expected to ex-
pand going forward. We also anticipate solid demand for LCD
and OLED panels driven mainly by online video streaming, home

learning, and increasingly higher image resolution. Considering

that we gontinue to produce our semiconductor lithography
equipment, FPD lithography equipment, and OLED panel
manufacturing equipment at nearly full capacity, swiftly mest-
ing increased demand in the near term will prove challenging.
Thiis is why wewill ook to harness the collective strength of the
Industrial Group and augment our production system.

Over the medium-to-long term, we will- work to enhance our
product capabilities and increase our market share by adding
functions and improving performance in order to contribute to
customer productivity.

As for nanaimprint lithography, because the main capabili-
ties of this technology have now reached mass production
levels, we will aim to quickly achieve commercialization and
step up the pace of efforts to expand the scope of application,
We will alse focus our résources on éstab}ishing production
technology for next-generation OLED displays.

In addition to ultra-predision positioning and highly accurate
fabrication in lithography equipment and vacuum deposition
systems for deposition equipment, the industrial group pos-
sesses a whole host of care technologies, including Canon
Anelva’s sputtering technology essential to the production
of hard disks and DRAMs, and Canon Machinery's thin die
handling technology used to attach semiconductor chips to a
substrate. By fusing together the group’s core technologies to
create products and services that deliver new value to custom-
ers we aim to expand our business sphere as well as establish a
strong earnings base.

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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AT A GLANCE

PRINTING GROUP Composition of Sales (%)

Main Products
« Office multifunction devices {MFDs)
Laser multifunction printers (MFPs) * Document solutions
. @ Laser multifunction printers (MFPs)
s Laser printefs
# Inkjet printers
¢ [mage scanners
e Calculators
. = Digital continuous feed presses
» Digital sheet-fed presses
« Large format printers

Digital sheet-fed pressés (Electiophotographic) Large format printers (Inkjet)

IMAGING GROUP - Composition of Sales (%)

Interchangeable-lens digital cameras Interchangeable-lens digital cameras

—Mirrorless camieras —Digital SLR ¢ameras Main Products

= Interchangeable-lens digital cameras
= |nterchangeable lenses

+ Digital compact cameras

* Compact photo printers

» Network cameras

+ Video management software

* Video corntent analytics software
« Digital camcorders

« Digital cinema cameras

= Broadcast equipment

= Multimedia projectors

Interchangeable lenses - Network cameras

Note: The percentage figures for the four business units presenied in the pie charts above do not add up to 100% because “Eliminations,” recorded in conselidation accounting, were. not in-
cluded in caltulation consitferations.
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Compaosition of Sales (%)

Main Products

» Computed tomography {CT) systems

» Diagnostic ultrasound systems

» Diagnostic X-ray systems

* Magnetic resonance imaging (MRI} systems
= Clinical chemistry analyzers

# Digital radiography systems

+ Ophthalmic equipment

MEDICAL GROUP

Diagnestic X-ray systems

Digital radiography systems

T L S SR TR

Composition of Sales (%)

Main Products

» Semiconductor lithography equipment

& FPD (Flat panel display) lithography equipment
» OLED Display Manufacturing Equipment

* Vacuurn thin-film deposition equipment

«Die bonders

» Handy terminals

» Document scanners

IDUSTRIAL AMD OTHERS GROUP

Semiconductor lithography equipment FPD (Flat-panel display) lithography equipment

*
Qrganic LED {OLED) panel manufacturing equipment Die bonders
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RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

e

Development of SPAD mage sensor that is expected to be used in a wide range of fields such as self=driving vehic|

o

les and medical care.

‘Canon is perpetually strengthening R&D as a company possessing

a corporate DNA that places high importance on technology to
differentiate itself from competitors.

R&D Expenses and Patents
From the time of Canan’s founding, we have continued to
diversify our business operations by practiéing astyle of core
competency mahagement that combines fundamentat technol-
agies and core competency technologies in a variety of ways.
On aglobal scale, technology is in the midst of significant
change and aso-called paradigm: shiftis occurring in R&D
whereby companies are adding innovation-focused R&D for
solving social issues to their existing invention-focused R&D

CANGN ANNUAL REPORT 2021

portfolios. Canan's invention-focused R&D revolves around
industry-academia collaboration and openinnovation, while in the
innovation-focused R&D space, to complement the modification
of aur proprietary tech nologies, we are accelerating our efforts
to generate innovation to-accurately meet societal needs through
alliances with other companies, M&A deals, and other endeavors.
In 2021, R&D expenses amounted to ¥287.3 billion, and the
ratio of R&D expenses to net sales was 8.2%. This focus on R&D
activities has also cemented Canon’s leading position in the
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Highly accurate facial recognition with Canon's proprietary facial recogni-
tiory engine and large-sized database of facial images.

intellectual property field. Canon was granted 3,021 patentsin
the United States in'2021, ranking it third among all companies;
At the same time that we have maintained first place-among

Japdniese commpanies for the 17th consecutive year,

Initiatives to Establish New Businesses

Guided by a long-term perspective, Canon is focused on dis-
covering new technologies for the future,

Development of the world’s first 3.2-megapixel SPAD
image sensor

Owing to Canon's proprietary pixel architecture that efficiently
captures and greatly multiplies faint particles of light, we have
successfully developed an ultra-small SPAD sensor capable of
capturing the.world's highest*" resolution of 3.2-megapixel
color images——a higher resolution than Full HD (approximately
2.07 megapixels), even in low-light environments. The newly
developed SPAD sensor greatly enhances sensitivity, induding
light on the near-infrared specirum, and is.capable of capturing
color video at a resolution of 3.2 megapixels under low-light
conditions of 0.002 lux*2, which is darker than a starless night
sky. In addition, the SPAD sensor is capable of extremely high
information pracessing speeds on the level of 100 picoseconds
{one trillionth of asecond). By taking advantage of its high
sensitivity and rapid response functionality, the SPAD sensor
has the potential to be utilized in a wide range of applications,
including self-driving vehicles, medical diagnostic imaging de-
vices, and scientific precision measuring instruments.

*1 Among-SPAD sensors. As of December 14, 2021 Based on. Canon research.
*J Light from stars estimated 3t 0,02 lux. Ambient light i starless night environment
estimated: at 0.007 Jux.

FibtAn AL SEOTION CORPORATE DATA

2021 Top Ten U.S. Patent Holders by Company
BRI

Samsung Electronics
CANON 3,021

TSMCH:

Huawei

intel

#1180 is-an abbraviation for Internatlonal
Busiriess Machines Corporation,

*2 TSMC iis:ar abbreviation for Taiwan
Semiconductor Marufactirdng Co Lid.
Source:

Preliminary data released by IFt CLAIMS
Patent Services. a LS. fesearch company
specialized'in patent information

Apple
LG Electronics

Micresoft

Qualcomm: 1

Improving the technology of facial recognition systems
Powered by Canon's proprietary facial recognition engine, we
have successfully developed a highly accurate facial recogni-
tion technology. It combines a large database of various facial
images with Canon's deep learning Al design techniques mak-
ing it possible to recognize a person’s face with a high degree
of accuracy and speed even in network camera images cap-
tured from a top-down angle—which conventional technology
has struggled to interpret—and also in blurry low-resolution
images. In 2021 we demonstrated world-class accuracy in four
categorieé for assessing the accuracy of a person retrieval in
the Face Recognition Vendor Test (FRVT), 4 global evaluation
benchmark organized by the National Institute of Standards
and Technology (NIST) in the United States.

Detecting defects:in infrastructure

In response to the progressive deterioration of public infrastruc-
ture around the world, Canon is developing solutions that use
imaging to inspect the integrity of bridges, tunnels, and other
concrete structures. With the use of deep-learning Al, cracks

as fine as 0.2 mim in width, rebar exposures, water leaks, and
other defects can be detected-from high-resolution-images,
thus improving the efficiency and quality of inspection reports.
Also, because hairline cracks will go unnoticed in images that
are even slightly out of focus or blurry, in 2021 we énnounced
the development of a tool for verifying the quality of inspection
images. This tool automatically and rapidly judges whether an
image is-aut of focus or blurry, and by extension, helps improve
the quality of images taken at inspection sites.

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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PRODUCTION

Automatic production line for interchangeable lens (Utsunomiya Plant).

Canon is a corporation that has constantly pursued ultimate
perfection in manufacturing. While striving to further improve
production-engineering technology such as automation of assembly
lines, we also focus on developing human resources armed with

outstanding technical skills.

Globally Optimized Production

Canon employs a globally optimizéd production system
through which we cdmprehensiyely determine the most ratio-
nal locations to produce our products, This dedision hinges on
changes in social and economic circumstances and takes into

account country or region-specific factors such as costs, tax

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

systerns, logistics, ease of procuring parts, and labor. In Japan
we are endeavoring to reduce costs by establishing mother
factories that integrate development, procurement, produc-
tion, and manufacturing processes. Meanwhile, in emerging
countries and regions we aim to boost productivity by further

honing the skills of employees.-Canon leverages regional
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Product evaluation test at a plant. (Qita Canon)

characteristics and manufactures products utilizing an agite
and flexible system that spans the globe. '

Automation and In-house Production

Canon endeavers to create original products by actively pur-
suing the in-house production of not only CMOS sensors
and other key devices and components, but also production

~ equipment like automatic assembly machines and high-

precision processing machines, as well as molding dies. To
produce high-quality products at low cost, we aim to establish
highly reliable automated production lines. We have rolled out
fully automated production lines with zero human interven-
tion for toner cartridges and we seek to do the same for the
manufacturing of cameras in the fuiure. in 2021 Canon Mold,
which heads up the Group's mold manufacturing business,
consolidated its six plants in Kasama City in Ibaraki Prefecture
into a single location and is currently endeavoring to ramp up
production capacity and enhance distribution efficiency.

Development of Human Resources

To further enhance its manufaciuring capabilities, Canon is
focused on nurturing its most skilled technicians, known as
Master Craftsmen,.and those who contribute to the advance-
ment of manufacturing with their wide-ranging skills and
knowledge of mainly assemblyand component processing,
known as Meisters. These technicians contribute to the im-
provement of Canon’s production technology and play an
active role at the front line of production by passing on the
skills they have honed over the years to the next generation.

FIMANCIAL BECTION CORPORATE LATA

Young engineers raise their techniques by participating in a competition.

Initiatives for Environmentally Conscious
Manufacturing and Enhanced Product Quality
Canon has worked to reduce energy consumption by un-
dertaking a thorough-going review of operating conditions
at production sites, for instance by cutting out excess use of
pressurized air and cooling water and adjusting air conditioner
settings. At the Kiyohara Industrial Park located in Utsunomiya
City, Tochigi Prefecture, we launched a smart energy project
{a multi-plant integrated energy-saving project) in partnership
with Tokyo Gas Co., Ltd. and three other enterprises. By sharing
electric power and heat (steam and hot water) between a num-
ber of business sites with differing levels of energy demand, we
were able to realize major energy.savings not pessible at a single
business site operating in isolation. This project was awarded
the METE Minister’s Award in the 2021 Energy Conservation
Grand Prize hosted by the Energy Conservation Center, Japan.
in addition, guided by our mission to guarantee the high
quality of our products, “no-claims, no trouble,” we have
drawn up our own rules in the form of a quality management
system that we adhere 1o exhaustively. This guarantees that
our products are safe and provide satisfaction to our cus-
tomers. Our unique quality standards not only comply with
international guality management standards and relevant
laws and regulations in each country or region, bui-they also
take customer safety into account. Moreover; we endeavor to
bring to market only the products that have satisfied our qual-
ity standards after putting them through:a rigorous evaluation
test at well-developed testing facilities and comprehensive
checks in each manufacturing process.

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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SALES & MARKETING

The world prémiere show “CP+2021” for cameras and photographic images as.an online event.

Accelerating growth in commercial printing, network cameras,
medical and industrial equipment as key drivers of
Canon’s next-generation business

Japan ‘ addition, sales to rmajor corporations in the System Integration

Sales in Japan amounted fo ¥830.4 billion, or 23.6% of con- (S} services and data center businesses were boosted by ac-

solidated net sales. _ . - tive IT investment activity by corporations. Demand from
Sales of mainstay business equipment such as office MFPs SMEs to build teleworking environments remained strong and

and laser printers declined due to the impact of product sales in the IT solutions business rose on the back of growth

supply shortages caused primarily by a lack of semiconduc- in security services and maintenance/operation services for IT

tors. On the other hand, sales increased for mid-range and equipment and the like.

high-end mirrorfess cameras and RF mount interchangeable In addition, we actively participated in webinars and on-

lenses, on which we have been concentrating our efforts. In line exhibitions, to promote the appeal of our products and
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Canon Europe faunched a virtual platform to help production print
professionals,

services.

The Americas
Sales in the Americas amounted to ¥968.8 billion, or 27.6%
of consolidated net sales.

Canon U.5.A. handles marketing operations for North,
Central, and South America. its high-quality service frame-
work for office equipment and commercial printers covering
all U.5. states has been rated highly by customers. To meet
growing demand for printing in hybrid working environ-
ments, Canon U.S.A. took steps to realign its organization
and strengthen sales. It also expanded sales of mainly the
EOS RS and R6 cameras and sharply boosted sales of mainly
the Cinema EOS System by capturing strong video stream-
ing demand. Also, Canon’s technological innovations mainly
in its unigue new businesses were widely promoted during
CES 2021, the world's largest consumer electronics showcase
event that was held online for the very first time.

Europe (Europe, Middle East, Africa) '
Sales in Europe amounted to ¥ 894.9 billion, or 25.5% of
consolidated net sales.

Canon Europe oversees businessin the EMEA region
- Europe, the Middle East and Africa. Operating in approxi-
mately 120 markets. In 2021, we launched a virtual platform
to help production print professionals shape a positive busi-
ness future, with practical advice, demonstrations and the

latest market insights. We also continued to support partners

FINAMCIAL SECTION CORPORATE DATA

Composition of Sales by Region

Asia and Oceania

23.3% ‘ ™,

¥81%.2 bilion

Thie Americas

27.6%
¥968.8 billion

Net Sales
¥3,513.4

billion

TN Europe

23.6% : 25.5%
¥E94.9 billion

¥830.4 billion

and customers thraugh virtual events.

Canon Europe is the official printing and imaging provider
of Expo 2020 Dubai, which provides an exciting opportu-
nity to demonstrate innovative technologies, products and

services.

Asia and Oceania
Sales in Asia and Oceania region amounted o ¥819.2 billion,
or 23.3% of consolidated net sales.

In order to swiftly and accurately respond to the characteris-
tics and changes of the rapidly expanding Chinese market, in
2021 we split the Canon Asia Marketing Group (hitherto re-
sponsible for the entire Asian region) into two organizations:
Canon China and Canon Asia Marketing. This has enabled
us to engage in more market-ofiented business activities
than in the past. We announced a commemorative copy ma-
chine model ahead of the 25 anniversary of Canon China’s
founding which we will celebrate in 2022 Through such ac-
tivities we hope 1o express our appreciation 1o our customers
and continue to undertake sales activities whilst shorten-
ing the distance to market based on the slogan “Closer to
Customer.”

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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ESG

Environment

Environment:

Governance

Social;

Social

Governance:

Canon’s Approach '

in order to leave a rich earth for the

next generation, Canon works together
with its stakeholders to implement
initiatives that help reduce environmental
burdens with a focus'onthe entire .
product lifecycle.

Canon’s Approach

As a good corporate citizen,
Canonworks to resolve social issues
with techriology and through business
activities mainly by respecting human
rights, ensuring responsible procurement
as'well as through sociocultural

Canon’s Approach

Canon maintains sound corporate
governance as part of its efforis to
maximize profits for shareholders
and become a truly excellent global
carporation.

e Contrlkxutmg toa Circufar Economy

) Responstble Procurement in the Suppiy

support activities.
, Key lmttatwes . Key lmtlatwes . I(ey lmt:atwes '
-»Contributing to a Carbcn-Free Future f E ) Respectlng Human Rtghts ¢ Board of Directors, Audit & Supemsary

Board Non-statutory Committees

« Eliminating Hazardous: Substances and Chain =
Preventmg Pollution. . - : '

. Contnbutmg toa Soctety in Harmony
with Nature T : :

'~,' Soaocultural Support Actnntzes a

= Constructive Dlaiogue with
Shareholders

Since 1988, Canon-has been stri\)ing to uphold our corporate
philasophy of kyosei (living and working together for the
commeon good) in order to contribute to worldwide prosperity
and happiness, to endeavor to make contributions not only
through products and_sehlices, but also in the areas of envi-
ronmental protection, sociocultural support, and compliance.
In May 2021, with the objective of further enhancing these
initiatives, we established the Sustainability Headguarters at
ourcorporate headguarters. We expressed our approach to
sustainability and how we are committed 10 creating new
value through the power of technology and-innovation,
providing world-first technologies and world-leading prod-
ucts and services while also contributing to solutions for the
problerns our society faces. Going forward, we will undertake

numerous activities around the world as we work towards

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

- For mare-information, please refer to the Canon Sustainability Report. 7] https:fglobal.canonfenfcsrireportfindex.htmi

achieving the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).

Apart from this, in pursuing a corporate management fo-
cused-on total optimization, we launched our own Consolidated
Performance Evaluation System in 1997. During the period of
more than 20 years since it was introduced, it has served as a
marker of improvernent for each of our business operations and
Group companies. The evaluation items are reviewed annually in
accordance with aur management policy and in line with current
trends. Under the system, we evaluate business operations and
Group companies not only from their financial results, such as
sales and profit, but also from non-financial aspects pertaining to
sustainability, such as activities that support environmenital and
sociocultural initiatives. Through encouraging them to improve
their operations, Canon aims to facilitate the sustained develop-
ment of the Group as a whole and contribute to society.
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Environment

In addition ta its own: business activities, stich as development,

production, and sales, Canon monitors the CO; Emission and other
environmental impact at each stage of the product lifecycle, includ-
ing those of suppliers and customers, and works o reduce them.

We support the recommendations of the Financial Stability
Board's Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
(TCFD) and we constantly disclose climate-related information
in our sustainability reports and on our website.
Contributing to a Carbon-Free Future
We are furthering environmental activities on a Group-wide
basis with the goal of achieving an average annual improve-
ment of 3% in lifecycle CO: emissions improvement index per
product as a yardstick for reducing our environmental foot-
print-across entire product lifecycles. Continuously achieving
this target means we will be on track for an improvement of
about 50% in 2030 compared to 2008. Asaf 2021 we have
realized a 42 % improvement versus 2008.

By working closely with society and implementing a number
of initiatives across the entire lifecycle of our products, we aim
to-achieve net-zero CO; emissions by 2050,

Contributing to a Circular Economy

To ensure more efficient use of limited resources-and reduce
waste, Canort is making products smaller and lighter, and
reusing and recycling used products as much as possible. in
particular, we are pursuing produci-to-product recycling—in
other words, recycling used products into new ones, including
the remanufacturing of office multifunction devices and the
closed-loop recycling of toner cartridges.

Canon currently has five recycling centers in four regions
around the world, The Canon Eco Technology Park, which
opened in 2018, strives to realize state-of-the-art resource

|

FINABMIEAL SECTION CORPORATE DATA

An activity of Canon Bird Branch
Project at the fush green site of
our global headquarters.

recycling as a front-runner in'the creation of a circular economy.
For example, we have achieved a parts reuse rate {mass ratic) of
more than 90% for every imageRUNNER ADVANCE C3330F-RG
in our Refreshed series of office multifunction devices.
Eliminating Hazardous Substances and Preventing Pollution
Canon comprehensively manages chemical substances in
products and those used in manufacturing processes to pre-
vent pollution of the global environment and adverse effects
on people’s health. Particularly for chemical substances in
products, we have built a Group-wide environmental assur-
ance system, and we develop products in conformity with
standards established in-house that are in line with the most
stringent regulations in the world.
Contributing to a Society in Harmony with Nature
Canon engages in various activities worldwide based on our
Biodiversity Policy. As part of these activities, we globally run
the Canon Bird Branch Project in an effort o engage in biodi-
versity conservation across the Canon Group.

Lifecycle COz Emissions Improvement index per Product

Improvement index
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Respecting Human Rights
In2021, weexpressed the Canon Group Human Rights Policy
in accordance with the United Nations' Guiding Principles on

-Business and Human Rights. Guided by this policy, we engaged

in.a human rights due diligence process to identify significant
human rights risks inthe Canon Group. We also put in place a
grievance mechanism, raised awareness about human rights,
and addressed human rights risks in supply chains.
Promoting Diversity

Under our corporate philosophy of kyoser, Canon respects global

. diversity and actively encourages the fair hiring and promotion of

employees, regardless of gender, age, or disability. We make every
effort to promote the advancement of female employzes, and we
support the intentions of male em pbyees to participate in child
rearing, help employees balance work and nursing care duties,
and encaurage the active participation of sexual minorities, in-
cluding those in the LGBT community, as well as ernployees with
disabilities. In 2021 » 1o coincide with International Women's Day,
Canori Group:companies in-the Middle East and Africa launched
the “Women who Empower™ program, an internal campaign de-
signed to support female empowerment in the workplace.
Responsible Procurement in Supply Chain

Canon is committed to fulfilling socially responsible procure-
ment in cooperation with its business partners. In 2019,

we joined the Responsible Business Alliance (RBA). And in
2021, we conducted se}f-assessments at 34 manufacturing

" sites:and 326 major suppliers.using the RBA Self-Assessment

Questionnaire (SAQ), and found no major risks.

We also file an annual conflict minerals report with third-
party assurance and submit it to the US Securities and
Exchange Commission-.

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

High-resolution facsimile of the
"Waves at Matsushima,” painted
by Tawaraya Sotatsu in:the collec-
tion of the Freer Gallery of Art, was
donated to Shoun-ji Temple, which
is said to have owned the original.*

Social Contributions.
Canon established The Canon Institute for Global Studies and
The Canon Foundation in 2008 to commemorate Canon’s

70th anniversary.,

The Canon [nstitute for Global Studies analyzes the sta-
tus quo in terms of how the Japanese economy fits into the
broader global economy and what kind of role Japan ought to
play in today’s world. The Institute facilitates the undertaking
of global activities and the exchange of knowledge between
various researchers hailing from industrial, government; and
academic circles. in addition, the Caron Foundation provides

grants to assist a broad range of science and technological

. research. Starting with grant applications in 2019, the Canon

Foundation's activities are now based on the concept of assist-
ing research studies in cutting-edge science and technology
fields with the-aim: of creating new value for society.
Furthermore, as a company that contributes to the develop-
mierit of visual culture, since 2007, Canon and . Kyoto Culture
Association (NFO) have been working on the Tsuzuri Project
{officially named the Cultural Heritage Inheritance Project)
withthe aim of preserving original cultural assets and utilizing
high-resolution facsimiles. By combining Canon's advanced
digital technologies, ranging from input to image process-
ing and output, with the traditional craftsmanship of Kyoto,
we have produced high-resolution facsimiles of important
lapanese cultural assets, including folding screens, fusuma
(Japanese sliding doors), and handscrolls. These facsimiles
have been donated to temples and shrines, local municipali--
ties, or museums that have a special connection with them.

¥ Facsimiles of works:in the collection of the Freer Gallery of Art, Smithsondan Institution;,
Washington, D.C.: Gift of Charles Lang Freer, F1906:231, F1906.232,
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Governance

Fundamental Policy

I order to establish a sound corporate governance structure
and continuously raise corporate value, the Company believes
that it is essential to improve management transparency and
strengthen managerent supervising functions.

Governance Structure

Board of Directors

While the focus of the organizational structure of the Board of
Directors is on Representative Directors that overses comipany-
wide business strategies or execution such as the CEQ, COO,
CFO, CTO, and Representative Directors.or Executive Directors
that oversee multiple business fields or headquarters functions;
in arder to secure sound management, at least one-third and
at least two or more Independent Outside Directors are ap-
pointed. The Board of Directors, in accordance with laws and
regulations, makes important dedisions and supervises the ex-
ecution of duties by officers.

Except for the above, the CEO and other Representative
Directors are active in decision making and execution, and
under the command and supervision of the Representative
Directors, Executive Officers that are elected through resolu-
tion of the Board of Directors make decisions and execute
operations of each business field or function. Currently,
the Board of Directors consists of five members, three
Representative Directors from inside the Companyénd o
Independent Qutside Directors.

Additionally, there will be 42 Executive Officers, including
two females and one non-Japanese as of April 1, 2022.
Audit & Supervisory Board
As:abody which i in charge of the audit of operations, under
the principles of autonomy; which is independent from the Board

FIMANDIAL SECTION CORPORATE DATA

v For all company executive officers,
the CEO provides updates on
earnings. progress and. important
rnatters to be-implemented in-the

{ future both in person and online ds
a way to share-crucial information,

of Directors, the Company has full-time Audit & Supervisory
Board Members that are familiar with the Company’s businesses
or its managerment structure, and Independent Outside Audit &
Supervisory Board Members that have extensive knowledge in
specialized areas such as law, finance and accounting, and inter-
nal contral. The Audit & Supervisory Board, which is composed
of these individuals, cooperates with the Company’s account-
ing auditors and internal audit division, oversees the status of
duty execution of operations and corporate assets to secure the
soundness of management.

The Audit & Supervisory Board cansists of five individuals,
three of which are Independent Outside Audit & Supervisory
Board Members.

Procedures in the Nomination of Directors etc.

The Company-established the “Nomination and
Remuneration Advisory Committee, ™ a non-statutory com-
mittee, which consists of the CEQ, two Independent Outside
Directors, and one Independent Qutside Audit & Supervisory
Board Member. At the time Director and Audit & Supervisory
Board Member candidates are nominated and Executive
Officers are appointed {includes the selection of a successor
forthe chief executive officer position), the CEQ recommends
candidates thereof from among individuals that have been
recognized as having met the prescribed requirements, and
the Committee checks the fairness and validity of such rec-
ommendation prior to submission 1o and deliberation by the
Board of Directors.

Additionally, as for Audit & Supervisory Board Member
candidates, prior to deliberation of the Board of Directors,

consent of the Audit & Supervisory Board shall be acquired.

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Corporate Strategy Committee, Risk Management
Committee; and Disclosure Committee

The Company established the Corporate Strategy Committee,
consisting of Representative Directors and some Executive
Officers. Among items to be decidéd by the CEé), the
Committee-undertakes prior del iberations on important mat-
ters pértaining to Canon Group strategies. Outside Directors
and Audit & Supervisory Board members attend Corporate
Strategy Committee meetings and are able to express their
own opinions. Based on & resolution passed by the Board of
Directors, Canon set up the Risk Management Committeg,
which formulates policy and action proposals regarding im-
pmvemeht of the Canon Group risk management system. The
Risk Management Committee consists of three entities: the
Financial Risk Management Subcommittee, which is tasked
with improving systems to ensure reliability of financial re-
porting; the Compliance Subcommittee, which is tasked with
promoting corporate ethics and improving legal compliance
systems; and the Business Risk Management Subcommittee,
which is charged with improving systems 1o manage overall
business risks, including risks related to product quality and in-
formation leak. The Risk Management Committee verifies the
risk management system’s im;ﬂrovement and implementation

and reports the status to the CEO and the Board of Directors.

In addition, the Disclosure Committee was established to
undertake deliberations pertaining to information disclosure,
including content and timing, to ensure important corporate
information will be disclosed in a timely and accurate manner.
internal Audit Division
The Company has established the Corporate Audit Center
as its. internal auditing division, which audits, evaluates, and
makes recommendations on compliance and internal control
systems etc. The Corporate-Audit Center also conducts audits
on topics such as quality, the environment, and infarmation
security. Audit results are reported not only to the CEQ and

CFO, but also to the Audit & Supervisory Board Members and

the Audit & Supervisory Board. In-addition, the Company has

1 https:/global.canonfenfir/strategies’governance.html
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established a system in-which reports are also regularly given
. 1o putside directors and those outside directors can request
submission of proposals to the Board of Directors,-as necessary.

“Details of Canon Inc.’s corporate governance structiire are available on the Company's website under “an overview of Corporate Governance at Canor Inc.”
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GENERAL

,' -‘:The fo!!owmg d:scussron and analysrs prowdes rnformatron
- that management believes to be relevant fo understanding " /
" Canon's consolidated financial condition and results of opera-, . .

- tigns. References in thss discussion to the ”Company” arefo
" Carion Inc: and,, unless otherwrse indicated; neferences to'the =
,-,,‘fmancral condition or operatlng results of “Canon” refer to
' 'Canon Inc and Jts consohdared subsrd;anes & -

. OVERVIEW. L - =
*.". “Canon js.one of the worid‘s leadmg manufacturers of ofﬂce

\’Canon garns revenues pnmanly from the manufacture and " '
« 'sale‘of these products domestrcaliy and mternatlonally
«+ Canon's basic management policy is to contribute-to the

'muhrfunctlcn devrces ("MFDs"), laser printers, inkjet printers,

cameras medrcal equrpment and- lrthography equrpment

o ’ prospenty and well-being of the world while endeavorlng to.

. "Emnomlc envrronment LTI Sk
S 'Looklng back at 2021, the global economy contrnued to - _
. recover as movement restrictions were graduaﬂy eased and
- the rollout of vaccines worldwide encouraged resumption.of _
. econemic actwmes However produc’non activity stagnated
“oduetoa resurgence of coronavirus. disease ("COViD -19")
" irifections; In:addition, the global shortage of semiconductor -

become a truly excellent global corporate group ta rgetmg

_“continued. growth iand development
.~ .. Canon divides its businesses into four segments the Pnntmg;
Busnness Unit, the Irnagmg Business Unit, the Medlcal Busmess e
e Unrz and the Industnai and Others Bustness Unit. - o

o lchlps and the’ dtsruptlon in Iogrst;c and distribution channels

#%" dueto high demand became a serious issue in the second half-
. - of the year. In the United States, economic recovery advanced
asa résult of the increased personar consump‘non and expan- ;
- sion of capital mvestmem through ecanomic measures. I’
‘Europe, restrictions on economic activities were eased in each-
. “country, with increasing personal consumptron and expansron :
.~ of capital investrvient leading to a ‘steady economic recovery. In
- Chma, personai consumption and exports continued fo grow :
. steadr!y desplte sluggish infrastructure investment. In other

emerging countnes economic recovery was modest dueto -

. stagnant economic activity caused by the spread of covip-1 9
) ,mfectrons, mamiy in'India and Southeast Asia.in Japan eco~

" noriic recovery remamed moderate due to the prolonged

: S State of Emergency

' Market envrronment s <, '
- Amid these conditions, in the markets in whlch Canon oper— Ly
. -ates; demand for: products remamed sofid, despite the impact . -
- .- of ther shortage of semiconductor chlps in the second half
- of the  year. Demand for offrce MFDs continued to recover..
~For laser pnnters demand remarned at the same level as-. ~ -
 the previous: year. For- mkjet printers, demand in home use
. "’remained solid. For cameras, demand remained solid, marnly

N in: rnlrrorless cameras For medlca] equrpment desprte de!ays

"'-~3g"
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in the rnstaltanon of medlcal devrces in some areas due to the
" resurgence of cowt 1D-19 infections, recovery contlnued thanks -
* 1o the return of routine examinations at’ medical instifutions

compared with the previous year, in which: COVID-19 testi ng

- was pnontlzed For hthography equrpment demand for semi-

conductor lrthography equipment continued amid favorable

o market conditions and flat pana! drsplay (“FPD") lrthography
"+ ;eguipment remained solid:. -

+The dverage value of the yen for the year was ¥1 09.93

’ "agarns‘t the U.S. dollar, a year-on-year depreoatzon of approxi-

mately. ¥3, and ¥129.94 against the euro, .a year- on-year

)deprecra’non of approxxmately ¥8

o “Summary of operatrons S
"7In 2021, unit ‘sales of office MFDs were above those of the
©_previous year, despite the shortage of semiconductor chips in
. -the second half of the year. Sales of services and consumables
‘moderately recovered due to the gradual increase in employ-
ees returning to the office and resulting demand for related
. services:and consumables. As for the Prosumer consisting of
laser printers and inkjet printers, unit sales were below those
. of the previous year due to the stagnation of production :
_+ - activity resulting from a resurgence of COVID=19 mfect!ons in - .
: '»_j‘Southeast Asia, However, unit of sales of laser pnnter consum-
" ables increased significantly compared with the previous year, -

dunng whrch demand had decreased. For. mterchangeable—
lens digital cameras, unit sales remained at around the same

- level as.the previous year due to the shortage of semiconduc-
" tor chips, despite continued strong sales of full-frame mirror-
- less cameras_ As for network cameras, which are being used
Cina growing range of applications, sales rncreased due to the
;,strengthenmg of sales activities. For medical equipment, sales
“increased mainly in Japan and Nofth America due to strong
" sales of computed tomography (*CT") systems and diagnostic
- Ultrasound systems as a result.of recovering demand in key
" markets and government's support for medical institutions. -
. While unit sales for semiconductor Elthography equipment
e rémained solid, unit sales for FPD lithography equipment were
i srgmﬂcantiy above those of the previous year, when equip-
- ment installation stagnated due to circumstances related to
“COVID-19. Under these conditions, net sales for the year
: imcreased by 11.2% year-oh-year to ¥3,513, 357 miflion. Gross . .
o pmﬂt to net sales ratio increased by 2.8 points to 46.3%, due
o recovery of semces and consumables, increase in prices,’
expansion of highly profitable products and currency exchange

rate fluctuations, despite the increase of cost due to higher

- prices of semiconductor chips-and resin materials. Gross profit’

for the year increased by 18.3% year-on-year to ¥1,627,792

‘million. Operating expenses increased by.6.4% year-on-year
" to ¥1,345,874 million, mainly due to the'i increase of payroli
* cost, advertising cost, forwarding cost and R&D cost as a

result of a rebound from the previous year, when sales activi-

7. ties were severely restricted due to the spread of COVID-19
, *,and currency exchange rate fluctuations. However, operating’
5 expense percentage |mproved srgnrfrcantly from 40.0% to
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38.3% thanks to the results of structural reform and group-~
wide improvements in productivity. As a result, operating
profit increased by 155.0% year-on-year to ¥281,918 million.
Other income {deductions) increased by ¥1,055 million year-
on-year to-¥20,788 million, due to such factors-as valuation
gain.on securities, while income before income taxes increased
by 132.4% year-on-year to ¥302,706 million and net income
attributable to Canon Inc. increased by 157.7% year-on-year
to ¥214,718 million. Basic net income attributable to Canon
Inc. sharéholders per share was ¥205.35 for the year, a year-
on-year increase of ¥125.98.

Total assets increased by ¥125,274 mllhon to ¥4,750,888
million at December 31, 2021, compared with the end of
previous year, mainly due to an increase of inventories result-
ing from difficulty in procuring parts and recovery production
to supplement product supply due to reduced operating rates
at.production sites, and an increase of goodwill due to the
acquisition of Redlen which play an important role in PCCT
development, In addition, under the new five‘year manage-
ment plan, Phase Vi, of the “Excellent. Global Corporation

Plan” which started from 2021, Canon:regards thorough-cash

flow management as one of its priority items, and is reinforc-
ing its financial health, In 2021, under management plan,
Canon is comprised of the refinancing and the repayment
of loans which was provided for the acquisition of Toshiba

‘Medical Systems Corporation {currently, Canon Medical

Systems Corporation} resulting in the decrease of long-term
loans by ¥170.0 billion. Under these conditions, total liabili-
ties decreased by ¥189,114 million to ¥1,652,459 million at
December 31, 2021, compared with the end of previous year,
mainly due to a decrease of short-term loans and current
portion of long-term debt. Total equity increased by ¥314,388
million to ¥3,098,429 million at December 31, 2021, com-
pared with the end of previous year, mainly due to an increase
in retained earnings resulting from a significant increase in
profit and an increase in accumulated other comprehensive
incomé due to the depreciation of the yen. Under these condi-
tions, Canon Inc. shareholders” equity as a percentage of total
assets increased by 4.8 points to 60.5%.

Key performance indicators

The following are the key performance indicators ("KPIs") that
Canon uses in managing its business. The changes from year
1o year in these KPls are set forth in the table shown on-the:
next page. :

Net sales and profit ratio
As Canon pursues the goal to become a truly excellent
global corparation, one indicator upon which Canon’s man-
agement places strong emphasis is revenue. The following
are some of the KPls related to revenue that management- -
considers to be important.

Net sales is one such KPl. Canon derives net sales pnmar-
ily from the sale of products and, to a lesser extent, provision
of services associated with its products. Sales vary depending:

FQ?POF&A E DATA
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on such factors as product demand. the nqmber and size-of )
transactions within the reporting period, market acceptance
for new products, and changes in sales prices. Other factors

involved are-market share and market environment. Inaddi- .

tion, management considers the evaluation of net sales by
product to be important for'the purpose of assessing Canon’s
sales performance in various products takmg mto account

_recent market trends.

Gross profit to net sales ratio is another KPi for Canon
Under the basic policy of Phase VI, Canon has been consis-
tently strengthening business competitiveness and striving to
provide highly profitable products with price competitiveness.

Furthermore, Canon promotes cost reductmn initiatives-across

the Canon Group through in-house productlon and automa-

tion of assembly processes which integrate the three functions -
of design, production technology and manufacturing. Canon

will continue to actively take these measures to improve
Canon’s gross profit to net sales ratio.
Operating profit to net sales ratio, income before income

taxesto net sales ratio, and R&D expense to net sales ratio are .

considered to-be KPis by Canon. Canon is focusing on:two

-areas for improvement. Canon is striving to control and reduce

its selling, general and administrative expenses as ts first key
point. Secondly, Canon's R&D policy is designed to maintain
adequate spending in core technology to sustain Canon’s: -
leading position'in its cutrent business areas-and to exploit

- opportunities in other markets. Canon believes such invest- '

ments will create the basis for future success in |+s business
and opera-‘uons :

Cash flow management

Canon also places significant emphasis on cash flow manage- ,

ment. The following are the KPIs relating to cash flcw man- ‘

agement that Canon’s management believes to be important.
Inventory turnover measured in days is a KPl because it mea-

sures the efficiency of supply chain management. Inventories

* have inherent risks of becoming obsolete, physically damaged

or otherwise decreasing significantly in value, which may
adversely affect Canon's bperating results: To mitigate these

risks; management believes that it is crucial to continue reduc- -

ing work-in-process inventories by decreasing production lead
times in order to promptly recover refated product expenses,
while balancing risks of supply chain disruptions by optimizing
finished goods inventories in order to avoid losmg potentnal '
sales opportunities. -

The debt to total assets ratlc is'also one of 1he KPls, Fora

. manufacturing company like Canon, it generally takes cansid-
‘grable time to realize profit from a business due to lead times

required for R&D, manufacturing and sales. Therefore, man-
agement believes that it is impertant to have sufficient finan- -
cial strength. Canon will continue to reduce its dependency on
external funds for capital investments in favor of generatmg
the necessary funds frony its own operations.

Canon Inc.shareholders’ equity to total asse'rs ratio is
another KPI for Canon. Canon belzeves that its shareholders
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P ’eqmty to total assets ratio measuyes ITS Iong-term sustam~
- ability: Canon. also beheves that achieving a high or rising - )
b shareho!ders equn:y rat:o mdlcates that Canon has rnamtamed
@ strong fmanc:al position.or further improved its ability to .

furid debt obhgatlms and other unexpected expenses. Inthe’

' eqwty ratio wall enabie Canon m mamtam a high {evel of

" stable investments for its future operations and development.
-As Canon puts sfrong emphasrs on its R&D activities, manage-

*.ment believes that it is important to maintain-a stable financial

- base and, accon:lmgly, a hlgh levet of its sharehoiders equaty

. to total assets ratao : :

: ‘long-term, Canorxs management beheves a hxgh shareholders -

- KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

2021 . 2020 . 2019 2018 . 2017

«_Net sales (M.z ions’ of yen) 3,513,357 3,160,243 3,593,299 3,951,937 4,080,015
,>;Gross profqt to. ‘et sales- ratio’ U 463% 435% 448%. . A6.4% - 48.8%
 R&D expense to nt sales ratio 82% 86% < .83%  80% . 82%

W AOperatmg profit to nét sales ratio 80% . 35%. . 48% . 87% 7.9%
*Income before incofme taxes to net sales ratio. , 86% 1 41% " 5.4% 92% - BI%
“‘l.lnventow turnover measured m days 66 days <. g0days 59 days - - 56 days 49 days- »
. Debt to total assets ratio B . < o ss%’?*f - 10.9% _1;5.8% L 82% . 102%

" Canon Inc. shareholders equzty to total assets ratlo 60 5%. 55, ‘}’%1"- . 56.3% ; 57 5% 545'.}1 %

R CRITICAL ACCOUNT!NG POLlClES AND ESTIMATES K

. Nates 1 Inventmy tumover measured irv days- s determined by lnventory dlvtded hy riat sales for the pravious $ix mo'\ths mumplled by 182.5,-

2 The increase of the debt 1o total assets ratio In 2019 'was primarily due to adopting Accounting: Standards Update (“ASU") No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic
842) Section A, The' company ‘includes current operating ]ease kablltty and ‘noncurrent operatmg Iease hahlhty as the deht since 2019: if this factor were
_-excluded, the debt to fotal assets rativ in 2019 ¢ i5 8.6%:.
3. The decrease of the Carion Inc. shareholders' equxty to total assets rsmo in 2019 was pﬂmamy r.iue to adopting ASU No 2&15—02 Leases (Tapic 842)
_ Section-A. The company includes operating lease nght—af»use assets in total assets since 2019 If thls factor were exduded Canon Inc. shareholders’
. -equity o total assets ratic 15 57.9%:; ' '
4. Canon adop’(ed Asy No. 2017-07 from the: quar’(er begmnlng January 1, 2018, The adophon af the new presentatlnn requirement of the service cost
“cotnponent and, the other. ccompunents of net benefit cost resulted in reclassmcahon from cost of sales, and selling; general and admimstratlve expenses.
"~ and research anﬂ deveiopment expenses: into other income (deduchons) for the year ended December 31 2017,
5 Certain fngures for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2018, 2018 ‘and 2017 presented in the table ahove have beer revised from the versions prew
“ously disdosed: Dunng “the year ended December 31,2020, Canon corrected an immaterial errorin its. previously® issued consolidated financial statements®
- relatéd to accountmg for the Company‘s and domestic subsidiaries’ mmpensated ‘absence cafryforward as dlsclosed in the prevnous fiscal. year, For further

de’ratls, p{easae refer to Note 1 (y of the Nates to Consohdated Fmancnal Stztements

The consolidated finandial statements are prepared in accor -

* dance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles . .
" (U, .GAAP") and based on the selection and application of -
_ significant accountmg policies which require management to.
" make ssgmﬁcant ‘estimates and assumptions, These estimates
.and assumptions include future. market conditions, net sales .
- gfowth rate; gmss margin and dlscount rate. Though Canon -
" -believes that the. estamates and asstimptions are reasonable,

o, .actual future results may’ differ from these estimates and

: assumptlons in addlt;on -new ‘waves of COVlD 19 infections X
are being seen in some ‘regions, and.itis still difficult to predict-
" “when CO\HD—19 will be brought under control. However, each
. country and region continues to pursue infection controt and
) acceierate economic acﬁvu’ﬂes Actual results and outcomes ™
may differ fn:)m managements ‘estimates and assumptrons due, :
+ with customer. acceptance provisions related to their function-
- ality including certain medical equipment such as CT systems
E and MR systems, ahd lithography equ:pment such as semicon=
. .ductor and FPD lithography equipment, is. recogmzed when
*. . the equipment is mstaned at the customer site and the agreed-
- t’upon specaflcatlons are objectively satisfied and confirmed.

1o risks and uncertamt:es including uncertamty inthe-current
economic enwronment tri ggered by COVID-19. Canori believes

.+ that the fol lovmng are the more ritical judgment areas in’ the‘
. . .- application of its acccun’cmg pohcnes that currently affect |ts ;
-fmanc&al condrtson and resulfs of operatlons o y

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021~ -

= Revenue recogmtlon

- Canon generates revenye through the sale of products of the
.+ +Printing Buysiness Unit; the Imaging Business Unit, the Medical
- Business Unit and the Industrial and Others Unit, supplies and

related services under separate contractual arrangements,

*Revenue is recognized when, oras, control of promised goods
. or services transfers to customers in an amount that reflects
“the consnderat;on to which Canon expects to be entitled in:
: exchange for transferring’ ‘these goods or. services.

“Revenue from sales of products of the Printing Business .

: fUmt such as office MEDs, laser printers and inkjet printers,

. ’and tbe Imaging Business Unit, such as digital cameras, is pri-
' 'manty recagnized upon shipment or delivery, dependmg upon
“when the customer obtains controls of these products.

Revenue from sales of equipment of the Medical Business
Unit and the lndustr:a ‘and Others Business Unit that are sold

Most of Canon’s sefvice révenue is 'generated from mainte- -

i . nance service in the products of the Printing Business Unit and



BUSINESS SEGMENTY

STRATESY CIRMORATE STRUCTURE

the Medical Business Unit which is recognized over time. For
the service contracts of the products of the Printing Business
Unit, the customer typically pays-a variable amount based on
usage, a stated fixed fee or a stated base fee plus a variable
amount which frequently include the provision of consumables
as well as break fix activities. The majority portion of service
revenue from the products of the Printing Business Unit is rec-
ognized as billed since the invoiced amount directly-correlates
with the value to the customer of the underlying performance
obligation to date. For the service contracts of the products of
the Medical Business Unit, the customer typically pays a stated
fixed fee for the stand ready maintenance service and revenue
is recognized ratably over the contract period.

The majority of service arrangements for the products of
the Printing Business Unit are executed in combination with
related products. Transaction prices for products and services
need to be allocated to each performance obligation on a
relative standalone selling price basis where judgements are
required. Canon estimates the standalone selling price using a
range of prices that would meet the allocation cbjective based
on all the information that is reasanably available including
market conditions and other abservable inputs. if transaction
prices of the product or service contracts are not within the
acceptable range, then-the revenue is subject to allocation
based on the estimated standalone selling prices. Canon
recognizes the incremental costs of obtaining a contract as an
expense when related products of the Printing Business Unit
are sold;

Revenue from sales of certain industrial equipment whxch
do not have alternative use and for which Canon has enforce-
able right to payment to the customers for the performance
completed to date is recognized over time with progress
towards completion measured using the cost based input
method as the basis to recognize revenue and an estimated
margin. Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted con-
tracts are made in the period in which such losses become evi-
dent. Changes in job performance, job conditions, estimated
margin and final contract settlements may result in revisions to
projected costs and revenue and are recognized in the period
in which the revisions to estimates are identified and the
amounts.¢an be reasonably estimated. Factors that may affect
future project costs and margins include, production efficien-
cies, availability and costs of labor and materials. These factors
can impact the accuracy of Canon's estimates and materially
impact future reported revenue and cost of sales.

The transaction prices that Canon is entitled to receive in
exchange for transferring goods or setvices to the customer
include certain forms of variable consideration, induding prod-

uct discounts, customer promotions and volume-based rebates -

mainly for the products of the Imaging Business Unit, which
are sold pradominantly through distributors and retailers.

- Canon includes estimated amounts in the transaction price

only to the extent it is probable that a significant reversal of
curmulative revenie recognized will not occur when the uncer-
tainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved.

FINANCIAL SECTION - ] - CORFORATEDATA

Variable considerations are estimated based upon historical
trends and other known factors at the time of sale, and are
subsequently adjusted in each period based on current infor-
mation. In addition, Canon may provide a right of return on its

praducts for a short time period after a sale. These rights are -

accounted for as variable consideration when determining the

transaction price, and accordingly Canon recognizes revenue: '
baséd on the estimated amount to whichCanon expects to be :

entitled after considering expected returns.

Taxes collected from customers and remitted to governmen-
tal authorities are excluded from revenues in the consohdated »

statements of income.

Allowance for credit Iosses :
Allowarnice far credit losses for trade and finance recewables
js maintained for all custorners based.on ASC 326 “Financial -
Instruments — Credit Losses,” consideringvvarious factors, .
induding aging analysis, macroeconomic conditions and.
historical experience. An additional reserve for individual
accounts is recorded when Canon becomes aware of a cus:
tomer’s inability to meet its financial obligations, such as in the
case of bankruptcy filings: If circumstances related to cus-
tormers change, estimates of the recovérability of receivables
would be further adjusted. When all collection options.are
exhausted including legal recourse, the-accounts or portions

~therecf are deemed 1o be uncol!ectab[e and charged against

the allowance.

Valuation of inventories : :
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net reallzable
value. Cost is determined by the average method for domes-
tic inverttories and principa{!y'the'f{rstyin, first-out method

for averseas inventories. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the esti-
mated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary

‘to make a sale. Canon routinely reviews its inventories for

their salability and for indications of obsolescence to deter-
mine if inventories should be written down to market value.
ludgments and estimates must be made and used in con-
nection with establishing such allowances in any accounting
period. In estimating the net realizable value of its inventories,
Cancn considers the age of the inventories and the likelihood
of spoilage or changes in market demand for its inventories.

Impairment of long-lived assets S
Long-lived assets; such as property, plant and equment
and acquired intangibles subject to amortization, are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in:

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an-asset -

may not be recoverable. If the i:arryirig amourt of the asset

exceeds its estimated sum of undiscounted future cash flows .

an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the
asset. Determining the fairvalue of the asset mvclves the use
of estimates and assumptions.- - :
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- Property, plant and equlpment o ;
: .-Property plant and equipment are stated at cost. Deprec:a‘mon' g
is calculated pnncnpa!iy by the declining: ba ance method, .

- .except for certain assets wh ich are deprecnated by.the stralght- .
' -~.5me method over the est:mated useful ilves of the assets '
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i Asfor lessox: accountmg, Canon prowdes Ieaszng arrange-
. ment to'its cUstomers’ primarily for the sale of office prc»ducts

Revenue. from the sale of these products urider sales-type -

" ledsesis. recogmzed at the mcepnon of the. [ease Interest "
. _income on sales—type leases and direct- financing leases is
E recogmzed over the hfe of edch respective lease using the
" interest method. Leases not qualifying as sales- -type leases or

direct-financing ieases are accounted foras operating leases

" and related revenue is recogntzed ratably over the lease term. .
'When product Eeases are bundled with maintenance contracts 240

revenue is allocated based upon the estirnated standalone .

- selling’ pnces of the }ease and nan-léase components Lease .
~components generatly include product and fmancmg while
-nan-lease companents generally consist of maintenance

©..contracts and supplies. Sorme of the contracts include op’uons

o extend or to terminate the lease. Canan takes such options « .

" into actount to determtne the lease term, when it is réason- - °

_ably certain that the custemers will exercise these options, The
~ majority of Canon’s lease contracts do not contam bargam
L purchase options for their customers.

As for lessee account!ng, Canon has operatmg and fmance ‘

: Jleases for various assets mdudlng office. buildings, ware- -
houses employees accommodattons -and vehicles, Canon ‘
h ‘determinés if' an arrangement is.a lease at the inception.

. of each contract Some of ‘che contracts include options to .

extend or, to terminate the lease. -Canon takes such options

- into accountsto. determl ne the lease term when it is reasoni- -
. ably certain that-it will exercise these optaons Canon’s lease -

arrangements do not contain material residual value guar- -

- anteés or material restrictive covenants. As a rate implicit in
- most of Canon’s leases cannot be detérmined, Canon uses

‘incremental borrowing rate based on the information available.
~ at commencement to determ[ne the present values of Iease '

paymems Canon has Iease contracts with lease and non-lease

e components which are accounted: for: separately. Canori allo-
“cates the consideration in the lease contract to the lease and
] non-lease ccmponents based upon the estimated standalone -
. -prices. Costs associated wuth operatmg Iease assets are. recog- .
=n|zed ona strasght—hne basns over the term of the Iease ‘

Busmess combmatlons AN :
'Acqunsmons are accounted for using the acqulsmon method of.
_accounting. The acquisition method of accounting reqmres the .
 identification and measurement of all acquired tangible and
. mtangible assets and assumed liabilities at their respective fair
- values, as of the acquisition date. The determination of the fair -

value of net assets acquired involves mgnn‘n:ant judgment and
estimates, such as future cash flow projections; appropnate

- discolint and capitalization rates and other estimates based on
avas!ab[e market information; Estimates of future cash flows
. -are based on’a number of factors including operating results,
" known and antnc&pated trends as well as market and eco—
= NOMIC: cond tions.. : ‘

Gond\mll and other mtanglble assets

" Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are- not amartized, but are instead tested for |mpa|rment
- annualiy in the fourth quarter of each year, or more frequently
* if indicators of pojrentlal impairmenit exist. All goodwill is
L assigned to the reporting unit or units that benefit from the

-_Synergies ansmg from each busingss: combma’aon If the
.- carrying amount asggned ta'the reporting unit exceeds the

fair value of the repurtmg unit, Canon recogriizes an lmpalr-
ment. charge in an amount equal to that excess, hmlted 1o

* the total amount of goodwill allacated to that reparting unit.

' Fairvalug of a reporting unit is determmed primarily based on
" the discounted cash flow analysis which involves estimates of
- ‘projected future cash flows and discount rates. Estimates of -

projected future cash flows are pnr'nariiy based on Canon’s
forecast of future growth rates. Estimates of discount ratesare . .
. détermined based on the wecghted average cost of capital,
“which considers primarily rarket and industry data as well

as specific risk factors.-Canon has completed its impairment ’

“test in the fourth quarter of 2021 and determined that there
: ' were no reportmg units that were at risk of failing the impair-
- ment. test-as the fair value of each reporting unit substantially

exceeded its respective carrying amount. However, with regard

p tor goodwnll attnbuted to the Medical Reporting Unit, fair

values in excess of reported carrying values as a percentage is

_ lower than other reporting units. As a result, a future reduc-

_tion in cash flows of the related business; could tngger an -

* impairment. The' goodwni! related to this reporting unit as of

.. December 31 2021 is ¥537,183 million. Future cash flows for
‘the Medical Reporting Unit were based on a mid-term man-

agement plan that considered the future market growth of -

" medical equipment and growth in-geographies where Canon
s operates its medical business:Intangible assets with finite

useful lives consist pnmanly of software, trademarks patents '

: and develeped technology, license fees and customer relation-
 ships, which are amortized using the stra:ght—lme method. The

estimated useful hves of software are from 3 years to 8 years,

- tradernarks are 15 years, patents and developed technology

are-from 5 years to 21 years, license fees are 8 years; and cus- -

~_tomer relationships are from 7 years to 15 years, respectively. . .
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Income tax uncertainties

Canon considers many factors when evaluating and estrmat-
ing income tax uncertainties. These factors include an evalu-
ation of the technical merits of the tax positions as well as

" the amounts and probabilities of the outcomes that could

be realized upon settiement. The actual resolutions of those
uncertainties will inevitably differ from those estimates, and
such differences may be material to the financial statements.

Valuation of deferred tax assets

Canon-currently-has significant déferred tax assets, which

are subject to periodic recoverability assessments. Realization
of Canon's-deferred tax assets is prindpally dependent upon
its achievement of projected future taxable income. Canon’s
judgments regarding future profitabitity may change due to
future market conditions, its ability to continue to successfully
execute its operating activities and other factors. Any changes
in these factors may require possible recognition of significant
valuation allowances to reduce the net cartying value of these
deferred tax asset balances. When Canon determines that cer-
tain deferred tax assets may not be recoverable, the amounts,
which-may not be realized, are charged to income tax expense
and will adversely affect net income.

Employee retirement and severance benefit plans
Canon has significant employee retirement and severance
benefit obligations that are recognized.based on actuarial
valuations. Inherent in these valuations are key assumptions,
including discount rates and expected return on plan assets.
Management must consider current market conditions, indlud-
ing changes in interest rates, in selecting these assumptions.
Other assumptions include assumed rate of increase in com-

‘pensation levels, mortality rate, and withdrawal rate. Changes

in assumptions inherent in-the valuation are reasonably likely
to occur from period to period. Actual results that differ
from the assurnptions are accumulated and amortized over
future periods and, therefore, generally affect future pension
expenses. While management believes that the assumptions
used are appropriate, the differences may affect employee
retirement and severance benefit costs in the future.

In preparing its financial staternents for 2021, Canon esti-
mated a weighted-average discount rate used to determine
benefit obligations of 0.5% for Japanese plans and 1.5% for .
foreign plans and a weighted-average expected long-term rate
of return on plan assets of 3.0% for Japanese plans and 4.4%
for foreign plans. In estimating the discount rate, Canon uses
available information about rates of return on high-quality
fixed-income government and corporate bonds currently
available and expected to be available during the period to.
the maturity of the pension-benefits. Canon establishes the

FINANCIAL SECTION

expected long-term rate of return on plan assets based on
management’s expectations of the long-term return of the

various plan asset catedories in which it invests. Management. .

develops expectations with respect to-each plan asset category
based on actual historical returns and its current expectatmns
for future returns.

Decreases in discount rates lead to increases in actuarial
pension benefit obligations which, in turn, could lead to an . .
increase in service cost and-amortization cost through amor- .
tization.of actuarial gain or loss, & decrease in interest cost,
and vice versa. For. 2021, a-decrease of 50 basis points:in the
discount rate increases the projected benefit obligationby
approximately ¥96,008 million. The net effect of changeés in

* the discount rate, as well as the het effect of other changes in

actuarial assumptions and experience, is deferred until subse- -
quent periods.

Decreases.in expected returns on plan assets may increase
net periodic benefit cost by decreasing the-expected return
amolnts, while differences between expected value and actual
fair value of those assets could affect pension gxpense in the
following years, and vice versa. For 2021, a decrease of 50
basis points in the expected long-term rate of return on plan

-assets would increase approximately ¥5,758 million in net peri-

odic benefit cost. Canon multiplies management’s expected

long-term rate of return on plan assets by the value of its plan .

assets to arrive at the expected return on plan assets that is
included in pension expense. Canon defers recognition of the
difference between this expected refurn on plan assets and -
the attual return on plan assets. The net deferred amount.
affects future pension’ expense.

Canon recognizes the funded status (i.e.; the dtfference
between the fair value of plan assets and the projected benefit
obligations} of its pension plans in its consolidated balance
sheets, with a corresponding adjustment to an accumulatecf ‘
other comprehensive income ([oss) net of tax. ’

_ Envxronmental Llabllltles

Liabilities for envurcnmenta% remediation and other. enwron—

mental costs are accrued when envirarimentat assessments or.

remedial efforts are probable and the costs ¢an be reasonably

- estimated, and are mcludgd in other noncurrent labilities in
the consolidated balance sheets. Such liabilities are adjusted

as further information develops or circumstances change,
Costs of future obligations are not dlscounted to their pres-

. ent values

Recent!y Issued Accountmg Guidance '
Please refer to Note 1 of the thes to Consohdated Fmanc:al
Statements. -
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e CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

- SUMMARY or OPERATIONS

AT Millions of yen .

o 2021 ¢ change .. 2020~ change - . 2019

Netsales .. 3,513,357 +11.2% 3,160,243 -12.1% 3,593,299

.. Products and Equupment . . 2,804,680  +12.6% 2,489,829 ' -122% ~ 2,835,428

o Services 708,677 +57% . 670414 -115% . 757,871
L Operatmg proflt 281,918 +155.0% . 110,547 -36.6% 174420
. " “income before income taxes S 302,706 +1324% 130,280° -33.4% - 195,493

Net income’ attnbutable to'Canon Inc, . - 83,318 -333% .

$157.7% - 124,964

,«Nate: See note t'di/K,E'Y,PEkRFpRMANCE INDICATORS . -

. Saies S
< Inthe current busmess term ona global baszs the ecenomic
.o recovery contmued In such an environment, although pro-"~
- duction activity stagnated due to a resurgence of COVID-19 -
. infections and a shortage of semiconductor chips, Canon's
. consolidated net sales in 2021: ta‘ca!ed ¥3,513,357 million, -~
.o mcrease of 11 2% from the previous year largely dugto’
e a recovery of demand in each segment. Net sales of prod-- -~
.- ucts and equipment totaled ¥2,804,680 mil llion,” ayear-on-
- year. mcrease of 12. 6% wh:le net sales of services totaled
:,WOS 677 mlHlon, a year-on-year increase of 5.7%.

. ‘Overseas operations are significant to Canon’s npera‘ang ,
results and generated 76.4% of total net sales in 2021. Such

; ,Vsales are dencmmated in the apphcable local currencies and
are stbject to ﬂuctuat&ons in the vakue of the s yen relative to -
- 1those currencies. Despite efforts t0. reduce the impact of cur-
. rency ﬂuctuations on. operatmg results, including focalization *
o -of manufacturmg in some regions along with procuring parts
- and materials from:overseas suppllers Canon behefves such ‘
: ';ﬂuctua’aons have had and will continue to. have a sngmflcant .
: 'effect on its results of operations,

~The average value of the yen durmg the year was ¥1 09 93

. “against the U.S. dolfar, a year-on-year depreciation of ; approxi-.
» mately ¥3, and ¥129 94 agamst the euro, a year—0n~year

" Return on Sales (%)

= w3

@

20177018 2019 2020 2021 . °
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B deprectatmn of apprommately ¥8 The effects of fore:gn |
" . exchange rate fluctuations positively affected net sales by’ .
..« approximately ¥110,830 million in 2021. This favorable impact

consisted of approximately ¥38, 624 million of favorable

. . impact for the U.S dollar denominated sales and favorable
. impact of ¥47,967 million: for the euro denominated sales,

-and favorable impact of ¥24,239 million for other fore;gn cur-
rency denommated sales.

V ‘.:Cost of sales . : :
£ Cost of sales pnnc&pally reflects the cost of raw materlals, paz‘cs,

and fabor used by Canon'in the manufacture of its products.

oA pomon of the raw materials used by Canon is imported or
" “includes imported materials. Many of these raw materials are

.subject to fluctuations in world market prices accompanied by

‘ * fluctuations.in foreign exchange rates that may affect Canon’s
" cost of sales. ‘Other components of cost of sales include -

- depreciation expenses, maintenance expenses, light and -

*fuel expenses, “and rent expenses In2021, Canon promoted -
. cost reductton such as'a common platform of office MFDs,’
. although' Canon was affected by rising prices of parts and

. materials, mamly semiconductor chips and resin materials, as
- well as by rising transportation costs due to the high demand

for international freight transport., Under these. conditions,
. the ratios of cost of sales to net sales for 2021 and 2020 were
. 53.7% and 56.5%; respectnvely Cost of sales as a percentage

L of net sales decreased by 2.8 pomts

 Gross prof' t ST ‘
...+ Canon's.gross: profitin 2021 lncreased by 18. 3% to
. ¥1,627,792 million from 2020. ‘The gross profzt to net sales

‘ratio also increased by 2.8 points to 46.3%. The increase in. -
the gross proflt and gross profit to net sales ratio were mainly -

- due to the cost reduction men’uoned above, recovery of ser-
~ vices and consumables due to a recovery in office occupancy
-~ rates; maintained. levels of sales volumes and price levels for'
0 ‘the EOS RS and EOS R6 full frame mlrrorless cameras, expan-
oo 5|0n of the Imeup to 26 lenses through the addition of 8
* * new products of RF-series interchangeable lenses’ which is a
- . dedicated lens for full-frame m;rrorless cameras and currency
i exchange rate ﬂuctuatlons



BUSINESS SEQMENTS
TORPURATES TRCTURE

Operating expenses

The major compoenents of operating expenses.are payroll,
R&D, advertising expenses and other marketing expenses.
Operating expenses in 2021 increased by 6.4% year on year

. to ¥1,345,874 million, mainly due to a rebound fromy the pre-

vious year, when sales activities were severely restricted due to
the spread of COVID-19 infections and currency exchange rate
fluctuations. However, operating expenses as a percentage of
net sales decreased by 1.7 points to 38.3% due to the pro-
motion of structural reform of sales organizations, as well as
reducing business trips through the use of video conferencing
systems. As a result, Canon managed to appropriately control
expenses in response to the growth in net sales and to control
the grcwth of expenses.

Operating proﬁt

Operating profit in 2021 increased by 155.0% from 2020 to
a total of ¥281,918 million. The operating profit to net sales
ratio increased by 4.5 pointsto 8.0% from 2020. '

Other income {deductions)

Other income (deductions) for 2021 was ¥20,788 million, an
increase of ¥1,055 million from 2020 mainly due to such fac-
tors as valuation gain on securities.

Income before income taxes

Income hefore income taxes in 2021 was ¥302, 706 million,
an-increase of 132.4% from 2020, and constituted 8.6% of
net sales.

‘Income taxes

Income: taxes in 2021 increased by ¥37,529 million from. 2020,
The effective tax rate for 2021 was 23.7%, which was lower
than.the statutory tax rate in Japan. This resulted from a com-
bination of factors such as the increase in tax credits of R&D
expenses, the lower effective tax rates at foreign subsidiaries
compared to the statutory tax rate in Japan and the reversal

of the valuation allowances recognized by foreign subsidiaries
owing to the improvement of the entities' profitability.

Net income attributable to Canon Inc.

As-a result, net income attributable to Canon Inc. in 2021
increased by 157.7% to ¥214,718 million, which represents
6.1% of net sales. Net income attributable to Capon Incias
a percentage of net sales increased by 2.6 points from 2019
before COVID-19 infections due to the structural refarm-and
measuires to-improve profitability.

FINANCIAL SECTIéN CIIRPORATE CATE ;

Segment information '
Canon operates four segments: the Pnntmg Busmess Unit,
the Imaging Business Unit, the Medical Business Unit and the
Industrial and Others Business Unit.

» The Printing Business Unit mainly |ncludes Office MFDs /o

Document solutions./ Laser MFPs./ Laser printers /

Inkjet printers./ Image scanners./ Calculators / -

Digital continuous feed presses / Dlg‘tal sheet- fed presses /
Large format printers

¢ The Imaging Business Unit malnly mcludes
Interchangeable-lens digital cameras /

Interchangeable lenses / Digital compact cameras /
Compact photo printers / Netwark cameras /

Video management software / .

Video content analytics software / Dugnal camcorders /
Digital cinema cameras / Broadcast equipment /
Multimedia projectors ‘ '

» The Medical Business Unit mamiy xncludes CT systems /
Diagnostic ultrasound systems / Diagnostic X-ray systems:/
MR systems / Clinical chemistry analyzers / s
Digital radiography systems / Ophthalmic equipment

* The Industrial and Others Business Unit mainly includes
Semiconducter lithography equipment / FPD lithography
equipment / OLED display manufacturing equipment/
Vacuum thin-film deposition equipment / Die bonders / .
Handy terminals / Document scanners ‘

Operating results by segment .
Please refer to the table of sales by segment in Note 23 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Within the Printing Business Unit, unit sales of office MFDs
increased compared with the previous year as.the imageRUN-
NER ADVANCE DX series saw solid demand and demand for
MFDs continued to recover despite the shortage of semicon-
ductor chips. Sales of services and consumables increased

. due to a recovery in office occupancy rates. For equipment

in the production printing market, the varioPRINT.iX series of
high-speed sheet-fed color inkjet presses earned favorablé
reviews, and sales of services and consumables increased due

- to therecovery: As for laser printers, unitsales decreased

compared with the previous year due to stagnation of pro-
duction activity resulting from the resurgence of COVID-19
infections in Southeast Asia. However, sales of consumables

increased significantly compared with the previous year, dur-

ing which time demand had decreased. For inkjet printers,
unit sales were below those of the previous year due to stag-
nation of praduction activity in Southeast Asia. However, unit
sales of refillable ink tank printers were above those of the:
previous year due to solid global demand. Total saleswere
above those of the previous year due to a focus on higher- .
priced models. In addition, proﬂtab lity improved due to a
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"cost reductlon as a result of common platfcrmtzatnon and

product miix as-a result of i increase of service profit due to a

S recoveryin: ofﬂce occupancy rates, although opérating costs g
- i mcreased dugtoa rebound from the previous year, whien
o sales activities were severeiy restncted due to the spread-of
- COViD«1 9. These factors resulted in total sales for the busi--
~ness unit of ¥1 938,847 million, a° ‘year-on-year ifcrease-
of 7.4%, whi le-income before income taxes 1ncreased by
'53.1%" year~0n-year 10 ¥232,952 million. ' s
- - Asfor the Imaging Business Unit, unit sales of mterchangeable~
.. lens digital cameras were the same level as the preious year, -
e despite the shortage of semmnductor chips. The price level. .
- was mam‘tamed even after more than a year sirice the EOS.
" RS and EOS R6full-frame mrrrarless carmeras were released.
Iy 'addition, um’c sales of RF-series mterchangeabie jenses
: 'mcreased significantly. due to the synergastm effects with the

cameras. As for network cameras, despite. the continued

. impact of COVED 19, sales increased mainly as a result of

o strengthemng sales activities for such’ diversified apphcatxons
" .as monitoring of congested and conflned spaces as well.as

T 0m

40

* conventional markat needs including crime prevention and.
. disaster monitoring tools. In addition, prefltablllty |mproved
- "due to the-accelerated shtft to hcghly profitable products -
o stich as-EOS R system cameras and intercharigeable. lenses, -
, -‘although operatmg costs’ mcreased due to arebound from:
L the previous yéar, when sales activities were severely restricted -
h due to the spread of COVID-19.. These factors resulted in total "
. sales for the business unit of ¥653 532 million, a year-on-- W
-year increase of 20.7%, whlle income before income taxes -
S »rncreased by 1,484.5% year- on-year to ¥78,462 million, .
As for the Medlcal Busmess Umt a!though the resurgence i

Sales: by Segment (silions ofiyer).): a

4,000
3,000 .
. ] Prmsmg
B i Imaglng
"E Medical

L= SN

& Bliminations
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of COV!D 19 mfec’aons and the shortage of semlconductor .

= chlps and shipping cantainers had an- impact on production -
.and installation, sales: remained solid due to returning routine

“ exarminations at medical institutions. Sales of CT systems and
- diagriostic ultrasotind systems increased mainly due to capi-
* talizing on opportunities with medical institutions in Japan.

" supported by the government and recovering demand in the -
..~ North America. In addition, profitability improved due to a cost
‘ reduct[on as a restilt of voluime discount based on business

‘ ,expansnon ' These factors resulted in‘total sales for the busmess

unit of ¥480,362 million, a year-on-year increase of 10. 2%,

. while i income befcre income taxes increased by 34.3% year-
*_on-yearto ¥34 296 million, recordmg highs for both sales and
" income before iricome taxes for the Medical Business Unit.

As for the Iridustrial and Others Business Unit, regardmg
semlconductor Itthography equipment, unit sales increased

* compared with the previous year due to strong demand in a
. wide range of products such as sensors and memory. For FPD
_ lithography. equipment, demand for panels used in devices
. including laptops, tablets and high-resolution display paneis
- remained strong. As.a result, unit sales increased significantly
- compared with the previous year, when equipment installation

stagnated due to circumstances related to COVID-19. In addi-

tion, these products are mostly manufactured at the domestic - -

manufacturing facilities where impacts of COVID-19 related

* production disruption were very limited resultmg in continuous
“production activities with better cost.reduction: These factors -
‘resulted in total sales for the business unit of ¥545,742 mil-
lion, a year-on-year increase of 18.2%; while income before -
“income taxes totaled ¥44 650 mIHIOH a year—on~year increase
of 105 9% ' ,

) : Sales by Geographac Area (Billions ofyen)_ o
5,000 r

W Japan

T W Americas

- i Europe

11 Astaand Oceania
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T ORFORATE DTS

STRATEGY CORPORATE STRUECTURE FINANCIAL SECTION .
SALES BY SEGMENT ;
‘ Millions of yen )
- 2021 change 2020 change 2019
Priniting 1,938,847  +7.4% 1804427 -13.8% 2,092,464
Imagirig 653,532 +20.7% . 541,314 ~-182% 661,706
Medical 480,362 +10.2% 436,074 0.6% . 438,525
industrial and Others 545,742 418.2% . 461,522  -65% - 483,784
Eliminations - (105,126) . — (83,004) — (93,180)
Total 3,513,357 +11.2% 3,160,243  -12.1% 3,593,299

Note: Based on the realignment of Canon's internal reporting and management structure, from: 2021, Canon has changed the name and structure of segments
from Office Business Unit, Imaging System Business Unit, Madical System Business Unit and Industry and Others Business Unit 1o Printing Business Unit,
imaging Business Unit, Medical Business Unit, and Industrial and Others Businéss Unit. Major changes include mioving Inkjet printers from Imaging System
Business Unit to the Printing Business Unit, the same business unit as Office MFDs and Laser MFPs, and moving Network cameras from Industry and Gthers
Business Unit to the imaging Business Unit, the same business unit as Interchangeable-lens digital cameras. Net sales by segmems for the fiscal years ended

Drecember-31, 2020 and 2019 also-have been reclassified:

SALES BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA

Millions of yen .
2021 change 2020 change 2019 -
Japan 830,378  +3.0% 806,305 -7.6% = - 872,534
Americas 968,839 - +13.7% 852451  -17.2% 1,029,078
Europe 894,898 +12.5%  795616. @ -98% . 882480
Asia and Oceania 819,242  +16.1%. 705871  :12.8% . 809,207
Total 3,513,357  +11.2% 3,160,243 -12.1% 3,593,299 .-

Note: This summary of net sales by geographic area is determined by the location where the product is shipped to the customers.. -

Sales by geographic area '
Please refer to the table of sales by geographic area in Note 23
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. :

In Japan, net sales increased by 3.0% from the previous
year mainly owing to an increase in sales of CT systems and
diagnostic ultrasound systems mainly due to capitalizing on
opportunities with medical institutions.

In"the Americas, net sales increased by 13.7% from the
previous year mainly owing 1o an increase in sales of most
products mainly due to the recovery from the decline of the
demand caused by COVID-19.

In Europe, net sales increased by. 12.5% from the previous
year mainly owing to an increase in salés of most products
mainly due to the recovery from the decline of the demand
caused by COVID-19. '

In Asia and Oceania, net sales increased by 16.1% from
the previous year miainly owing to an increase in sales of most
products mainly due to the recovery from the decline of the
demand caused by COVID-19.

FOREIGN OPERATIONS AND FOREIGN CURRENCY
TRANSACTIONS

Canon's marketing activities are performed by subsidiaries in
various regions in local currendies, while the cost of sales is
generally in yen. Given Canon’s current operating structure,
appreciation of the yen has a negative impact o niet sales and
the gross profit to net sales ratio. To reduce the financial risks

from changes in foretgn exchange rates, Canon utilizes deriva-
tive financial instruments, which consist principally of forward
currency exchange contracts,

The operating profit on forengn operation sales is usually :
lower than that from domestic operations because foreign

* operations consist. mainly of marketing activities. Marketing

activities are generally less profitable than: production activi-
ties, which are mainly conducted by the Company and its
domestic subsidiaries. Please refér to the table of geo-
graphicinformation in Note 23 of the No’tes 1o Consolidated

- Financial Statements

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES -
Canon's basic policy for financial strategies is to maintain a

sound financial position through consistent cash flow manage- .

ment, and the two basic pnncrples of cash flow management

~are as follows: -

& Canon strives to lmprove ‘a highly profxtable structure by
further improving the profitability of existing businesses and
accelerating the growth of new businesses.

« Canon strives to maintain financial soundness by keeping
total capital investments for medium-term business expan-
sion and growth within the range of depreciation and amor-
tization expenses. However, Canon plans to actively engage
in large-scale M&A for growth strategies, and also raises -
external funds as needed ’
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S Canonis basncai!y‘fun_ded by ﬂet cash promded by opera‘ung

"act\mEs o procur fig funds. Canon considers. terms, currenctes ;

. and methods in fight of fmanaal market condmnns, and selects

: *:the most appmpnate mstrument from a vanety of op‘uons e

,' Use af Funds (Cash—Out}

“The pnnapa* use'of casb is determmad in accordance wv.th the : ‘
o tomers mcreased due 1o sales improvement. There were NG
2 s;gmhcant changes i Canon’s collection rates. Cash putfiow
“for payments for parts and materials mcreased duetoan
: ‘increase of inventory compared with the inventory in fiscal
2020883 result:
-and the disrupttcm in logistic; and distribution ‘channels.
- . outflow for payments for income taxes inc reased due to an
. ncrease in taxable income. -

V'A.fa 1owmg pnontles

mvestment for gmwﬁw such as capttal mvestment R&D
MEA, etc: oo

Canon values M&A as an optzon fnr early de\re opment and
: expansmn of new ‘pusinesses. The selection of investment -

. ‘targets s based on the-growth. po‘centsa i and size of the. -

‘market, and on ther market being highly compatsble wnth the )

_ Canon's husiness domams and technologles
» Return o shareholders: -

- Canon returns profits t© shareholdezs stably and aggfes.-
sweiy mamly inthe farm of a divide nd taking into consid-
“eratioh  riedium- 1 1o jong-tern. busmess prospects, pianned

© future mvestmems “cash flow. and: other factors >

;- Repaymem of borrowmgs e

: - Cahon has been repaymg borrowngs in recent years, 1onow

ing. investment for growt

2021, in pamcutar, Canoh rmade steady progresy in repayment \

of bmovmngs by utilizing ‘et cash provided Dy operating
~activities, which mcreased from the ihe previous fiscal yeaf due to
5\gmf1cant§y \mproved busmess peﬁormance : \

_Cash and cash equwalents der:reased by % 289 mdhon
o ¥401; 395 million in fiscal 202 compared
L year. Canon’s’ cash and cash equwaients are primarity denomi-

nated in Iapanese yen and in
‘denommated in other currenctes

CaSh ﬂaws (Enllmns of yen)

.wm‘g,.w,,...a,.. PAEON Ly

' - Nt cas'n prowded by

.ﬁ Net cash used in
investing actmues ’

y §4Netcashusedm o

SR

e
20\7 2018 2019 20

- cANON ANQUALQ??&RTEZ_E)?‘\ o

“io the pre\'\ou:a year

hand return 10 chareholders. In n fiscal.

to the previous - 3

U S. do\lars thh the remamder a

uperaungacﬂvxhes T

hnancmg “activities o
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Net cash pmvxded by operatmg achwﬁes increased by

¥‘l 17,223 miflion 1o ¥451,028 mif flion in fiscal 2021 compared
due toa significant increase in profit. T
roajor camponent of Canon's cash inflow.is cash received from '
customers, and the majot componems of Canon’s cash out- ‘

“flow are payments for parts and matert als, selting, general and

admmtstra’twe expeﬂses, ‘R&D sxpenses and income faxes.
“for fiscal 2021, cash inflow from cash received from cus-

of the globat shortage, ‘of semlcanductor chips
Cash

. Net cash {sed i investing actmues mcreased by ¥51, 817

> mﬁhon 10 ¥207, 256 miflion i fiscal 2021 paainly due to an

increase in acqunsmons of busingss £ and in payment for pur-

- chases of fixed: 2536tS. Acquzsmons of business increased by
¥31.624 million 10 31,751 million in fiscal 2021 mainly dueto
-/ the acquisition
" developrnent. Purchases of fixed assets increased by ¥12, 631

lan that play. af important role in pcCt

mitlion 10 ¥177,350 ms\hon in fssca& 2021 mam\y due to capi-

| tal ifvestment 10 eithance produc’uon ycapacity and efficiency.

"Major purchases of

~_tion of new production ¢ pase for consolidation and renovation

‘ } at Canon Mold Co-, itd. and capital investrents 10 INCTEase. '

o Comptememary netal Oxide Semiconductor (*CMOS" ) s@nsor -
s productmn capac&ty at Canon Inc., H‘ratsuka plant, etc.

of fixed assets in fiscal 2021 included construc-

Canon: defines "free cash. flow" @5 cash flows from operat-

ng activities fess cash flows from irvesting activities, For fiscal

2021, free cash flow mcreased by ¥65, 406 mil flion 1o ¥243 3,772

‘million.as compared with ¥178,366 aillion for fiscal 2020.

Note: "Free cashi flow™ i a noﬁ-G AAP measuré. fefer o the *Non-GAAP

© financal ) Measures” 5er.twn for the explananon aﬁd the reconcmaﬂan 0 the

reported GAAP prgasure.’

Outstandmg balances of ksans for the acquisition of

| Joshiba Medmal Systems, (:orpora
cal Syste.ms

aﬁcm} (Bmmns of yen}

ndo’f Endaf Endof Endof Endof Endof grdof -
2018 2019 20 20 2021-

. Erdui
2015 arch < 281 5 201?
ST 20180 :
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RUSIHESS SEGMENT

STRATEGY CORPORNTE STRUCTURE

Canon'’s management places importance on cash flow
management and frequently monitors. this indicator.
Furthermore, Canon’s management believes that this indica=
tor is significant in understanding Canon’s current liquidity
and the alternatives of use in financing activities because it
takes into consideration its operating and investing activities
and believes that such indicator is beneficial to investors.
Canon refers to-this indicator together with relevant U.S.
GAAP financial measures shown in-its consolidated state-
ments of cash flows and consolidated balance sheets for
cash availability analysis,

Net cash used in financing activities totaled ¥267,366
miillion in fiscat 2021, mainly due to a decrease of lonig-term .
loans by ¥170,000 million as:a result of the refinancing.and.
the repayment of loans which was provided for the acquisition
of Toshiba Medical Systems Corporation {currently, Canon
Medical Systems Corporation) and the dividend payout of

¥88,891 million, The Company paid dividends in fiscal 2021 of A

¥85.00 per share.

To:the extent Canon relies on external funding for its liquid-
ity-and capital requirements; it generally has access to various
funding sources, including the issuance of additional share
capital, issuance of corporate bond or loans. While Canon
has been able to obtain funding from its traditional financing
soutces and from the capital markets, and believes it will con-
tinue to be able to do so inthe future, there can be no assur-
ancethat adverse economic or other conditions will not affect
Canon’s liquidity or long-term funding in the future.

Canon repaid ¥344,000 milliori of loans due.in December
2021, which was provided for the acquisition of Toshiba
Medical Systems Corporation {currently, Canon Medical
Systerns Corporation). In addition, on December 28, 2021,
Canon entered into a borrowing agreement of ¥174,000
million with Mizuho Bank, Ltd. and MUFG Bank, Ltd. For
further information, please refer to Note 9 of the Notes
1o Consolidated Financial Statements. As a result, short-
term loans (including the current portion of long-term
debt) decreased by ¥347,344 million to ¥44,891 million-at
December 31, 2021 compared with ¥392,235 millior at
December 31, 2020. Long-term debt (excluding the current
portion) increased by ¥174,916 million to'¥179,750 million
at December 31, 2021 compared with ¥4,834 million at
December 31, 2020.

FINANCIAL SECTION CCORPORATE DATA

Carion’s long-term debt mainly canstts of bank borrcmngs
and finance lease obligations.

In order to facilitate access to global capital markets ‘Canon
obtains a credit rating from S&P Global Ratings (“S&P"). In
addition, Canon maintains a rating from Rating and Investment
Information; Inc. ("R&!"), a rating agency in Japan for access 10
the Japanese capital market.

As of February 28, 2022, Canon’s debt ratmgs are: S&P: A
{long-term), A-1 (short-term); and R&: AA {long-term). Canon
does.not have any rating downgrade triggers that would
accelerate-the matirity of a material amount of its debt. A
downgrade in Canon’s credit ratings or:outlook-could, how-
ever; increase the costof its borrowings:

As part of its ongoing business, Canon does not partrmpate
in transactions that create relationships with unconsolidated

entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred

to as structured finance or special purpose entities established
for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements
or other. contractually narrow or hmlted purpc:ses -

- Canon provides guarantees for its empl oyees, affiliates -

“and other companies. The guarantees for the employees are

principally made for their housing loans. The guarantees for
affiliates and gther companies are made for their-lease obliga-

tions and bank loans to ensure:that those compames operate '

with less financial risk.
Canonwould have to perform under a guarantee if the

¥ borrower defaults on a payment within the contract terms.

The contract terms are 1year to 15 years in case of employ- ,

" ees with housing loans, and 1 year to 5 years in case of

affiliates and other companies with lease obligations and
bank loans. The maximum amount of undiscounted payments
Canon would have had o make in the event of default is
¥2,078 million at December 31, 2021, The carrying amounts’
of the liabilities recogrized for Canon’s obligations as a guar-
antor under thase guarantees at December 31; 2021 were
not significant, ,
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‘. CONTRACT UAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS
L The chowmg tab!e summanzes Canon s contractual obhgatrons at Becember 31, 2021

. Payritems due’ by period -

- Millions of yen - IR ) :rdtal ", ~Less than 1,yearu_ - t3years - 3-5years  ‘Morethan 5years l
" Contractual Obi!igaticns: - o e L T '
' Long-term deb; R o T A AN C :
‘Loan from the barks . 174000 . . — . 174000 0 - o —
. Otherdebt "~ - R 7,040 - 1,290 . 1529 . 654 3,567
* Operating lease obhgatrrms 100,519 - 32,941, - 37738 .° 18,648 11,192
* Purchase commitments for: - B T e e -
‘ Property, plant and equrpment - 7’6.229'“' 76229 o — L — T
. Parts'and raw materials - e ;.249 909 . 249, 909 e e
- Other long-term. Irablhtres S o - SR N
B Contnbutmn to defmed beneﬁt pensron p]ans Lol 34 107; 34, 107. . st o K —
Tota! ‘ R .. - g41,804 . 394 A76. - ‘»213 267 19 302 14,759

kS oo No‘oe See Note 9. 11, 19 and 20 m the Notes: fo. Consolidated Frnam:lai Statemments.for further details The table does not include pmvisions for uncertain tax posi-

“tions.and related accrued interest and penattres, as the specific tirning of future payments related to these ob!rgatrons cannot be’ pmjected with reasonabie
oedamty See Note 12; Income Taxes in the Notes tn Cunsahdated Fmanuat Statements. for further details, :

Canon provrdes warrantles of general!y !ess than one year

: agamst defects in materials and workmanship on most of -

its consumer products Estimated: -product ‘warranty: related

. costs are recorded at the time revenue is recognized and - -
. areincluded in selllng, general and administrative expenses. .
- Estimates for accrued product warranty costs are primarily -
“based on historical experience, and are affected by ongoing '
_.product faﬂure rates, specific product class failures outside of
cwothe baselme experience, material usage and service delivery -
. -costs incurred i in'correcting a product failure. As'of” Decernber ';
31,2021 accrued product warranity costs are included in "

& ,_»accrued expenses and amounted to: ¥16,949 million.

Canon’s management believes that current financial -

;resources cash generated from operations and Canon’s poten- -
. tial capacrty for addrtlona | debt and/or equity financing will be".
- suffrcrent to fund current and future capital requrrements

..Canon’s management pohcy in recent periads to opt:m:ze

: rnventory levels is‘intended to maintain an appropriate balance
- among  relevant 1mperatwes, rnc[udmg minimizing workrng
N 'caprtat avordrng undue exposure 1o the risk of inventory obso-
© +lescence, and maintaining the ability to sustain sales desprte
" the occurrence of unexpected disasters. A :
-+ Canon’s total inventory turnover measured in days were 66 G
. 0 and 59 days at the end of the fiscal years 2021, 2020, and -

' 2019 respectrve!y The, mventory turnover in 2021 mcreased
T due to an increase in. mventor ies-of products in process at ol

. plants and m trangit to dea}ers in-order to focus on recover-

e ing. productxon from product supply. shortages res uiting from

“parts. procurement drffrcuitres and reduced operatmg rates at

. producﬁon sites:

, zm»_,*

“Canon is commltted to cash flow management in order w

Ao strengthen its financial base. While actlveiy investing to §op
: 'expand its business perférmance Canoniis also ensurmg
. stable free cash flow by keeping. total caplta{ mvestments :
e wrthrn the range of deprecratmn and amortrzatlon

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2028~ + "~ ©

-Inr.rease in property, plant and equrpment onan ar.crual -
- basis in. 2021 amounted o ¥151,914 million compared with
U¥132, 302. million in 2020 and ¥178, 088 mi ilion in 2019. For
2022, Canon. projects its increase in property, p!ant and equnp- :

ment wrll be approxrmately ¥180 000 msthon

Employer contnbutrons to Canon‘s worldwrde defi ned

‘ }benetrt pension plans were ¥43,782 million in 2021, ¥26, 965
' 3.rmrllron in 2020 and ¥30;383 million in 2019. Empinyer con-
—trlbutrons to Canon 's worldwide defined contribution pension
" plans were ¥22 660 million in 2021, ¥16,334 million in 2020,
- and ‘¥17 414 miltion-in 2019 In addition, employer contribu-
- tions: to the multrempioyer pension plan of cértain subsidiar-

ies were ¥4, 822 million in.2021, ¥4, 224 mlliron in 2020 and

¥4, 321 mrihon in 2019

Wnrkmg capital in 2021 mcreased by ¥354 558 mrllron 1o

¥817,512 million, compared with-¥462,954 million in 2020
© and ¥873,962 million.in 2019. The increase was prlmarliy due

toa decrease in short-term loans (incl luding the current por-

" tion-of long-term debt) and an increase in inventories: Canon |
believes its working capital wil be suffi cient for its require-

-ments for the foreseeable future. Canon's capital requirements

. are pnmanty dependent on management’s business plans .

regardmg the levels and timing of purchases of fixed assets -

'7 and: mvestments The working capital ratio (ratio of current

assets to current habrirtres} for 2021 was 1 77 compared to

1,35 for 2020 and 1:0 1.90:for 2019

'tReturn on assets (net mcome attnbutab!e to Canon Inc.
-divided by the ‘average of total assets) was 4.6% in 2021,
o "compared 0" 1.8% in'2020 and 2.6% in 2019. It improved

' from the prewous fiscal year due td anvinérease in net income
'as a result of mproved bus ness performance ‘
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BUSINESS SEQMENTY

STRATEGE CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Return on Canon Inc. shareholders’ equity (net income
attributable to Canon Inc. divided by the average of total
Canon Inc. shareholders’ equity) was 7.9% in 2021 com~ °
pared with 3.2% in 2020 and 4.5% in 2019. It improved
from the previous fiscal year due 1o a significantly increase

in net income as a result of improved business performance,
although shareholders” equity-increased due te an increase in
retained earnings resulting from an increase in profit and an
increase in foreign currency translation adjustments resulting
from the depreciation of the yen.

In Phase VI, one of Canon’s management policiesis to
thoroughly implement cash flow managemem and Canonis’
restrengthening its financial base.

In fiscal 2021, loans decreased hy ¥170,000 million due
to the refinancing and the repayment of loans which was
provided for the acquisition of Toshiba Medical Systems

Corporation (currently, Canon Medical Systems Corporation).

Asa result; the debt to total assets ratios were 6.8%,
10:9% and 10.8% as of December 31, 2021, 2020 and .
2019, respectively: Canon had short-term loans, current
operating lease liabilities, long-term debt, and noncurrent

operating lease liabilities of ¥320,971 million as of December

31, 2021, ¥506,172 million as of December 31, 2020 and
¥514,946 million as of December 31, 2019.

FINANCIAL SECTION i GRF’HRA‘!' Y nA '

Canon Inc. shareholders’ equity to total assets ratios
were 60.5%, 55.7% and 56.3% as of December. 31, 2021,
2020 and 2019, respectively. Canon strengthened its financial
base by reducing debt through an‘increase i other retained
earnings due to an increase in profit'and a decrease in long-
term debt due to strict cash flow management.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures :

‘Canon has reported its financial results in acccrdance with
U.S. GAAPR In-addition, Canon has discussed its results using
the combination of two GAAP cash flow measures, Net cash
provided by aperating activities and Net cash used for invest-
ing activities, which Canon refers to as**Free Cash Flow™

~ whichis a non-GAAP measure. Canon believes this measure is
- beneficial to an investor's understanding of its current liquidity

~ and the alternatives of uses of financing activities because it
takes into consideration its operating and investing activities.
A reconciliation of this non-GAAP financial measure and the
most directly comparable measure calculated and presented in
accordance with GAAP is set forth on the following table.

FREE CASH FLOW

Millions of yen

2021 2020
Net cash provided by opeérating activities 451,028 333,805
Net cash used in investing activities ' (207,256)  (155,439)
Free cash flow 243,772

178,366

0

=

<

Increase in Property,
Plant and Equipment (Bulhons of yen)

Working Capital Ratio (%)

Return on Canon lm:.
Shareholders’ Equity (%) -

R . 7.

i 20k
i
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
‘ 'PATENTS AND LICENSES SR
Since its foundmg, Canon-has drversrfred rts busmess and
E lncreased its compet:tweness by deve[czpmg and dwermfymg
ere competence management that comnprises various core’ ..
. ‘competence technologles (“core technologies”) to create

industry-leading core products, fundamental technalogles :

. “that form the basis of technology accumuiatton and basic’

o technoiegles for.value which are technoiogy and expertlse
" that support.the. Canon brand accumulated during the com-

.+ pany’s growth and the basis of commercialization technoiogy .
. Cancm s key R&D. strategies are as follows:. .
" » Reinforce fundamental technofogres and value creatron o

technologres

* - = Create future’ busmesses based on strong core technologtes -

‘and fundamental technologies

.. » Enhance innovation-type R&D in response to the demands of.
‘ the current age R L e

Canm smves 1o lmplement the above R&D strategles as.’

- follows: ,
Y. Remforce fundamental technologres and vaiue creat:on

technolog:es R
-Contribute to hi gher efflcrency of exlstmg busmesses by
further evolvmg va!ue creation technologies. Alongsrde this,

extract the'essence of a wide range of core technofcgles pos-

sessed by emstmg busmesses, deepen fundamental technalo-
. gies and i inject them into core technologies of new busmesses
cn domg 50, Canon er further strengthen the competltwe-

, ness of existi ng bus nesses and growmg new busmesses

X

‘e Create future busmesses based on. strong core
technoiogres and fundamentaf technologies

“Promote deve!apment of new business areas through tech- .
i nology diversification. For- example, Canon will develop”

<“devices that utilize materials technology ~the foundation-of
ink and toner materials— as well as.materials with unigque
propemes and work on development of next—generatlun 7
technologles that lead o busrness creation.

> .as.qsxpens,és‘cmn.é ot

20’17 2018 .,2019 2020 ,2021, R

*J;isfjgmm~ mwewe__mee“_;;;,;;_{;j,;l
» ;“?“? ~~~~~ ﬁ'\

f e Enhance mnovatfomtype R&D in respanse to the

demands of the current age:

* . Build upon trénds such as DX and carbon neutrahty promote

R&D that leads to corporate value improvement. In particu- -

- lar, focus on cyber-physical systems that closely mtegrate

cyberspace which enables the combination of various
 services, with physical (real world) space, the point of con-

" tact with people: Create various innovations by develcpmg
- -cyber-physical business models and products that stay one -
.step ahead through developing advanced cyber technology -

- with. utilizing world-class core techno!ogtes in the physica

- fleld and bus;ness alhances

R&D expenses were ¥287 338 mlilran in ﬂscal 2(}21 and

’ .¥272 312 miflion in fiscal 2020. The R&D expenses to net sales

ratios- were 8.2% in fiscal 2021 and 8.6% in fiscal 2020.
" Canon believes that new products protected by a robust

‘ patent portfoho will not easily allow competitors to surpass
them, and will give the company an: advantage in estabhshmg S
* -standards in the market and industry. -

" Canon obtained ‘the. thlrd greatest nurmber of patents in the :

B :United States in 2021, accordmg to the annual rank:ng list, -
o Y released by IFl CLAIMS' Patent Services.

_MARKET RISK EXPOSURES ~ o '
© Canon is exposed to, rmarket risks, mdudmg changes in forergn
;,:curreno; excharige rates; interest rates and prices of market-
able securities and investments.'In. order to hedge the risk.
"-‘ of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, Canon uses -
: denvatlve fmancra! mstruments &

‘V“Equlty pnce nsk

Canonholds marketable securmes mduded in current assets

© ‘which consist generaﬂy of highly- liquid and low-risk instru-

mants. investments included in noncurrent assets are held

35 long-term investments. Canon does not hold marketab
securities and investments for trading purposes.- ‘

Maturities and fair valties of such marketabie securmes

i and investments with original maturities of more than three
' " months were as foﬂows at December 31, 2021, :

* _Millions of yen " -

L v S . . Fair value
Fund trusts.andothers . ¢ . ¢ 609 .
Equity sectrities e -, 28,640
e 129,249
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Foreign currency exchange rate and

interest rate risk

Canon operates internationally, exposing it to the risk.of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Derivative finan-
cial instruments are comprised principally of foreign currency

exchange contracts utilized by the Company and certain of its  ~

subsidiaries to reduce the risk. Canon assesses foreign cur-
rency exchange rate risk by continually monitoring changes

in the exposures and by evaluating hedging opportunities.
Canon does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes. Canon is also exposed to credit-related
losses in the event of non-performance by counterparties to
derivative financial instruments, but it is not expected that any
counterparties will fail fo meet their obligations. Most of the
counterparties are internationally recognized financial institu-

tions and selected by Canon taking into account their financial

condition, and contracts-are diversified across a number of
major financial institutions.

FINANCIAL SECTION CORPORATE DATA.

Canon’s international operations expose Canon to the risk .
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Canon uses
foreign exchange cantracts to manage certain foreign currency

_exchange expcisures principally fram the exchange of U.S. dol-

lars and euros into Japanese yen. These contracts are primarily
used to hedge the foreign currency exposure of forecasted
intercompany sales and intercompany trade receivables which
are denominated in foreign currencies. In accordance with
Canon’s policy, a specific portion of foreign currency exposure
resulting from forecasted intercompany sales are hedged using
foreign exchange contracts which principally mature within
three months.

. The following table provides :nformatnon about Canon’s

-major derivative financial instruments related 1o foreign cur-

rency exchange transactions existing as of December 31,
2021, Al of the foreign exchange contracts described in the
following table have a contractual maturity date in 2022,

Us.$ " Euro. Others Total

Millions of yen

Forwards to sell foreign currencies: : . L , )
Contract amounts 78,776 80,847 - 9,769 = 169,392
Estimated fair value (1,014) - (545) ©@3) . (1.652)

Forwards to buy foreign currencies: : ‘ ‘ ‘
Contract amounts 19,550 897 7,006 27,453
Estimated fair value

Canon expects that fair value changes and cash flows result-
ing from reasonable near-term changes in-interest rates will
be immaterial. Accordingly, Canon believes interest rate risk -
is insignificant, See also Note 9 of the Notes ta Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments
designated as cash flow hedges, including foreign exchange
contracts associated with forecasted intercompany sales,
are reported in-accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss). These amounts are subsequently reclassified into earn-
ings in the same period as the hedged items affect earnings.
Substantially all amounts recorded in accumulated other

. comprehensive income {loss)-as of December 31, 2021 are”

expected to-be recognized in net sales over the next twelve
months. Changes in the fair value of a foreign exchange
contract for the period between the date that the forecasted
intercompany sales occur and its maturity date are recognized
in earnings.

Canon has entered into certain foreign currency exchange.
contractst6 manage its foreign currency exposures. These
foreign currency exchange contracts have not been designated
as hedges. Accordingly, the changes in fair values of these
contracts are recorded in-earnings immediately.

'LOOKING FORWARD
Under the corporate philosophy of kyosei—living and working

99 .. 3 - (504)  (402)

together for the common good—Canon’s-basic management
policy is to contribute to the prosperity and well-being of the. .
world while endeavoring to become a truly excellent global
corporation targeting continued grawth and development.
Based on this basic management policy, Canon launched

- the Excellent Global Corporation Plan in 1996.and, from Phase

I to Phase V, has worked 1o strengthen its management base
and improve corporate value. In 2021, Canon started Phase

Vi of the “Excellent Global Corporation Plan,” and.under the
basic policy to “accelerate our corporate portfoiu) transforma-
tion by improving productivity and creating new businesses,”
Canon rearganized our business divisions and group compa-
nies into four industry-oriented business groups of *Printing,”
“Imaging,”. “Medical” and “Industrial” in order to further
promote the transformation of the business portfolio whose
foundation was es‘éablished in Phase V.{from 2016 to 2020).

- Canon also'launched a new organization to. accelerate the -
‘commercialization of, among others, materials business and’

sales of components such as sensors to outside businesses.
During 2021, which was the-first year of Phase VI, many
preduction sites of Canon closed temporariy due to lock-

downs as the global spread of COVID-19 infections continued .

without being contained. Canon was also forced to reduce
production due to shortages of materials, mainly for.semicon-
ductors, and logistics disruptions. However, because economic
activities resumed with increased availability of vaccinations,
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:Canon was able to achreve an increase in buth sales and prof* o

rts through respor\dmg t0a recovery in demand.
Je o in 2022, although’ there are still no pro;ectrons asto -
T ‘when COVID-19 wil be brought. under control ahd drsrupm
. - tions-in productlon and logistics are expected to continue,
Canon believes that: the fundamentals of its busmess .
© environment are sound and have 'not chahged from2021.

Accordrngiy, under the basic policy. of Phase Vi thathas .- =~

',‘:'been carried out 5mce 2021, Canon will focus on the fol
g !owmg measures ; = :

«1,,1 Further streng‘then cnmpetrtweness nf mdustry- V
S orrented business groups

! Whr!e creatmg new. busmesses by tombnnsng techno ogres '

regroupmg the-business domains, and utrhzmg M&A and

‘othér measures for each industry-oriented business group, - -

~as'wellas by strengthemng the functions.of. development
" _production, and sales. framewcrk Carion will thomughly
'fenhance business competmveness ;

i § 1) Prmtrng Gmup

. In‘the age of DX, a!though the shift to paperless docu- . ;
" merits will contmue in the. future given the fact the volume-

~of pnn‘ced pages at offices s hemg réduced as much as’

" possible, printing demanid is expected to remain based on. - 1_ '

©the needs to share ideas and work results on hard-copies.
. 'Dueto the spread of COVID-19, the adopnon of hybrid -
T worktng sty!es that combine office work with telework-
ing is accelerating and there are demands to utilize cloud-
* computing; etc. for provrdmg printing environments and

services not hmrted to.a certaih workp!ace Canon aims to :

be global No. 1 in the office and home printing field by

- utilizing two drgrtal printing technologres nafmely electro- SR

- photographic technology as well as inkjet technafogy, and
“the strengths of its worldwide sales and service: network

©and by focusing on provrdmg prrntmg sotutrons that meet ' j

" the needs of the DX era. :
“liv addition, in the frelds of catalog pnntrng and other
. commerdial printing and label printing, package print-
s ing andother mdustrral pri ntmg where there is' expected

* 1o be a further shift from analog to digital in the future, ’ = T

.. Canon will take thrs opportunrty to enhance wnrHEow
: sofMare that contributes to worklgad savmgs and sup- -

) " portsi increases in added value, as well as to introduce new h
- r:ompetitrve products to the market contmuously uti hzmg Eon
. the: €0 llective strengths of the entrre group and establrsh CHE

e ﬁstrong posmon

(2) Imagrng Graup LT e )
i 'Atthough the overall market for drgrtai cameras has shrunk
o significantly . dueto the wrdespread use of smartphones
L f.{sales of mirrorless cameras, equrpped with-full-frame’sen- .
* . sors were'strong: even during the. spread of COVID- 19
- infections and. demand for- high image qual ty photos was
o s’teady Asa company wrth the worid‘s Ieadmg optrcal

. 48 cANq&’MﬁUALRgPGRr”;ozr :

’ -technology, Canon wrlt continue to mtrodur:e cameras :

*-and mterchangeabie lenses o the market contmuously

.+ inresponse to this demand, and establish its position as

. global No. 1 for mirrorléss cameras by focusing on profes- . ¢
- -sional photographers and advanced amateurs who value . - .

““high image quality.” In addition, given the increasing use

and-application of vrrtual reality images, 3D i images and

. 360° images in various fields recently, Canon isworkingto
..captlre these new V|deo~expenence markets using the Free
- Vlewpornt Videa System, the EOS'VR System, which was
. introduced in 2021, and MREAL, etc. in order to expand
. " the business,

Inthe field of bmadcastmg and vrdea pmductmn Canon‘

- will strengthen its lineup of high image quality remote
©  camera systems in line with the contmumg increase in IP
* streaming demand.

In the field of netwurk'cameras Canon will strengthen

1 e presence in the securrty domain, including for smart
. citjes, utilizing the collective strength of the entire group,
- which includes Axis, one of the world's leading manufac-,
~ “turers of network ‘cameras, Miléstone Systems; a video .
:management software vendor, and BriefCam, a video
* analytics software vendor. At the same time, for quality
- assurance work at production sites, out-of-stock detection -
at distribution centers, crowd level detection at shopsand.
" exhibition sites’and other such uses which goes beyond the

original scope of securlty Canon is working on developing

- products and services that provrde DX solutrons usmg vrdeo
or various operations.

- in the field of mobility which i rs undergorng tremendous '

N ‘changes . such, as the.emergenice of self-driving vehicles,

- *Canon is working on entering the car camera and traffic

© - infrastructure businesses by leveraging the optical and net-
~ work technology that Canon has been developing through

its long history, and will contribute to the widespread use
of drmng support and other mcrblhty sewrces o :

e Med:cal Gmup - r :
RS ,«Y,In order to respond to medlcal treatments tha’r are becom- .
- ing more advanced Canon will expand the business

domains 6 include healthcare IT and in vitro _dragnostlcs

. with the: ‘diagnostic imaging business as the core, armrng o
- “contribute to medical treatments around the world.

An the- diagnostic. i imaging busmess Canon will haise with

o Redien which was acquired in 2021, in order to promote
. ‘devetopment of PCCT techriology tha’t makes it possible.

" to achieve both unprecedented dragnostrc functions and a
e srgmfrcant reduction in radiation exposure, and are focused
_on early commercrahzat;on In-addition, by using Quality -

"_E!ectrodynamrcss RF coil technology, which is a core tech-
! -'nology for MRI systems and other original technologies E
... ofthe group companies, as well as by applymg image-:.
" processing technoiogres etc. that utilize Al, Canon will
. ,develcp the. next-generation high-performance MRI sys-
o tems. In d\agnastrc ultrasound systems Canon er work to



EUSIMESS SEGMENT/

STRATEGY . . PARSERASAN
R CORPORATE STRUGCTUAE.

reduce costs by standardizing platforms, bringing produc--
tion in=house and utilizing Canen’s production technology.
Furthermore, by strengthening the sales network, with a
particular focus on the United States, Canon aims te have
the No. 1 global market share for CT systems and become
one of the global leading companies for other diagnostic
imaging systems.

In the healthicare IT field, by enabli ing medical institu-
tions to integrate image and non-image data collected in
clinical settings; analyze and process the-data utilizing Al
and other technologies and provide the data worldwide,
Canan aims to offer high-quality diagnostic support and
facilitate-efficient medical treatments. In addition, in:the
in vitro diagnostics field, Canon will expand the portfolio
into domains related to diagnostic equipment, such as test
reagents for COVID-19, and expand the business.

In the compoenent business, Canon will expand the
existing business by capturing new customers, consolidat-
ing sales functions etc., and while also looking at growth
opportunities through M&A, Canon will offer multi-layered
solutions, comprised of finished goods, modules, pro-
cesses, services etc., aiming to expand the BioB business,
whose sales account for 10% or more of the total sales of
the Medical Group.

(4} Industrial Group
Given the widespread use of the 5G communications
standard and cloud computing, demand for semicon- _
ductors, such as IC and memory chips, is expected to. .
continue growing in the future. In addition; due to the
increase in individualized listening, viewing and learn-
ing using online distribution and the shift to images with
higher resolution, demand for LCD panels and OLED
panels is expected to be strong. Production of Canon’s
semiconductor manufacturing equipment, FPD lithogra-
phy equipment and OLED display manufacturing equip-
ment is continuing at almost full capacity. Recognizing.
that our ability to respond flexibly to increased demand
is an important issue, Canon will enhance the preduction
system utilizing the collective strength of the entire:group
and strengthen our customer support system. In addition,
Canon will improve the products by raising the perfor-
mance of those products and introduce additional furic-
tions that contribute to improving customer praductivity,
and work to expand its-market share.

Concurrently, Canon will accelerate the technological
developments with-a view to-expanding the application of
nanoimprint lithography technology, aiming for early com-
mercialization, and focus on-establishing next-generation
manufacturing technology for OLED panels. Furthermore,
Canon will create new products and services that combine
core technologies in the group, such as ultra-precision posi-
tioning, ultra-precision processing and vacuum systems,
and aim to expand the business domains by providing its
customers with new values.

FINANCIAL SECTION C CORPORATE DATS -

2. Imprave group-wxde pmductlmty thrnugh extensive

reinforcement of Canon’s global headquarter
functions - :

Canon will reaffirm its commitment to be fully focused
on cash flow management across the entire group and
further strengthen its financial base. in Japan, Canon will
improve the productivity of its employees including admin-
istrative staff by reallocating headcounts to growth areas
in response to the changes in the business portfolio and
promote highly streamlined work using DX and other mea-

sures. In addition, in order to rebuild the production system .. =

to create a resilient system mtegrated across the group,
Canon is working to further increase automation and in’
* house production in.ali-businesses through collaborative

measures to expand production technologies, and wilt cons

tinue striving to achieve thorough cost reductions.

Forward looking statements

The foregoing discussion and other disclosure in this report
contains forward-looking statements that reflect manage-
ment’s current views with respect to certain future events and
financial performance. Actual results may differ materially
from those projected or implied in.the forward-looking state-
ments; Further, certain forward-looking statements are based

upon assumptions-of future events that may not prove to be

accurate: The following important factors could cause-actual
results to differ materially from those projected or implied in
any forward-looking statements: foreign currency exchange
rate fluctuations; the uncertainty of Canon’s ability to imple-
ment its plans to localize production and other measures to
reduce the impact of foreign currency exchange rate-fluctua-
tions; uncertainty as to economic conditions in Canon’s major
markets; uncertainty of continued demand for Canon’s high-

value-added products; Canon’s ability to-continue to develop - A

products and to-market products that incorporate new tech-
nology on-a timely basis, are competitivély priced, and achieve

" market acceptance; the possibility 6f losses resultmg from

foreign currency transactions designed to redice finandial risks

from changes in foreign currency exchange rates; and inven-

tory risk due to shifts in market demand. Despite the resur- . .

gence of COVID-18 infections due to new variants, economic - .

activities have resumed and continued to recover due to the
progress of vaccination programs. However, if the transmission
further expands and is prolonged, it could lead to a slowdown
of the world economy and the business of Canon, a slow-
down in the business of Canon’s customers, suppliers and -
partners and lower investment sentiment for those parties. A
detailed description of these and other risk factors is included

" in our annual report on Form 20-F, which is on file with the

United States Securities and Exchangé Commission,
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y Nét _sa!esﬁ o
~ Domestic: .,
'Oveiséas o

: Advert:smg : . L
* Research and development expenses -

- "Capltai expendlture
,Long~term debt excludlng current mstallments '

/Total assets o
- Per share data:.

5 Average number of common shares in thouaands

© TEN-VEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

“Millions of yen {except per share amounts)

w1

L2020 -

. 2019

2018

Totat
Percentage of prewous year

i ';,Net income: attrlbutable o Canﬂn lnc.' Sy

Percentage of sales o

,_"’_1

Geprec:at;en and amomzation

. 830,378
2,682,979
3.513,357
CAM2%

24718

© 36,812

287,338 -
. 221,246
‘179,000

806,305

2,353,938

83 318

272,312

3,160,243

s?.g%n P
6%‘?‘ -

: _f 31273

227825
161,727

872,534
2,720,765
".3,593,299

%0.9%

124964 o
35%

46,665
. 298,503
237,327
K 211‘,223'\,-

869,577
3,082,360

© 3,851,937

96.9% -

252,441
6.4%

58,729

315842
- 251,554
© 200,504 -

Canon.Inc. sharehalders equ:ty

179,750 .
2,873,773

2,575,031

a3

5 357340
112,685,496

4,771 918

361,962
2;82();644

4,902,855

Net income attnbutable fo Canon inc

o shareholders per share

Bas&c - ,'
Q Dcluted
thdend per share
Stack pnce
ngh
: »I,GW‘

4,750,888,

20535 |
0529
- 100.00

2,938
C 1876

7937 .

79.35

" 3,099

4625614 - -

- 8000 :

],627)1 h

11679

- 116.77

+160.00

- 3,338

2,688

23380
233.78
160,00 -

4,395
2,877

1,045,633

1,049,802
181,897

1,069,957

1,079,753

" "QNumber of emp[oyees 2

1000

50

: :'UQS,QGO
R
a wnol R
o |"'lll|' ol

200

184,034 .

s Coyﬁ'man StockPnca Range(T uky@ Sto‘clir E.xch:_;\n‘g"e')A(\}gn)" :

7,000 SE— -

-3
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STRATESY BUSINESS SEGRIEMTY

FINANCIAL SECTION  |° - CORPORATE DATA

CORPORATE STRUCTURE
Thousands of US: dollars”. l
_ . {except per share amounts). .

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 : S
- 884,828 706,979 714,280 724317 . - 715863 . 720,286 - % 7,220,678
f-w: 3,195,187 2,694,508 3,085,991 3,002,935 3,015,517 . 2,759,502 23,330,252
& 4,080:015 3,401,487 3,800,271 3,727,252 . 3,731,380 3,479,788 30,550,930
é;: 119.9% . 89.5% - 102.0% 99.9% 1072% . 97.8% - 111.2%
242,081 150,334 219,943 254,627 229,829 224,854 . 1,867,113
5.9% 4.4% 5.8% 6.8% - - 62% . 63% - - 6.1%
61,207 58,707 80,307 79,765 86,398 ‘83,134 . 320,104
333,371 306,537 332,678 311,896 307,500 296,281 . - 2,498,591
261,881 250,096 273,327 . 263,480 275,173 - 258,133 1,923,878
181,389 208,379 243,130 224,760 227,478 ‘306,661 . 1,556,522
493,238 611,289 881 1,148 1,448 2,117 . - $ 1,563,043
2,863,986 2,776,327 2,959,929 2,971,963 2,904,212 2,592,630 - 24,989,330
5,201,626 5,142,279 4,431,720 4,464,854 4,246,796 3,959,542 . 41,312,070
223.03 137.66 201.41 228.88 20021 - 19159 - § = 179
223.03 137.66 201.40 228.88 2002t . 19158 S 17e
160.00 150.00 15000 150.00 130.00 ~ 13000 - 087
4,472 3,656 4,539 4,045 4115 . 4015 ... 2555
3,218 2,780 3,402 2,889 2,913 2308 1631

1,085,439 1,092,071 1,092,018 1,112,510 1,147,934 | 1,173,648

197,776 197,673 189,571 191,888 . 194,151 196,968

Notes: 1. U.S. dollar.amounts are translated from yen at the rate-of US.$1 = JP‘H 15, the approximate exchange fate on the Tokyo Forelgn Exchange Market as

of December 30, 2021,

2. Carion adopted Accounting Stantiards Update ("ASU"} No, 2017-07 from the quarter beginning January 1, 2018. The adoption of the new presenta-
fion requirement of the service cost component and the other components of niet benefit cost resulted in reclassification from cost of sales, and seliing,
general and administrative expenses, and research. and- development expenses into other income, (deductmns) for the years ‘ended December 31 fram
2017 to 2012 respectively.

3. Certain figures for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2019, 2018:and 2017 presented in the table above have. been revised from the: versions
previously disclosed. Dunng the year ended December 31, 2020, Canon corrected an immaterial error in. its previously issued cunsohdated financial

statements related to accounting for the Company’s and doriestic subsidiaries compensated absence’ carryforward as disclosed i n the pre-vmus fiscal

year. For further detalls, please refer to Note 1 {y) of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
4. Deprediation and amortization and Capita) expenditure are the fotal of tangible and intangible assets.

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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- ;CONSDLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
T &Canon fnc, and Subsndlanes :
: December 31 202'3 and 2020 :

- Millions of yen - .

‘:Currentassets e R e et T T T e, Bk e E T Co
", Cash and cash equwalents (Note 1) Bt D T S 401,395 407,684
- Short-térm irvestments (Note 2) S PR S - v SR |

“Trade receivables (Note 3) el T T 522,432 o 546,771
o lnventones (Note 2. e ST S 650,568 562,807

| Prepaid expenses and other current assets (Notes 6,15 and 18) T . 314,489 © 284,556

EN .Allowance for credit losses (Nates 3 and 6) L L Lo f13ee) . (12,746}

o Total'current assets "o oo T 0 - o e a0 0 1.878,345 - 1,789,143

' Noncurrent receivables (Note zo) e 16,388 . 17,276
Investments (Notes 2 and 22) "~ .7 - S L B0967 . 49,994

" Property, p|ant and equxpment net (No’res Sand 6) e 1,041,403 1,037,680

~ Operating lease ngh’c~of—u5e assets (Note19) . = T o T 95791 107,361

'+ Intangible assets net (Notes 7 and 8} P S n G e o T ;"361,793 . 318,497
- Goodwill (Notes 7 and 8) -+ L . T 953,850 915,564
"~ Other assets (Notes 6, 11:and 12) "~~~ . .0 oo 404720 . 392,066
Howance for credit losses (Note 6) SN T (2,369) - - (1,967)

Tataf assets iy - o s T G e e e 4,750,888 4,625,614

. LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

: @;Current liabilities: RN - AP - iy 5 R o

. Short-term loans -and current portmn of long-term debt (Notes 1 and 9) © - aAa891 392235

- Short-term loans related t6 financial services © . T a2300 - 45000
Other short-term loans and current portlon of Iong—term debt : j S ES 2591 ¢ 347,235
. Trade payabies (Note 10) SR e e ST . 338,694 i 303,809,

~ Accrued income taxes (Note 12) ++ - 0 L o eh s T 43,081 18,761
Accrued expenses (Notes 11 and 20) R O ol ‘ 323929 . 317,716

: 3“;Current operatmg lease liabilities (Note 19) Lo reo o 130,945 32,307

- Other current liabilities {Notes 5, 15 and 18) L re ot 979,383 261,361 .
Total current liabilities ‘ Lot e 071,060,833 0 - 1,326,189
Longnterm debt, exdudmg current mstallments (Notes 9 and D S 79750 0 0 4,834
“Accrued pensmn and: severance ‘cost (Note 1M .. [ S 248,467 . 345,897
~ Noricurrerit operatmg lease liabilities (Note 19) . C T T % . 65385 76,796
" " Other noncufrent hablhtles (Notes 12 and 15) e R o - 9024 . 87,857

= Totai hablimes UG e e U1,652,459 . 1,841,573
- fCanon lnc sharehoiders equ:ty
"",Commonstock ) g ot e SR e T .
- AuthonzedEOOO 000,000 shares |ssued 1 333 763 464 shares i 2021 and zczo 174762 - 174762
’Addmnal paid-in capftal {Note 13} e AT e o 403,119 . 404,620
- Legal reserve (Note 13) -~ = e v T 68015 69,436
. VRetamed earnings. (Note 13y e ey L Ld T e 3,538,087 S 3,409,37'1
e Accumu!ated other: comprehenswe iricome (loss) (Note T R 7 (151,794) (324,789)
Treasury stock at cost 287,991,705 shares in 2021 and 287 989 819 shares in 2020 . \(1,158,366) . .{1,158,369)

- Total Canon Inc. shareholders equlty Tl BT R -7 Y ¢ - 2,575,031
Ncncontroihng xnterests T T N 0 R 224,656 ©209,010

- Total equity. s S Te L e e L 3,098,429 2,784,041

Total liabilities and equ«ty L i oL ST e s 4750888 - 0 4,625,614

- See accompanying Notes fo Consohdated Fmangia! Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Canon Inc, and Subsidiaries
Years ended December 31,.2021, 2020 and 2019

Millions m‘yeh s

. 2021 2020 2019

Net sales (Notes 6, 15 and 18) . K _
Products and Equipment 2,804,680 . 2,489,829 ° 2835428
Services : 708,677 670,414 757,871 .

v © .3,513,357. 3,160,243 3,593,299

Cost of sales (Notes 5, 8, 11 and 19) e s ~
Products and Equipment 1,552,766 = 1,463,637 1,627,858
Services 332,799 320,738 355,408

1,885,565 1,784,375 - 1,983,266
Gross profit 1,627,792 1,375,868 1,610,033

Operating expenses (Notes 1, 5, 8, 11, 16, 18 and 20): : . .
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,058,536 '§93,009 1,137,110
Research and development expenses 287,338 272,312 298,503

1,345,874 1,265,321 1,435,613 .
Operating profit . 281,918 110,547 174,420

Other income {deductions): N e .
Interest and dividend income 2,232 - 2,823 5,526
Interest expense {647) (854) (1,038)

~Other, net {Notes 1, 2,7, 11, 14 and 18) 19,203 17,664 16,585

. 20,788 19,733 . 21,073

Income before income taxes 302,706 130,280 = 195,493
Income taxes (Note 12} 71,866 - 34,337 . 56146

Consolidated net income 230,840 95,943 139,347

Less: Net income attributable ta noncontrolling interests 16,122 12,625 14,383
~ Net income attributable to Canon Inc. 214,718 83,318 124,964

Yen | -

Net income atiributable to. Canon Inc shareholders per share (Note 17) e
Basic 205.35 79.37 116.79
Diluted . 205,29 79.35 11677

See -accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, ' ' - ‘

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Canon Inc. and Subsidiaries

Years ended Decamber 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019

; ) Millions of yen :
2021 . 2020 2019

Consolidated net income: 230,840 | 95,943 139,347

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (Note 14):. - Lo 7
Foreign currency translation adjustments 120,439 {17,354) (32,157
Net gains and losses on derivative instruments , (972) 970 7  {1,068)
Pension liability adjustments ) 56,508 1,382° - (3,630)
. 175,975 (15,002) ° (36,855) .

Comprehensive income (loss) 406,815 80,941 . 102,492

Less: Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling mterests - 19,1062 - 13,961 16,353

Comprehensive. income {loss) attributable to Canon Inc. 387,713 66,980 . . .86,139

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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" Balarice at December 31, 2018
‘Cumulative effects of accounting standarr.f

Canon Inc. and Subs:dnanes

_.CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

‘ Years ended December 31 2021 202() and 2019 -

L Millhnﬁ of yen .

67116 3,501,950 ‘3.569,066

(269.071)(1,058,502) 2,820,644 .,

TR ey s L Accumu!ated- T Total

© Additional- . - Other - ~Tota! uthér ' ‘Canoning. © Nom- -
cpaidein . “Legal retained - retained compmhenwe *Treasury ' shiareholders’ :omrolmg Total

.. "capital . reserve- eamings earnings incomie floss} - stock . equity - i interests < equity -
404,389 189,501 3,010,145

update—adoption of ASU No. 2017-12- R R 7. R — —
Equity transactions with noncontrollmg TR - T P T R
interests.and other . . B4t way, L F & 4 {1,813)  {1.596)
* Dividends.fo Canon, inc. sharehulders T B R s e e . ,
(160400 yen per. Sh&fe) . . (‘!_71,487) (171,487) {171,487) " 171,487y
+Dividends gononcontrcilmg interests R ' L S i {5,557} {5,557)
" Hransfers to'legal reserve ©oase 45 .+ - S
Comprehensive incame:. " o A A oo o
~Net income Sy 124364 124964 ¢ 124964 14383 139347
_Other compfehenswe mcoma (loss}, e LT T ‘ ‘ T T )
. netuftax(NoteM) ", G . o o e I
Foreign currency translation adjustments T - (32 043) L e e s
: Netgami and Josses'on . ' R i )
- derivative instruments ; ) . (1 073) R B (1,0?3} ‘ 5 {1,068}
) sénsimi‘liabimyzqmsiment; : SS9 . (5709 2079 (3.630)
Total comprehensive income floss) _ T R , B 86.139 - 16353 102492
Repistchases and feissianice of freasurystock = o) S (o L {10) {49,994y (50017} . {50,017)
. Balance at Decernber 31,2019 ©A05M7 67 572 3,455,083 3,522,655 (305,442}.(?,108,496] 2,685496 198484 2,883,980
- Cumulative effects of accounting standard w o : : ' T P
) update—adopnﬂn of ASU No. 2016-13 . ] 59) S{159) - {159) - i {159)
Eqmtytransachans with nnnccntrolhng AT F SRR c o ‘
7 interests and othar - e 2 T © (316) (a) sy —(349) 1,081 751
__ Dividenids to- Canon Inc. shareholders ] i o I = e R s e ) .
(12000 yen per share) |~ vt (126938) “(126,938) {126938) {126,938)
‘Dividends to noncontrofing interests. TNy - (4526) - 4526)
"Transfers 10 legal feserve,. C1864 4 (1884) ¢ ¢ o ‘ - ‘ -
Comprehensive i income: " Ly »‘_‘ o r : T = C
o Netincomé < B3318 183318 CUBI318 . 12625 95943
Other comprehenswe income (!oss) - %, Sef [ T e
s ‘: net of tax (Note ) : o : o iy .
Fore!gn cun'ency translatmn adjusiments L8 (17358 - o (1?,355} f oA {17,354 -
-“Net gains and fosses on : Lo SR
derivative mstruments . 987 - - 0w (W) 970 -
- Pension liability. ad]ustmmts o ©300 . o300 1352 - 1,382
- Total comprehenswe income (foss) - ‘ S mng R W 66,080 ' 13,961 80,941
" Repurchases and.feisstance of treasury'stock - N - - *'{49,858). *-(50,008) ; (50,008)
_'Balam:e at December 31; 2020 - 404,620 | 69,436° 3409371 3478,807 (324,789 (1,158,369) 2,575,031 208,010 2,784,041
- Equity transactions vith, L ; L K ot . o e
. noncontrolling interests and n‘cher ?? (62} {62} . 4,735 - 1,663 -
Dividends o' Canon inc. sharehahfers - s PR R LA
(85, 0o yen per: sham) (38 891) [8&891] t e s (88,391) oo {88,891} .
Dmdends to noncontmllmg mterests T : I S Ve el ('5,1\81) < {5181}
* “Transfers to legal resewe {429 (1,421} ,ssn‘ Y - R — S
. Comprehensive income:, el con TN S . :
L Netincome . i . ‘214718 - MATB 214718 15,122 230,840 .
Other comprehensive sncgme (!nss), i R o . .
netiof tax (Nate 14y : E i - ) ‘
.. Foreign currency translatlon adlustments 119, 165 3 ' 119,165 12747 120,439
 Net gains and lossésan T T
© derivative instruments (994) R (- IS S T
. Pension: Eiabdxty adjustments . o BAB2M S0 . 5482477 1,684 56,508
 Total comprehensive income (loss) T R S T S T3 13,102 406815
" Repufchases and reissuance of treasury stock oy - oo Tan o .3 S8y - (18)

" Balance at December 31, 2021 .

403 119

(1 51, 794} ﬂ 158,366} 2 573 773

. CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

'sams 3,538,037 ;3,606.052

See accnmpanymg Notes tu Cansohdated Fmanﬂai Staternems

224,656 3,098,129



| 2022051705540

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Canon Inc. and Subsidiaries
Years ended December 31, 2027, 2020 and 2019

Millions Qfeyen‘
2021 2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities: ) : Lo
Consolidated net income ‘ : .. - 7230,840 95,043 138,347 -

Adjustments to reconcile consolidated net income to net cash provided by
operating activities: ‘ S

Depreciation and amortization ' ' 221,246 227,825 237327

Loss on disposal of fixed assets . 7,745 . 4326 - 5991
Deferred income taxes . , (8.826) (15:542) (6,523)
Decrease in trade receivables . 44,678 15,120 43,504
(Increase) decrease in inventories ' ' 7 - (61,017) 16,075 . 19,895
Increase (decrease) in trade payables . - , 52,138 ° . - (4,636) (35,509) :
Increase (decrease) in accrued income taxes Con s - 24,017 . . 43 - (22,279
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses 0 : : (8,673) {1 6,413) 9,'738: ‘
Decrease inaccrued pension and severance cost ' ) ' - (41,471 (16;501), ' (13,722)
Other, net (Note 6) . ' . (8643) 27665 (19,308)
Net cash provided by operating activities 7 . 451,028 /333,805 358,461
Cash flows from investing activities: ‘ T s
Purchases of fixed assets (Note 5) (177,350 (164,719)  (215,671)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets (Note 5) ' . 3796  .7815. 885
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities : ' ' (2.216) . — —
Purchases of securities “ - (2162) - (592) © (4:907).
Proceeds from sale and maturity of securities : . 1,714 558 © 828
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired (Note 7) ‘_ ' 5 o {31,751 . (1.27) ‘. (8,880)
Other, net - , M3 1,626 - (823)
Net cash used in investing activities ) e 2 (207,256) (155,439) (228,568) ‘
Cash flows from financing activities: ' R o i
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt (Note 9) 175,100 - 2,100 C—
~ Repayments of long-term debt (Note 9) (347,029)° . (11,095 . - (8.678) .
([;eegt:r(eﬁéiirg;rease in short-term loans related to financial services, :" | (2.7,09) | 5,100 - '< 5’200__. |
Dividends paid ' : f (88,891)  (126,938) - (171,487)
Repurchases and reissuance of treasury stock, net ' L (17)  (50,008)  (50,012)
Other, net : ' ‘ (3829 . (2,608 - (7,613
" Net cash used in financing activities C SR ~ (267,366) - (183,449)  (232,590)
:Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ’ . 17,305 C@n (S,“l,34)*- :
. Net change in cash and cash equivalents . o (6.289) . (5130) - (107,831).
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year " e, 407,684 - 412,814 . 520,645 .

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ) o - 401,395 407,684 - 412,814
Supplemental disclosure for cash flow information: : ‘ 2 "
Cash paid during the year for: ) - } L . :
Interest - : : 599 1028 - 888
‘Income taxes - . - 71,573 45471 . 77,654

‘See accompanying Notes to (Zonsolidateﬂv Financial Statements.
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_NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

) Canon lnc and Suhsrdranes

‘ - 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNlFICANT ACCOUNTING PDLICIES

s (a) Descrlptlon of Business e C
© :Canon Inc: (the "Company ).and its subsrd:anes (collectwely
' "Canon") is one of the world's leading manufacturers of -
;voﬁrce multl-functron devrces {“MFDS“), laser printers, mlqet
pririters; cameras; medical equipment and lithography equip-: ;
‘ment, Products of the Printing Business Unit consist mainly of -
;offlce MFDS, document solutronsi Taser mulllfunctlon print-"
- ers ("MFPs"), laser printers, inkjet pnnters image scanners,
- _,_calculators digital continuous feed presses, dlgltal sheet- fed
. presses and Iarge format pnnters Products of the lmaglng
i Business Unit consist mainly, of :nterchangeable lehs dlgrtal

cameras, mterchangeab e'lenses, dlgltal compact cameras,

;" compact photo priniters, network cameras, video management
..,software vrdeo content analytics software, digital camcorders, -

digital cinema cameras, broadcast equrpment and multime--

' dia’ projectors ‘Products of the Medlcal Busmess Unit consist -
‘mainly of computed tomography ("CT") systems, dragnostlc

ultrasound systems, . diagnostic X-ray systems, magnetic reso-
nance rmagmg {"MRI") systems, clinical chemlstry analyz—

" ers; digital radsography systems.and ophthalmic. equrpment
. "Products of the Industrial and Others Business Unit consist -
S “mainly of semiconductor hthography equipment, Flat. Panel -
" Display (“FPD") lrthograohy equipment, Organic Lrght Emitting - -
;- Diode (“OLED") display manufacturing equipment, vacuum
- “thip-filrn deposrtron ‘equipment; die bonders, handy terminals
a and document scanners Sales are made principally under the
“.Canon, brand name; almost entirely, through sales subsidiaries.-
‘These subsidiaries are responslble for marketing and drstrlbu-‘
- tion, and prlmarrly sell to retail dealers in their geographrc
area Further segment mformatron is: descrrbed in Note 23.

Canon sells laser printerson’ an OEM basis to HP Inc.; such

‘Canon’s manufacturmg operatrons are conducted pnmarrly

.. at 29 plants in Japan and 13 overseas plants wlm:h aré located
| -in countries and regions stch as the United States, Germany; - -
* France, the Netherlands Tarwan Chma Malaysra Thatland

O FVletnam and Phrlrppmes

(b) Bas:s of Presentatron : :
‘The Company and its domestrc subsrdranes maintain their

e \;books of. account in conlormrty with financial accounting-

- CANON ANNUALREPORT 2021 -

standards. of lapan Foreign subsrdranes maintain their books

of account in conformity with frnam:ral accountmg standards

- of the countries of their domicile. - .
» Certain adjustments and reciassmcatrons have been lncorpo-
.- rated in the accompanymg consolrdated flnancral statements
" to conform with U:S. generally accepted accountmg prmcrples

., (PUs: GAAP"). These adjustmen’ﬁ were not recorded m the ‘

' statutory ‘books of account.. e S
.+ Canory has separated the presentatlon of allowance for .
- creclrt losses from the related recewable balances whrch are

mcluded in lrade recewables prepald expenses and other .

" current assets, and other assets in the accompanymg con=.

e ‘solidated balance:sheets, from 2021. Consolidated balance -
~sheet for the year ended December 31, 2020 has also been

: reclassrfred ’

-.Canon has also changed the presenta’cron of "Short‘term

.loans related to financial services” separated from “Short-
term: loans and current portion of long-term debt” in'the
* consolidated balance sheets from-2021. Further, Canon

has separated the’ presentatlon of “(Decréase) increase in

short-term loans related to fmanc:al services, net” from
"(Decrease) increase in short-term loans, net” end included

the presentation of "(Decrease) mcreasa in. short—term loans,
net” in “Cash flows from financing activities: Other, net"

*in the consolidated statements of cash flows from 2021.
. These changes were made to enhance the presentation of
the Company’s short-term borrowings for the users of the
* . consolidated financial statements. To conform with the cur-

rent year changein the presentatlon the corisolidated bal-

ance sheet for the year ended December 31, 2020 and the
> consolidated statemerit of cash flows for the years ended
" _'December 31, 2020 and 2019 have: beenkreclassrfledl '

‘ (c) Prmcrples of Consolldatron

The ¢onsolidated financral statements mclude the accounts of

the Company, its majority owned subsidiaries and those vari-

able'interest entities where the Company or its.consolidated

- suibsidiaries are the ptimary beneficiaries. All significant inter-
=, company balances and transactions have been eliminated.

5 . (d) Use of Estimates -~
. “sales constltuted 11:6%, 11:4% and 13.0% of cansolidated net .
. sales for the years ended’ December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019
- respectively, and are mcluded in the Prmtmg Business Unit.

Thie' preparation of the consolidated financial statements in

conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make

.. estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
- of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets
“and liabilities atthe date of the consolidated financial state- -

';"menm and the reported amounts of revenues and experses
== “during the period. Significant: estimates and assumptions are

L reflected in.valuation and disclosure of accounts including:

7 revenué ‘recognition, allowance for credit losses, inventories,
i ,long-lwed assets, leases, goodwill and other intangible assets -
" with indefinite useful lrves enwronmental liabilities; deferred -
- tax assets, Uncertain tax positions, employee retirement and

“severance benefit obhgatlons and busiriess combinations.
©_Actual results could differ matenaliy from those estimates. In

. addition, new waves of COVlD 19 infections are being seen
"in some regions, and it is still difficult to predict when COVID-

- 19 willbe brought under control However; each country and

. regron cortinues to pursue both the infection conl:rol and eco-, -
““nomic activities. Actual results and cutcomes may differ from
‘ management’s estimatés and assumiptions due to risks and
- ‘uncertainties, inchiding uncertainty in the current BConomic

. e:wrronment tnggered by COVID 19"
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(e) Translation of Foreign Currencies

Assets and liabilities of the Company’s subsidiaries-ocated
outside fapan with functional currencies other than Japanese
yen are translated into Japanese yen at the rates of exchange
in effact at the balance sheet date. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing during
the year. Gains and losses resulting from translation of finan-
cial statements are excluded from earnings and are reported in
other comprehensive income (loss).

Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transac-
tions and translation: of assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are included in other income {deductions}
in-the consolidated statements of income: Foreign curréncy
exchange gains and losses were net losses of ¥21,746 mil=
lion, ¥4,451 million and ¥4,236 million for the years ended
December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

(f) Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments acquired with original maturities
of three months or less are considered to becash equivalents:
Certain debt securities with original maturities of less than
three months, classified as available-for-sale securities of ¥500
million at both December 31, 2021 and 2020, are includad in
cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated balance sheets.

{9) lnvestments

Jnvestments consist primarily of time deposns with original

maturities of more than three months; debt and equity securi-
ties and investments in-affiliated companies.

Canon classifias investments in debt securities as held-to-
maturity debt securities and available-for-sale securities: Canon
does not hold any trading securities which are bought and
held primarily for the purpose of sale in the near term. Canon
reports investments with maturities of less than one year as
short-term investments.

Available-for-sale debt securities and equity securities with
readily determinable fair value that are not accounted for
under the equity method are recorded at fair value which is
determined based on quoted market prices, projected dis-
counted cash flows or other valuation techniques.as appropri-
ate. The changes in fair value for equity securities are included
in other, net in the consolidated statements of income. The
changes in fair value for available-for-sale debt securities are
included in net unrealized gains and losses on securities in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Held-to-maturity debt securities are recorded at-amortized
cost. The fair values of equity securities are:mainly measured -
at the quoted market price. '

Available-for-sale debt securities are regularly reviewed
for other-than-temporary dedlines in the carrying amount
based on criteria that include the length of time and the
extent to which the.market value has been less than cost,
the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer
and Canon's intent and ability to retain the investment for a
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery

FINANCIAL SECTION CORAGRATE DATA

in market value. For available-for-sale securities for which

the declines are deemed to be other-than-temporary and
there is no intent to sell, the impairment is separated into the
amount related to credit loss, which is recognized in earn- .
ings and the amount related to all other factors is recognized
in other comprehensive income (loss). For available-for-sale
securities for which the declines are deemed to be cther-
than-temporary and there is an intent tg sell, the impairment
iy its efitirety is recognized in earnings. Canon recognizes

an impairment loss to the extent the cost basis of the mvest- '

ment exceeds the fair value of the investment.

Canon measures non-marketable equity securities without
readily determinable fair value at cost, minus impairment, if -
any, plus or minus changes resulting from oljs’ervable price
changes in orderly transactions for an identical or a similar

- investment of the sarme issuer.

Realized gains and losses are determiined by the average
cost method and reflected in earnings..

Investments in affiliated companies over whsch Canon
has the ability to exercise significant influence, but does not
hold a controlling financial interest, are accounted for by the:
equity method.

(h) Allowance for credit losses

Allowance for credit losses for trade and finance receivables
is maintained for all customers based on ASC 326 “Financial
Instruments ~ Credit Losses,” considering various factors,
including aging analysis, macroeconomic conditions and
historical experience. An additional reserve for individual
accounts is recorded when Canon becomeés aware of a'cus-

tomer’s inability to meet its financial obligations, suchas in the '
‘case of bankruptcy filings. If drcumstances related to cus-

tomers change, estimates of the recoverability of receivables
would be further adjusted. When all collection opticns-are
exhausted including legat recourse; the accounts or portions
thereof are deemed to be uncollectable and charged agamst
the allowance: .

{i} Inventorles
inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net reahzable i

value. Cost is determined by the average method for domestic

inveniories and principally by the flrst~|n first-out method for
overseas mventones

)] Impalrment 'of Long-Lived Assets
Long-lived assets, such as property, plant and equipment,
and acquired intangible assets subject to amortization, are

" _reviewed for impairment whenever events.or changes'in. -

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held

and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount
of the asset and the éstimated undiscounted future cash flows *

expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount
of the asset exceeds ifs estimated sum of undiscounted

future cash flows, an lmpairment charge:is recognized | in the

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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© ' ‘NOTES TO'CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS * . -

i

- -amount by which the carrying amount of the-asset exceeds -

- the fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of by sale are
» repcrted at the lower of the carrymg armount or fair value less- -
gcosts to seﬂ and are no ionger deprec:ated ' i

, '(k) Property, Plant and Equlpment, net
* Property, plant and equtpment are stated at cost Jess accumu-
< lated deprec:ataon Deprecsaﬂon is ca1culated principally by the

dedmmg~balance method,’ except for certain assets which are- ‘

'deprecaated by the’ stranght—lme methcd over the astimated
~useful lives of the-assets. - :

The depreaat:on penod ranges from 3 years tc 60 years for

N (!) Leases.

As for léssor accounti ng, Canon prowdes !easmg arrange-
ments to its customers primarily for the sale of office pmdug;ts
Reveriue from the sale of these products under sales-type

. leases is recogmzed at the inception.of the lease, Interest ™ .

" income on sales-type leases and di rect-fmancmg leases is rec- -

_ ognized over the life of each respectwe lease Using the interest-

" method. Leases riot quairfymg as sales- ~type leases or dfrect- '
»»'flnancmg !eases are accounted for as operating leases and

- "related revenue is recogmzed ratably over the lease term. When

- product leases are bundled with maintenance ‘contracts, rev-
enue is allocated based upon-the estimated standalone selling
" prices of the lease and non-lease components. Lease compo-
. hents.generally mclude product and financing while non-lease -
- comporients generally consist of mainténarice contracts and
. ,suppires Some of the contracts include optidns to extend or -
to terminate the lease. Canon takes such options into account
e determsne the lease term when it is.reasonably certain that -
“ customers w;ll exercise these options. The majority of Canon’s .
" lease contracts do'not contain bargaln purchase options for
. their customers: Assets leased to others under operating leases
" -are stated at st and depreciated to ‘the estimated residual
* vl ue-of the assets by the stratg ht-line method over the Iease

term generaﬁy from 2 years to 50 years. .
"As for lessee accounting, Canon has operatmg and fnnance

:ieases for various assets. mdudlng office. buitdings; warehouses
- employees accommodatsons, and vehicles: Canon determlnes
“ifan arrangement isaleaseat the inception of each’ contract

- Some of the contracts lndude op’uons toextend orto ter-

s

minate the lease. Canon takes such options into account to -

o *determme the lease term when it is reasonably certain that |t
- will exercise these opti ons. ‘Canon’s lease arrangemen’rs do not -
S contam matenai reszdual value guarantees or material restric-
. tive covenants, As a rate implicit in the most of Canon’s leases -
.. cannot be determmed Canon uses incremental bcrrowmg
_rates based onthe: mformatlon avaslab e at commencement
1o determine the present values of lease payments, Canan’ has-
. lease contracts with lease and non-lease components, which -
are accounted for separately Canon allocateés the consideration -

in the lease contract to the. iease and rion-lease components

o based upon tha es‘umated standa!one prlces Costs assoaated

“CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021~

‘ wzth operatmg Iease assets are recogmzed ona stra;ght~lme
- bass over the term of the: iease ‘.

',-,'(m) Goodwrll and other mtanglble assets

‘Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful
. lives are not amortized; but are instead tested for impairment
- annually in the faurth quarter of each year, or more frequently
- if indicators of poten‘ual impairment exist. Alf goodwill is . .

asmgned to the reporting unit or units that benefit from the
synergies ansmg from each business combination. If the car-

© - rying-amount assigned to the reporting unit exceeds the fair
value of the feporting unit, Canon recogmzes an‘impairment

charge in-an amount equal to that excess, limited to the total

+.. _amount of goodwill allocated to that reportmg unit.

intangible assets with finite useful lives consist pnmaniy

" of software, trademarks, patents and deveéloped technology,
license fees and custorner reiatmnshcps, which are amortized

" using the- strazght«hne method. The estimated useful lives of

_ software are from 3 years to 8 years, trademarks are 15 years,
- patents and developed technology are from 5 years to 21

years, hcense fees.are 8 years, and clstomer relationships are

* from 7 years to 15.years. Certain.costs incurred in connec-
" tion with developlng or obtalnmg internal-use software are
. capitalized. These costs consist primarily of payments made to

- third parties and the salaries of employees working on such

software development Costs incurred in connection with -

. _'developlng interrial-use software are capitalized:at the appli-

cation devalopment stage. ‘In addition, ‘Canon capitalizes the

. "cost which was incurred subsequent to the stage of assuring
, the technological feasibiiity of the software for’ rnarketmg
' ;purposes aither developed or acqmred :

'(n) Env:ronmental Llabllmes - e
“Libilities for environmental remediation and ather environ-

mental costs are accrued when environmental assessments or

©oremedial. efforts aré probable and the costs can be reasonably

estimated, and are included in other noncurrent liabilities in-
the consolidated halance sheets. Such liabilities are adjusted as

.- further information develops or circumstances change. Costs of

futu re obhgat:ons are not dlscounted to thelr present values

: .(o) lncome Taxes co : :
‘ ADeferred tay assets and liabi htles are recognlzed for the -
~estimated future tax consequences attnbutab!e to.differences
“ between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing:
. -assets and liabilities and their respective: tax bases and oper-
~.ating los$ and tax credit carryforwards Deferred tax assets

and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected

- to:apply to taxable.income in the years in which. those tem-

porary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

"*The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in
. tax-rates is recognized in income in the period that includes

the ehactment date."Canon records a valuation allowance
to'reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that is more

’hkely than not realizable.
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Canon recognizes the financial statement effects of tax
positions when it is more likely than not, based on the
technical metits, that the tax positions will be sustained
upon examination by the tax authorities. Benefits from tax
positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition
threshold are measured at the:largest amount of benefit that
is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon setilement.
Interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax
benefits are included in income taxes in the consolidated
statements of income.

(p) Stock-Based Compensation

Canon-measures stock-based compensation cast at the grant
date, based on the fair value of the award, and recognizes the
cost on a straight-line basis over the requisite service penod
which is the vesting period.

{(g) Net income Attributable to Canon Inc.
Shareholders per Share

Basic net income attributable 1o Canon'Inc. shareholders

per share is computed by dividing net income attributable

to Canon Inc. by the weighted-average number of comman

shares outstanding during each year. Diluted net income

attributable to Canon inc. shareholders per share includes the

affect from potential issuances of comrmon stock based onithe

assumptions that all stock options were exercised,

{r) Revenue Recognition

Canon generates revenue through the sale of products of the
Printing Business Unit, the Imaging Business Unit, the Medical
Business Unit and the Industrial and Others Business Unit, sup-
plies and related services under separate contractual arrange-
ments. Revenue is recognized when, or as, control of prom-
ised goods or services fransfers to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to-which Canon expectsto be
entitled in-exchange for transferring these goods or services. -
For further information, please refer to Note 15.

(s} Research and Development Costs
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

{t) Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising
expenses were ¥36,812 million, ¥31,273 million and ¥46,665
million for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and
2019, respectively. .

{u) Shipping and Handiing Costs

Shipping and handling costs totaled ¥53,347 million, ¥47, 721
million and ¥51,718 million for the years ended December 31,
2021, 2020 and 20189, respectively, and-are included in selling,
general and administrative expenses in the consolidated state-
ments of income:

" FINANCIAL SECTION - CORPORATE DATA

{v) Derivative Fmanclal Instruments

All derivatives are recognized at fair value and aré mduded in.
prepaid expenses and other current assets, or ather current. -
liabilities in the consolidated balance shéets.

Canon useés-and designates certain derivatives as a hedge
of a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to -
be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability
("cash flow” hedge). Canon formally documents all relation-

ships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well .

as its risk-management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. Canon also formally assesses, both
at the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing basis, whether

the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly «

effective in offsetting changés in cash flows of hedged items.
When it is determined that a°derivative is not highly effective
as a hedge or that it has ceased to be a highly effective hedge,
Canoni discontinues hedge accounting prospectively. Changes
in'the fair value of a derivative that is designated and qualifies
as‘a cash flow hedge are recorded in othe; comprehensive
incame (loss), until earnings are affected by the variability in
cash flows of the hedged itern, and reclassified in the same

income statement ling item in which the eamings effect of the

hedged item is reported.
Carion also uses certain derwatwe financial instruments

which are not designated as hedges. The changes in fairval-

ues of these derivative financial instruments are !mmedtateiy
recorded in earnings.
Canon classifies cash flows from derivatives as cash flows

“from operating activities i in the consohdated statements.of -

cash ﬂows

{w)} Guarantees - .

Canon recognizes, at the mceptlon of a guarantee, a liability
for the fair value of the obligation it has undertaken in‘issu-.
ing guarantees. ‘

{x) Recent Accounting Guidance

Canon evaluates all recently issued accounting pronouince-
ments applicable to its consolidated financial statements. No
new accounting pronouncement issued or effective has had,
oris expected to have, a material impact on Canon s conso!v-
dated financial statements, ‘

) Cotrection of an Immaterial Error
During the year ended December 31, 2020, Canon corrected
anerror in its previously issued consolidated financial state-

‘ments related to accounting for the Company and domestic

subsidiaries’.compensated absence carryforward in accordance
with ASC 710 *Compensation.” In evaluating whether the

previously issued consolidated financial statements were mate- *

rially misstated for the annual periods prior to Deferhbgr 31,
2020, Canon applied the guidance.of ASC 250, " Accounting

Changes and Error Corrections,” SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin -

(“SAB™) Topic 1.M " Assessing Materiality” and SAB Topic
1:N “Considering the Effects of Prior Period Misstatements

-CANON ANNUAL REFORT 2021
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) when Quant:fymg Mrsstatements in Current Year ananaal
Statements,” and concluded. that the effect of the error on

- prior period financial statements was immaterial;. however, thet .
?cumulattve effect of carrectmg the pnor penod mxsstatements _

e, F

. ) Cunsohdated statement of mcome as rewsed in 2020

" inthe year ended December 31, 2020 would have been mate- - -
- rial to the December 31, 2020 consolidated financial state-
_ments. As. a result, Canon: prewous!y rewsed |ts consohdated

»flnanc;al s"tatements as follows :

W“f"Yea‘rended pecemhem T it :

© Millions of yen

2019 .
. : . e e . - Asrevised As previously reported :
N Selhng, general and admlmstratlve expenses 1,137, 110 ' 1,136,863
-, Operating profit . ' Tl 174,420 174,667
- Income before mcome ’baxes T L 195,493 195,740
CIncometaxes . o 56,146 56,223
<7 Consolidated net income .. ; ;e 7139,347 139,517
) ;’Less Net mcome aﬁnbu’fabie to noncomrolhng mterests . "14‘,383 . 14,412
~.Neti mcome attrlbutable to Canon Inc 124964 -‘125,1‘05 ‘
‘;’ . : . : : . e ‘
“"Net income attnbutablem Canan lnc sharehoiders per share:‘ : : : - B
" Basic . R L 11679 116.93
: Df!uted iy 11677 116.91
AConsoI ldated statement of comprehenswe mcome as revnsed in 2020
Year enged Decamber 31 ‘Millions of yen
l R 2019, -
R . As revised © As pfeviousii(.repoded
: "Consohdated net mmme ' v AR 139,347 " 139,517
' 'Less Comprehenswe mcome attnbutable to noncontro(lmg mterests LA 16 353, 16,382
86 139

. W,' Comprehenswe mcome (loss) attnbutable to Canon Inc. .

. 86,280

’th;.jblidate_‘di ‘sltatemen‘tvdf cash ﬂdws as reyi:;ed in2020 y

" Year ended Detéméerlall - Millions of yen
T P " 2019:
: , R c As revised As previously réported
E Consolrdated net income: /139,347 139,517
Increase in: accrueci expenses 9738 9491
- {6,446)

' f  Deferred income: taxes

T e523)

The consohdated statement of equsty has been rewsed accord:ngty L -

. CANON ANNUALREPORT2021 *
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FINANCIAL SECTION ' | CORPORATE DATA

Held-to-maturity debt securities included in short-term investments in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet \wéiref
¥2,164 million at December 31, 2021. There were no held-to-maturity debt securities as of December 31, 2020.

Held-to-maturity debt securities included in short-term investments at Decémber 31,2021 are as follows:

Millions of yen
Carrying amount Estimated fair value. - Difference
Due within one year. 2,164 "2, 167 f 3

There were no available-for-sale debt securities mcluded in short~term investments: and mvestments at December 31 2021 and

2020, respectively.

The unrealized and realized gains and losses related to equity securities for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and

2019 are as follows:

Years ended December 31

Millions of yen

2018

2N 2020
Net gains and (losses) recognized during the period on equity securities 8,958 . 1,959 2,148 . .
Less: Net gains and (fosses) recognized during the period on . v ' S
equity securities sold during the period 467 - _ 477 o - (78)
Unrealized gains and (losses) recognized during the period on \ ) - ' ) e
equity securities still held at December:31 8,491 1,482 - 2,224

The carrying amount of non-marketable equity securities
without readily determinable fair value totaled ¥6,661 million:
and ¥8,559 million at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respec-
tively. The impairment or other adjustrments resulting from
observable price changes recorded during the years ended

Decerniber 31, 2021 and 2020 were not significant.

Time deposits with otiginal maturities of more than three .
months are ¥1,213 million and ¥71 million at December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectlvely, and are included in short-term

. investments in the accompanymg consolidated balance sheets.

lnvestments in affiliated compames accounted for by the equity method are as foll OWS:

“Years ended December 31

Millions of yen, exceptpercentage data

. 2021 ‘
Ownership 2021 2020
percentage - '
Canon Korea Inc. 50% . 11,627 10,719
Others — . 710,398 8,915
— . 22,025 19,634

The difference between the carrying amount of investment in
each affiliate and Canon’s share of its net assets is immaterial.
Canon's share of the net earnings in affiliated .companies
accounted for by the equity method, included in other income

(deductions), were earnings of ¥1,396 million for the year

ended December 31, 2021, and losses.of ¥994 million and

. ¥311 million for the years ended December 31 20200 and

2019, respectwely

- CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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I TRADE RECENABLES

Ty Decernber S'tv

o Trade recewabies are summanzed as fo

' M"mans of yen

2020

“Note's‘ v “ - ,'23,616; 34922

"Tracie recewabies ST L L A LT 522432 546,771

T Less al

lowance for cred|t 1osses R S N ‘. I e ‘;(1,2.49#) o “',5453

o __*.4 mvemcmes

anshedg,oods i R N LBy e T el
twOrkmprocess AN 199,153 160,696

o vtnventcnes are summanzedf as follows

‘Decembera‘i .

A, Raw matenals

~_Milions of yen

"305,381 T 3513

g3 . 495%

-2 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQU!PMENT

8

December 31

. Lahd

- Property. § ant and. eqmpment, et

. ‘- Property plam; and eqmpment are stated at: cost \ess aa:umu\ated:dgﬁfeciétxon and are summanzed as fo!\c\;w L

. ulldings® e S L T , . 4 o 1 ,

V"Machmery and. eqmpméht‘ o O g - T Do 1,849,271 1,806,185
Construction i progress ‘~:': W e, .y, - . A3283° 37,324

V 'anance lease i htaa‘f‘use assets RERS BA e Sl 5533 5,048
LCost Tl T T ' T 3,807,786 -
“less accumuiated de reaatxan {2,770, 106‘) :

. 1,037, 680 -

Deprec:ation expenses for the years ended Dec mber 31 i 2021 and 2020 respectwehj, and are mduded in other -
_2021 2020 and 2019 were ¥156,333 msihon ¥162 733 mal~ P current liabilities: in the accorpanying consoli lidated palance -
fion and ¥170:41 g fmillion, respectweiy [ sheets. Fixed-assets presented in the consohda*rzd statements
© Arnounts due for purchases of: pmperty p\ant and equup © ofcash flows mdude property plam and equ;pment and -
ment were ¥29, 562 mxlhon and ¥27 688 mmlon at! December‘ " ‘mtangxhle assets
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CORPORATE DATA

Lease income is included in Products and Equipment sales in the accompa nymg consolrdated statements of incoma. Suppiementai

income statement information is as follows:

Millions of yen

Finance Receivables and Operating Leases

Finance receivables represent-financing leases, which consist
of sales-type leases and direct financing leases. These receiv-
ables typically have terms ranging from 1 yeario 8 years. The

Years- ended December 31
2021 . 2020
Lease income — sales-type and direct financing leases - s
Revenue at lease commencement 84,895 92,133
Interest income on lease receivables 18,351 18,594
) 103,246 110,727
Lease incoma - operating leases 127422 23,878
Variable lease income ¢ 5,277 5,343
135,645 139,948

components of the finance receivables, which are included in .

" prepaid expenses and other current assets, and other assets in
the accompanying consolidated bajance sheets, are as follows: -

Decerriber 31 Millions of yen’
L 2021 2020
Total minimum lease payments receivable 366,051 337,265, .
Unguaranteed residual values - 12,192 11,459
Executory costs : o L =
Unearned income - (31,619) - (29,541)
346,624 - 319,183
Less allowance for credit losses (3,791) (3,068)
. ‘ 342,833 ‘316,115
Less current portion {119,902) © {108,837
222,931 - 207,278
Allowance for Credit Losses
The activities in the allowarice Tor credit losses are as follows;
Years ‘ended December 31 Millions of yen
- 2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year 3,068 2,627
Charge-offs (2157, ~(2,199)
Provision 2,331 2,351
Translation adjustments and other 549. 289
Balance at end of year "~ 3,791 3,068

Canon has policies in place to ensure that its products are
sold to customers with an appropriate credit history and con-
tinuously monitors its customers” credit quality based on infor-
mation includirig lenigth of period in arrears, macroeconomic
conditions, initiation of legal proceedings against customers
and bankruptcy filings. The allowance for credit losses of
finance receivables is evaluated collectively based on historical

expeiiences of credit losses. Any additional reserve for indi-

vidual accounts is recorded when Canon becomes aware of a

customer's inability to meet its financial obligations, such as in

the case of bankruptcy filings. Finance receivables which are

past due or individually evaluated for impairment at December .

31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 are not significant. .

+ CANGN ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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e Equlpment leased to customers B
~ The:cost of equapment leased to customers under operat- .
) mg leases included in property, plant and’ equapment netat’

cn8 w0

. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L ‘December 31, 2021 and 2020 was ¥143 160 msll&on and

: Matunty Analysus

¥l 32 763 mllllon, respectwely Accumulated deprecratlcn on
“equipment: undér operatmg leases at December 31, 2021 and

2020 was ¥87 879 mllllcn and ¥81 345 million; respectwely

f_f‘“l‘he following is a schedule by year of the future mmlmum lease payments to be recelved under fmance leases and non- cance lable
: -jpperat:ng leases at December 31 2021 : . , . ‘ 5 .

. 'Year endlng December 33

. Millions of yen

“Financing feases .- Opierating leases

2‘022; o

_ 131,113 . 11,578
C2023 199,168 7,168
© 2024 68241 4914
20257 41,600 2972 ..
026 18550 1,471
~;,Thereafter 7379 0 1402
366,051 29,505

. Information about transferring finance receivables
Canon’ has syndicatlon arrangemients to sell ;ts entire mterests )

~o-in fmance receivables to. the third: party finaricial institutions:

« The transactions under the afrangem en’is are accounted

* o as sales in accordance with ASC 860 “Transfers and. -

. "Servicing.” * The transfers of finance recewables for the year
- ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 were ¥19, 185 million. ..
- and ¥11,710 mi illion’ while there were no significant transfers

of finance recelvables for the: year ended Décember 31 2021

' \ The amount that remamed uncollected was ¥23 984 mﬂlmn

"y ,7 ACQUISITIDNS

On September 28, 2()21 Canon acqulred 8? 0% of the issued
--shares of Redlen Technologles Inc, (“Redlen”), a Canada‘based .
... company, for the cash cons:deratton of ¥31 640 mllhon mak— ’
o ingita wholly owned subSIdlary of Canoh, v
- Redfen- possesses advanced technalogles of radlatmn detec—f h
A ,tton ‘and imaging : solundns of Cadmilim, Zine Telluride (“CZT”) :
- semiconductor detector modules which play an lmportant role
“in‘the development of photon—muntmg CT systems (“PCCT")

. This technotogy will enable Canon to accelerate the develop— :
““ment of competitive PCLT sys’tems, and strengthen it CT, "

systems and the medical systems business. In “addition; Canon
o will pmvnde CZT semiconductor detector modules to medtcal
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equipment manufadurers around the world, thus helping o’

. strengthen Canon's medical component busmess In.this way, il
B Canon will continue to comnbute to the adva ncement of
B global dlagnosttc tmagmg

.. The acquisition was accounted for usmg the acqmsn» LR

i thon methad of accountlng Acqulsmon-related costs ware ;‘.'.

‘,and ¥36 339 mllllon at December 31 202 1 and 2020 respec—
tively. ‘Cash proceeds fromi the transactions are included in -
_,'other net under the cash flow from: operating activities in the -

_ consolidated statements of cash flows. Canon continues to

- provide collection and administrative services for the financial

R lms‘ututlons The amount assoc:ated with the servicing fiability

. .measured at falr value was not srgmfscant at December 31,
2021 and. 2020. Canon also rétains limited recourse obliga-
s thnS which cover credit defaults The recourse obllgattons
were not sngmﬁcam at December AN, 2021 and 2020,

expensed as mc:urred and were not matenal Pnor tc: the

acquisition date,. .Canon held an investment in Redleri at a -
value of ¥1,252 million. Using step acqunsmon accounting,

. Canon remeasured the, acqunsntlon-date carrying value of its -
previously held equity investment to its fair value of ¥5, 223
‘million using the fair value of Redlen < issued shares on the

. acquisition date, which resulted in a gain of approximately

Y3, 971 million, recorded in other, net of other income (deduc- '

’ ftions) in the consolidated statements of income. |

.The. consideration. for the acquisition was provisionally

' valued at the acquisition date based on the'Share Purchase
+ Agreemment; and subsequently, an.adjustment was made to

“the acqulsmon price within the measurement period afterthe
-~ acquisition date and determined as of December 31, 2021, As
_-a result, the. fair value of the prevmusly held equity investrment |
- before the acquisitiori date and the gam on the step acquisi-
)tron have been ad]usted
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The final allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed on the acquisition date was as follows:-

_FINANCIAL SECTION CORPORATE DATA

. Milli0n§ of yen’
Current assets 4,043 ‘
Intangible assets 8,955
Goodwill | 28,826
Others 389
Assets acquired 42,213
Liabilities assumed 5,350
Net assets acquired . 36,863

The intangible assets acquired are composed by ¥8,929
million of technical assets and ¥26 million of other intangible
assets, and is subject to amortization. The useful life of the
technical assets and the other intangible assets are 21 years
and 5 years, respectively. The weighted average useful life of
the total intangible assets is‘approximately 21 years.

Goodwill is composed of the synergy effects of merging
Redlen and Canon which is not tax deductible. The items is
allocated to the Medical Business Unit when conducting the

8. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible: assets subject to amortization acquired during the
year ended Dacember 31, 2021, including those recorded
frorm businesses acquired as stated in Note 7, totaled ¥36,015
million, which primarily consist of software of ¥25,965 mil-
lion. The weighted average amortization periods for intangible
assets in total acquired during the year ended December 31,
2021 are approximately 9 years. The weighted average amor-
tization period for software acquired during the year ended
Decernber 31, 2021 is approximately 5 years.

impairment test of goodwill. Net sales and net income of

Redlen generated from the acquisition date which is reflected -

in the consolidated statement of income for the year ended
December 31,2021 was not material. :

The operating results with the assurmiption of including the
financial statements of Redlen in Canon’s consolidated finan-
cial statements for the yéar-ended December 31, 2020 and
the year beginning on January 1, 2021 were not d:sclosed
because the impact was not material. :

Intangible assets subject to amortization acquired dur-
ing the year ended December 31, 2020; including those
recorded from businesses acquired, totaled ¥31,413 million,
which primarily consist of software of ¥29,137 million. The
weighted average amortization periods for i intangible assets

_in total acquired during the year ended December 31, 2020
~“are approximately 6 years. The weighted average amortization

period for software acquired during the year ended December
31, 2020 is approximately 5 years.

The components of intangible assets subject to amortization at December 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

December 31

.- Millions of yen

T 2021 ) o . 2020 -

Gross carrying Accumulated Gross carrying Accumulated
amount amortization amount amortization
Software 399,331 300,905 . 379,504 - 279,372
Customer relationships 158,513 58,465 155,648 46,613
Patents and developed technology 133,923 . 70,795 124,315 59,328
Trademarks 45,726 21,350 44914 17,800
License fees 16,881 10,098 13,651 6,065
Other 18,765 10,521 . 17,163 9,235
773,139 473,134 735,195 418,413
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J “‘Year ended December31 . Mnllmns of yen .
: L2021 e .
[ N S A N oo e Industrial 'and STV N
Ll . ‘Prifting lmaging . - Madical Others - St - Total
: 'iGoodwut- gross & 142,185 - 289,999 - - 506,513 9,283 . - 947,980
i13.,'::::'\1mula’ted |mpa1rment iosses " ‘(32,416) S Yo d s ) i {32,416)
i Ba!ance at beginning of year . o 109,769 . 289,999 - 506,513 9,283 | 915564
C Goodwx! acquxred during the year . . g el gy . 28,826 - o= 28,826
Translation adjustments and other"-"f o ©2931 . 3750 . . 1,844 . 935 - . 9,460
Goodwill - gross N o 146,025 293,749 537,183 © 10,218 987,175
,'Accumuiated lmpalrment Iosses AT (33,325) " . -~ R — BRI '{33.325)
-~ Balance at end of year ~ 112,700 293,749 - 537,183 10,218 953,850 -
i vé'ar'eﬁagdbece&xﬁéf.m s Millions of yen
e a - 2020 .
] ST : L . © " Industral and: ‘.
. . Printing *© .. - Imaging . .. Medical . -Others . Total’
}Goodwm-gmss - i .-139,036 . 272,241 . 508,907 9,767 929,951
: 'Accumu!ated :mparrment Iosses e s (31,290)‘ F ey ae T e BT Temer —— - (31,290)
_ ¢ Balance’atbeginning of year -~ - . 107,746 272,241 - 508907 . 9,767 . 898,661
ﬂj‘Gocdwﬂl acquired during the yaar et oAl el e LT M e T e
Translation adjustments-and other ' S0 72,033 o 17,758 ¢ (2,394) . (484) - 16,903
“Goodwill ~gross . L 142,185 . 289,999 - . 506,513 9,283 947,980
/‘Accumutaied lmpalrment Iosses - ' (32 416) Dok EC P " (32,416)
CET Balance at end of year. . " 109,769 289,999 506,513 . 9,283 915,564

- December. 31, 2021,2020 and 2019 was ¥64,913.million, "~
. "¥65,092 million-and ¥66,909 million, respectively. Estimated o
: amortizatlon expense for intangible assets currently heidfor .~
L “the next five years ending December 315 ¥55,921 million”
, im 2022 ¥47 476 mtlllon in 2023 ¥38 534 mtlhon in 2024 :

 NOTES TO. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS = "

 Aggregate aniortization ekperise for thie years ended

Ly ¥31 977 mrlhon in 2025 and ¥28 302 mi hon in 2026

lntanglb!e assets not subject to amartlzatxon other than
goodwﬂl at December 31,2021 and 2020 were not significant.
For management reporting purpnses goodmll is not alio-

" cated tor the reporting unit. Goodwill has been allocated to'its -
'respectwe reportmg unit for xmpanrment testung )

The changes in the carrymg amoun'( cf goodwxu by segment for the years ended December 31, 2021-and 2020 were as follows:

Lok Eased an the rea lgnment of Cancns lntemal reportmg and management structure from the- begmnmg of 2021, Canan has cham_‘;ed the name and structure of )

. segments to Prmtmg Business Unit,- |magmg Business: Unit, Medical Business Unit,-and tndustriat and Others Busmess Unit. C hangﬂs in the carrying amounts of

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021~
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9. SHORT-TERM LOANS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Short-term loans related 1o financial services are external loans
held by Canon’s lease subsidiaries for the purpose of financ-.
ing its custorners through-loans: Short-term loans related to
financial services consisting of bank borrowings at December
31, 2021 and 2020 were ¥42,300 million and ¥45,000 mil-
lion, and other short-term loans consisting of bank borrowings

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

FINANCIAL SECTION . CORPORATE DATH

were ¥1,301 million and ¥1,461 miflion respectively. The
weighted average interest rate on short-term borrowings out-
standing at December 31, 2021 and 2020 were 0.19% and
0.26%, respectively. Unused overdraft fadilities at December

31,2021 were ¥750,000 million. The overdrafi facilities bear .

interest-at a rate equai to a base rate plus a spread.

Millions-of yen

December 31
. - 2021 C 2020
Loan from banks; bearing interest of 0.21% at December 31, 2021 ' B o
and 0.09% at December 31, 2020 *' . 174,000 344,000
Other debt *2 . 7,040 6,608
181,040 - 350,608
Less current portion {1,290) (345,774)
179,750 4,834

*1 Canon prepaid ¥170,000 million of the cutstanding loan under the unsecured revolving credit faciity contracts on December 28, 2021 before its due date. The
remaining balance of ¥174,000 million was refinanced with a new expiration date-in December 2023 under the credit facilities. The outstanding loans under
the credit facilities are ¥174,000 million ‘at a floating interest of 0.21% and Canon has o uhused credit faclities as of Decermber 31, 2021.

*2 Other. debt consisted of term-loans and finance lease obligations as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. ‘. .

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt outstanding at December 31_, _2021 Were as folbws: ‘

Millions of yen

Year énding Decermber 31:
2022 1,290
2023 174,920

" 2024 609
2025 417
2026 237
Thereafter . 3,567

. 181,040

Both short-term-and long-term bank loans are primarily
made under general agreements which provide that security
and guarantees for present and future indebtedness will be -
given upon request of the bank, and that the bank shall have

10. TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables are summarized as follows:

the right to offset cash deposits agé'rnst obligations that have
become due or, in the event of default, agamst all obhgatmns
due to the bank.

December 31 Millions af yen |
S202¢0 - 2020
Notes 82,243 83,468
Accounts 256,361 220,341
338,604 . 303,809
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' NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

The Company and certam of rts substdnarres have contnbutory ‘
.and noncontnbutory defined benefit pension plans’ covering
. substantially all of their employees Beneﬁts payable under the )
-plans are based on employee earnings and years of service.
The Company and certain of ts sub5|d|anes also have defmed o
. contribution pension pians covering substanﬁaily all of their .

- ~employees. Canon Medical Systems Corporation {"CMSC") .

_as follows'
© " December 3J « . Millions of yen
LT .9: . 7 Japanese plans - ° ) -Foreign planis
, ; : -202% - 2020 Se 202¢ 2020 7
Changé in beneﬁt ob lgatlons Db, LI
‘ Pm;ected beneflt obhgattons at begmnmg of year ‘ 911,121] ' 925 390 477,337 © 439,624
~Service cost - , , ; 30,194 - 30,604 3,827 - 5303
;' Interest cost .. o : - C4BIS. (4,064 . 5,965 6,087
‘Plan’ participants’ contnbutlons e el o BB8 860, -
Actuarial (gain) loss. -~ 2935 (11,432 . (21,133) 43,202
. ‘Benefits paid (39,390} . (36,646)  (13.471) & (12,351) .
Plan amendments T4 (859 (0617 - (1,463) .
Curtailments and setﬂements . L S = . (8B2)  {5.004) . -
. Foreign currency: exchange Tate changes S F - — 34,346 ] 2,’079
Projected  benefit obligaticris at end of year . 909,634 911,121 ‘476 230 477,337
. .Chanige in plan assets: , N e R
- +Fair value of plan assets at begmnmg cf year t 724,039 704 169 . ,:321 713 294,829
* Actual return on plan assets - o 0 52,688 - 36060 24024 23912
Employer contributions -+~ T11,6520 . 13,360 . - 32,130 . 13,605 .
* Plan partlc;pan’rs‘ contnbutlons I 658 - T 860 .
" Benefits’ pald Lo .. (31,636) - .(29,550) ' - (13,471)" . (12,351} -
-+ Settlements - N : v S — = 4743 (805)
~_Foreign cur’rency exchange rate changes s — 28,115 1,663 .. -
. - Fair value of plan assets at end of year v 756,743 . 724,039 394,912 321,713
- ‘Funded status atend of year R : (152;89‘1): (187;0'8'2) - (81.318) (155,624)
Amounts recogmzed in the consohdated balance sheets at December 31 2021 and 2020 are as foﬂows
E 'December 31, Mnmons ofyen
R ” Japanése plans - Foreigh plans
o L - ,2020 S 200 2020
", Other.assets... L2911 0 2684 . 13,596 2,236
Accrued expenses : S SV ( 208} e +(1,041) (938)
,Accrued pens;on and severance cost - . (154,594) (1'88,975) (93.873) (156,922) .
i 4t ' (187,082) (155,624)
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- temporarily pamcxpated in Toshiba Corporate Pension Funids. - *
- (*Toshiba Funds”) after Toshiba Medical Systems Corporation -
) '(currently, Canon Medxcal Sys’[ems Corporatmn) was acqu;red
by Canonin 2016. in April 2018, CMSC establishied a new ©
" pension provision which prowdes partucspants an equivalent -
’ !evel of beneﬁts as compared to the Toshiba Funds As of

' \lelgatmns and funded status i : -
- Reconciliations of begmmng and endlng balances of the prolected beneflt obhga’ﬂons and the fair vaiue of the plan assets are

A 11, EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT AND SEVERANCE BENEFITS

B December 31, 2018 a majcnty of pian partuc»pams had been.\
- transferred from the Toshiba Funds into the new pension pro- -
~wision: Canon calculated the pmjected benefit obligations for = .
..~ the remaining participants within the Toshiba Funds based on .

the benefit level of the Toshiba Funds and included the pro-

- portional share of the plan assets to WhiCh CMSC had a legal”

right in the following tables for the remammg participants as

+ of December 31, 2018.In March 2019, CMSC settled the pen-
“sion ‘obligations at’trrbuted to the remaining participants within

the Toshiba Funds. The loss recogmzed due to the settlement

if the consolidated statement of | income for the year ended -
L December 31,2019 was not sugmflcant V

{152,891) (81,318)
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Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehenswe income (loss) at December 31,2021 and 2020 before the effect of
income taxes are as follows: , :

December 31 , , ‘ . Millions of yen ,
- Japanese plans , Foreign plans
2021 2020 2029 . 2020
Actuarial loss . 156,028 . 192,931 - 104,647 142,455
Prior service credit (20,371) ~ (28,633) . (10,319) - (520)
135,657 164,298 . 94,328 ° 141,935

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit plans was as follows; .

December 31 : : » ' . " Miillions of yer

Japanese plans . . Forsign plans.
: - 2021 2020 ) 2021 2020
Accumulated benefit obligation 2 883,462 . 879,136 462,306 460,536

The pro;ected benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets for the pension plans with projected benefit bbligations in
excess of plan assets, and the accumulated benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets for the pensaon plans with accu—
mulated benefit obligations in excess of planassets are as follows: , A

Devember 31 ) i ' . Millions of yen

lapanese plans C Foreign plans
2021 2020 2021 . . 2020
Plans with projected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets; o oo e
Projected benefit obligations N 895,898 897,669 473,860 475,137
.Fairvalue of :plan assets w .739,581 - 707,708 391,054 318,079
Plans with accurmnulated benefit obligations inexcess of plan assets: 2 ' ‘ ' ,
Accumulated benefit obligations 870,314 874,327 - 455,164 453,120
Fair value of plan assets . ) 739,581 707,708 336,223 312,748

Components of net periodic benefit cost and other amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (loss)

Net periodic benefit cost for Canon’s employee retirement and severance defmed benefit plans for the years ended December 31,

2021, 2020 and 2019 consisted of the following components:

Years ended December 31 ) ) : Millions of yen

Japanese plans * " Foreign plans
) 2021 2020 2019 . . 2021 - 2020 ¢ 2019
Service cost : ; 30,194 30,604 © 30,903 - 3,827 5303 6264
Interest cost ‘ , 4815 4064 5074 5965 6087 8643
Expectéd return on plan assets ' (21,618} (21,(‘)1_?.,)' §19;553)«'- {(15,221) {12,006) - (11,919
Amortization of prior service credit ~ . {8,303) '(3,732)' (11,879 . (818) '(675) - {133)
Amortization of actuarial loss 8,768 12,401 15247 7,381 6,122 4345 °
{Gain) loss on curtailments and settlements —_— e {3y 0 — 236 (2,197} }

13,856 17,324 19,758 1,004 5067 5003 -

Service cost component of net periodic benefit cost for - consolidated statements of income. The components other than

Canon's employee retirement and severance defined benefit “the service cost component are included in o’ther,‘ net of other
plans is included in"cost of sales and operating expenses in the income {(deductions) in the consolidated statements of income.
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i Years ended December 31

A ; . Forelgn plans
s TR 2021 ¢ 2020 . (2019 2021 - - 2020 . 2019
Can Current year actuana] (gam) oss (28 135) - (26,479) (19,328 © (29,936) 31,296 . 28,882
“Current year prior service' ‘credit 4N ©59) L= L (10,617)  (1463) . 362
Amortization of actuartal loss = 7 (8,768)_,(12,401), (15,247) © (7,381)  (6,122) (4,345)
. Amortization of prior service credlt }8,3:03' . 8732, 1,877 818 675 133
Ry Curtatlments and settlements L e i U (9BQ) (531 (966) (1,411 .
' o i 5 - (28,641) " (31,007). (23,658) (47,607). 23420 23,621 °
.,'Assumpttons , , : : '
Wevghted-average assumpt;ons used 1o determme beneﬂt oh |gatf0ns are as foliows
; December 31 —— Japanese plans » . Foreign plans
ki Pl 2021 . 2020 . 2021. 2020
- Dlscount rate- : S : - 05% - 05% . 15%. 15%
" - Assumed rate of incréase in future compensatuon levels 26% - 26% - 07% 09%
lnterest credmng rate for cash balance plans - 19% 9% . 108% 1.0%
Werghted-average assumptlons used to determme net perlodlc beneft ccst are as fol lows:_ ’
o ‘(ears ended Decemher 31 Japanese plans Forelgn piar;s
: N 2021 2020 2019 o202 2020 2019
: ‘stcount rate Lo - : 05% 05%  06%  15%. 16%  24%
: Assumed rate of mcrease in future compensatlon Ievels L2.6% 26% 26% " . - 09% 1{.0%_‘ 19%
. \'Expected long-term rate of return on ‘plan assets : 3.0% . . j,BLO%', ©30%. 4.4% - "4.8% - 52%
L rnterest credltmg rate for cash- balance plans _1.9% - 1.9% - 1 9%1 L 1.0% (10% - 1 O%

 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .

Other changes in p[an assets. and beneﬂt obhganons recognlzed ln other comprehenswe income (Ioss) for the years ended

\,‘December 31 2021 2020 and 2019 are summarrzed as follows

" Millions of yen - -

- Japaniese plans - U

Canon determl nes the expected Iong-‘rerm rate of ratui rn ‘

h based onthe expected long-term return of the various asset
e categcrses in whlch it mvests Canon consrders the current - -

Plan assets

~Canon’s’ investment pohcnes are desngned to ensire adequate 2
 plan assets are ‘available to prowde fuitire paymerits of pen-
“sion benefits to eligible partxc;pants Takmg into account the
- expécted long-term rate of return on plan assets, Canon for-

mulates a “model” portfoho compnsed of the optimal com- .

L ,_ﬂbmatron of equm/ securities and debt securities. Plan assets o
‘are invested in mdwtdual equity and debt securities using the
S guudeimes of the * model” portfolio in order to produce atotal -

" return that wil match the expected r retum ona mid-termto’

'70 :

) Fong—term basis, Canon evaluates the gap between expected
= Ureturniand actual retum of invested plan assets on an armua!
<" basis to determme if such differences necessitate a rewsmn in oo

*the formulatlcm of the. mode| * portfolio. Canon revises the
- "model” portfcha whenand to the extent considered necessary

T to achieve the expected long-term rate of return on p[an assets.

Canon’s model portfoho for Japanese plans consists of

: ,‘.three major componen‘ts approxlmately 25% is invested .
Jin equ:ty secumles approxlmately SO% Isi nvested in debt ;

. CANON ANNUALREPORT2021.

: expectat ions for future retums and the actual historical returns
of each pian asset category : o

. - securities, éhd approximately 25% is invested in other prod-.
ucts, stich as Investments-in insurance contracts |nclud|ng hfe
insurance company general accourits.

- Outsrde lapan, investment policies vary by ccuntry, but

Canon’s model portfoho for foreign plans:consists of three -
" -major camponents approximately 20% i is invested in equity
. “secufities, approximately 30% is invested in debt securltles,

©.and approxtmately 50% is |r'vasted in other products such as '

- 'mvestments inreal estate assets
- The target allocation percentages of (an asseTs set by
) vCanons investment policies approximate the actual allocation
© -percentages of plan assets at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
The equity securities are selected pri maniy from stocks that
. are listed on securities exchanges. Prior to investing, Canon
,mvestlgates the. business condition of the investee companies,
.. and appropnate!y diversifies investments by type of industry
"and other relevant factors. The debt securities are selected pri-
manly from government bonds, public debt instruments, and

corporate bonds. Prior to investing, Canon investigates the



STRATEGY

BUSIMESS SEGMENT/

CORRURATE STRUCTURE

‘quality of the issue, including rating, interest rate,-and repay-
ment dates, and appropriately diversifies the investments.
Pooled funds are selected using strategies consistent with
the equity and debt securities described above. As for insur-
ance contracts, there are several types of insurance contracts
between Canon and the life insurance companies including
life.insurance company general accounts which guarantee
the payments of interest based on expected interest rates

FINANCIAL SECTION

CORMORATE DATS

and return of capital, and insured pension plans which cover
future designated contractual benefit paymenits to covered
participants. With respect to investments-in foreign: fmanc:aﬁ
-products, Canon investigates the stability of the underlying
governments:and economies; the market characteristics such
as settlement systems and the taxation systems. For each such’
investment, Canon selacts the appropriate mvestment country
and currency. ‘

The three levels of input used to measure fair value are more fully descrlbed in Note 22. The fair values of Canons pensmn ‘
plan-assets at December 31, 2021 and 2020, by asset category, are as folfows :

Deceémber 31

" Millions of yen

2021
Japanese plans ’ ' Fareigh plans
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Levef 3 Total
Equity securities: ' a
lapanese companies (a) 95,698 s — 95,698 o —_ e —
Foreign companies 12,746 - ~ 12,746 11,628 — = 11,628
Pooled funds (b} — 180,286 — 180,286 —_ 43,026 — 43 G26
Debt securities; ) -
Government bonds (¢) 133,691 — — 133,691 —_ ===
Municipal bonds -~ 1,264 — 1,264 — 2,899 - o— . 2,899 -
~ Corporate bonds — - 19,373 — 19,373 = 7821 o = 7,821
Pooled funds (d) — 145,348 == 145,348 -_— 138,687 o 138,687
Mortgage backed securities . e e T
(and other asset backed securities) — 11,449 - 11,449 — 6,826 — 6,826
Insurance contracts — 114,624 — 114,624 — 6,287 39,398 45685
Other assets — 28,181 366 28,547 — 106,657 ~ 532 107,189
Investment measured at net asset value — — C— 13,717 - — 31,151
] 242,135 500,525 - 366 756,743 ° 11,628 312,203 38,930 394,912
December 31 Millions of yen
2020 .
Japanese plans ’ : Foreign plans - ; )
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 tevel 2 level 3 Total
Equity securities: . ' k '
Japanese companies (e) 80,201 — ~~ 80,201 o - - -
Foreign companies 9,807 — _— 9,807 10,267 it —. 10,267
Pooled funds (f) — 168745  — 168745  — 37538 ~  — 37538
Debt seclirities: R B
Government. bonds (g} 136,771 — — 136,771 — — — . —
Municipal bonds — 1,126 e 1,126 o 2,324 B ﬁ»——f ‘ 2,324
Corporate bonds — 15,617 — " 15,617 — 6,375 — . 8,375
Pooled funds (k) — 140,825 —. 140,825 ~ 108,499 —_— 08,499 .
Mortgage backed securities ) o . ) : o
{and ather asset backed securities} o 8,308 —_ 8,308 o 2,696 .7 — 2,696
Life insurance company general accounts — 117,762 = 117,762 — . 27853 . . — 27,953
Other assets — 28,731 1,356 30,087 - 102,159, . +— 102,159
Investment measured at net asset value e —_— — 14,790 ) —_ = — 23902
226,779 481,114 ~ 1,356 724,039 10267 287544  — 321,713 '
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(@ The plans équigz'sé-‘mﬁt;’es»iﬁ'c;q@é common stock of e " Japanasa municipal bonds, ang 15% corporate bonds for.
e ,}Compényahd’.certain ‘of it sﬂbsfi:fia_’ries in the amounts of - - '.*.'flapanesé.p?ans. These furids:’n_‘vest in approximately 609, -
L ¥234 million, .. . et e T R fora

foreign gow:rnment} bonds and 4904 Corporate bonds for .

T (b) These fiunds invest in Jisteq equity Securitios -cortsisting of - - foreign pjans; - SR

o ' companigs fquapénesé ple&_ns,;_aryd mainly. oreign compa- Eéch-(ééel

S {d) These funds inyésf}n ébbr_dxifhaie!yl'zvs% Japanese gq‘(¥",i s ‘quoted market préées in active Markets wit
B aefnmentbon&gs, 5% foreign Qove'rnm"enrbonds, % ,and.freqper‘)'cy Qf,f{ansacticns. £ :

e (h) These fungs invest in abp;o;kirﬁatély 25% Jébanéﬁé gov- " 2020 Were ot significant.. - e

- companjes for Japariese ptans,
L nies fqr-foreignp’lans, MR Lo Fratae
- ()] This'g:{ass_‘ ing:iu'd_es approx:‘mateéy 859 Japanese govern-

. approgimatélyv'aa%:lapanese Companies and 7o, foreign. -

- Nies for forejgn plans.

oy © This class incfude;.éppfbxirfrately 80% Japanese govérn. - not netessari)y‘fn dicate the risks o ratings of the assets, -
o ment bonds and 209 for'eign"govemmenf bonds for . ' Level 1 assets are omptised principalty of equity securities

, -Iap_anese' Plaris.

Japanesé Plans. These funds invest ih.épbfcxfmatelyﬁ% © that invest in equity an debt securities, corporate bonds,

e Japanese Municipal bonds, and _15%?é:qrpc‘;rate‘bbhds for ' level > assets are compriseq princibaffy of pboled funds -
d

,fgreign.goverhmgnt bdhds"gad 25% Corporate bondsfof{ g mv@stmen_t‘s in fife insurancetcgmpany general accountsang -
‘ ans.. - S e . cfher‘ra‘sets, Pooled fund§'a{e'valuedaftheirrnét asset valyes

o) The plan’s gi;ui;jf securities include cdr%m?io'nitéck ofthe that are Galculated by the SPONsor of the fyng and have daity -

Company and certain of jts Subsidiaries in the amoiints of ; "quuiditx Corporste bonds’are valued using quoteidprices for v
: ion, . E T . identical assets in markets that.ara riot active, Investments jpy -

appr‘oximat_'eiy 30% Japanasa com,nanies 'a'nd 70% ereign © - sion valye. Othey assets arg comprised principally of intergst -

: (h Thésefunﬁ‘s linvé:,t’ in ﬁs‘tedA EquUIty securities éonsiSting of - life insurance COMpany general accounts are valyed at conver-

" The fair (famés"cjflevel 3 asset, cons;stfr}g of investments jr,

o nsured pension plans and hedge fungs, were ¥ 40,296 million

ment bonds and 159 fo‘reign'govemmentbdnds fo - and ¥1,356 million at December 31,2071 and 2020, respec- .

foreign‘ Plans;

A . Japanese plans, éﬁﬁ -mar‘n‘ly‘ foreign, goyemment bongs for tively\Amounts,df 'a&tUai,ré’t’ugns On, purchases and sales of -

" these assets during the years ended December 31,2021 apg -

R ernment bongs, 55%.'fqreign_ government bonds, 5% -

COntﬂbutmns LS SE T it L] S
" Canon expects 10 contribute ¥1 5,942 miflion to'jts Japanese définag benefit pension p!ans_and ¥18,165 million to its forejgn,

“x defl/'n’gd‘ﬁenem;pens}bn 'p.‘an'sfoffhe year eqdihg'December?B?; 2022, c

> Yearlleﬁdfng Decempey 3t

s L I o ase
R b S Rl N S B B
2027 22031 e ST 28342 116447

’ “Multiempioye pension plags -

T e Millions of ye, - : L
... lapaness plans Foreign plans o -
44769 S 15278 ‘
44772 . 15,887

*The amounts oftdst}ecﬂgmzed for thé:?ﬁumempioyer'ﬁén‘—" - o 3152020, The terms of the c‘ol!ec'tive bargainihg agreements

2 '.éANbﬁANNUALRERORTZ&?i . g

- sion Plans primarily in’ he Nethertands for the Yearsended ¢ e Negotiated on a rag lar basis Between the local faboy -
" December 31 2021, 2020 ang 2019 weres ¥4,822 rﬁiﬂidn,‘ ey unipn; and: Participating employers: Canon is not liable for
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Defined contribution plans “for the years ended.December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019
The amounts of cost recagnized for the defined contribution  were ¥22,660 million, ¥16 334 mlmon and ¥17, 414 rmlhon

~ pension plans of the Companyand certain of its subsidiaries respectwely

12. INCOME TAXES

Domestic and foreign components of income before i income taxes and the current and deferred rncome tax expense attnbutab!e

0 such income are'summarized &s follows:

Millions of yen

Years ended December 31
2021 ,
Japanese . Foreign, - . Total
Income before income taxes 165,927 136,779 302,706
Income: taxes: : . 2 e
Current ;47,491 34,201 81,692
Deferred . 6,883 {16.709) (9,826) .
54,374 17,492 71,866
Years-ended December 31 Milfions of yeh
) 2020
’ Japanese - Foreign Total
Income before income taxes 48,186 82,094 130,280
income taxes:. N o o
Current 24,063 25,816 49,879
Deferred (6,007) (9,535) (15,542)
‘ 18,056 16,281 34,337
Years ended Decernber 31 Millions of yen
2019 -
Japanese - Foreign Total - .
Income: before income taxes 107,082 88,411 195,493
Income taxes: ‘ , . - .
Current 39,483 23,186 “62,669 -
Deferred (4,276) (2,247) (6,523)
35,207 : 20,939 56,146

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject toa - statutory income tax rate of appromma’te!y 31% forthe years
number of income taxes, which, in the aggregate, represent a ended December 31 2021 2020 and 2019

* CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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ot A reconcrhatlon of the Japanese statutory moome tax rate and the eﬁectwe mcome tax rate as a percentage of rncome before
e mcome taxes is as foltows : e ‘

':,YearsendedDecemberal P -’i,' y B f‘?“ <L ’ 2020 3 e 2019

" Japanese statutory iricome taxrate . - G s 0% . 31.0% 31.0%
_Increase (reduction) in income taxes resultmg from I PN R R ST e
. "Expenses not deductible for tax purposes - - ‘ 0.,7' ‘ .23 o 17
- 31?:2?; eof forengn‘ submdranes taxed at lower than Japanese statutory @) - :-. B (5.831 ; 2. 9
" Tax credit for research and deveiopment expenses _ '_5 TR - ) 1 CLoan L 23)
Change in valuation allowance .~~~ - e s (38) 0 T w24 T T (18
" Deferred tax liabilities on undrstnbuted earmngs of forergn subsrdianes A5 .- 26 - 24
L Tax credst atfore;gn subsrdranes A e A . g 4,.,‘(0‘.3); ST (1.3) e (1)
-/ Effect of enacted changes intaxlaws oo T Py el R & 1) O § P13 SR (1 %)
Other” " s e (1) 17

=Effectwemcometaxrate Pt o S ) “237% . 264% o 287%

Net deferred mcome tax assets and hablll‘ues are mcluded in the accompanyl ng consahdated ba!ance sheets under the follow- ‘
- 'ejmg captrons ' w0 : ; :

> 'Decemberm SR T e T Rt e T Miliorisofyen , <0

BRI C Tath s B e et g BB S T ey -t 2020

‘,-.Otherassets o b ey T TR e R e T T 138,507 3»15_4‘225»

{-'OIher noncurrent ilablhtles LU N ek e w e A e s a09). - (A8,247). .
T s L L R . : i : ‘ 95.105 : 105979‘

- The tax effects of temporary di fferences that gwe rise to the deferred tax assets and deferred tax lxabr imes at December 31,
“‘v'2021 and 2020 are presented below C : Y o

‘ ,xbecemberBl . . o A SR JETT “ Millions of yen

oo Celag2r . . 2020

i Deferredtaxasseis N R Y . .. SR A .3

»rf..ﬂAccrued busrnesstax F IR O T L e ST % |7 SN ¥ -7

" Accrued pension and severance: cost . " oo e 77 . 87,752 . - 95386

: ,‘Research and’ development costs caprtahzed for tax purposes.; ) Ao i 5004 .+ - 4,989
_fProperty, plant and gquipment” A el Se e o e 35,6580 . . 34923

. Operating lease’ llabrhtres B T L 12,328 - 20,163

. Accrued expenses P AR R o o 29,331 . 28,243

‘Net operatmg Easses carned fmward T e e T 33,873 7 29,591

- Other - N et " 1> * 42,741 ..
o e, o RS T " i B 252;217 A‘ N - 258,21.6‘.
- Less valuation: -allowante . {19,073} (30,752) -

Total deferred tax assets ‘. T T T T esaea 237,464

_ Deferred tax hablitres o SR T et :
- Undistributed earmngs of forexgn subsrdranes ST TR T -{(19,677) '(9,147)
Aff'Tax deductible reserve © e S Tee T e T s T (8,007) . (4,040)
< Financing lease revenie T . oo 0 o LT (14,602) - (15,041)
' Operating lease right-of-use assets” - oo T S (17,066) (19425 - - -
Intangible. assets S s T (B,AT3) - (54,948)
“‘Other o I L Tt h o L T ©{31,514) -~ - .. {28,884)

* Total deferred tax Ilabllltres SR T T e T (138,089) - {131,485)

Netdeferredtaxasse’ts : ‘;’3 T N S e v . 95405 . 105,979
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The net changes in- the total valuation allowance were a projections for future taxable vi'néome over the periods which
decrease of ¥11,679 million, an increase of ¥3,074 millionand  the net deductible temporary differences are expected to.
a decrease of ¥3,056 million for the years ended December reverse, management believes it is more likely than riot that
31,2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Canon will realize the benefits of these deferred tax assets, net .
Based on the level of historical taxahle income and of the valuation allowance, at December 31, 202'1, :

At December 31, 2021, Canon had net operating Iossés'whlch can be carried .for'ward for incomie tax purposes of ¥175, 581

million to reduce future taxable income. Periods available to reduce future taxable i |ncome vary in each tax Jurtsdlctlon and gener—“

ally range from one year to an indefinite period as follows:

Millions of yen_

Within one year, ‘ ' , : C 1,208
After one year through five years : _ ' o 13,869
After five years through ten years - ' S - . 44316
- After ten years through twenty vears . ‘ - 8223
Indefinite period ; . ' S 107,967
~ ‘ o 175,581

Income taxes have not been accrued on undistributed eamn-  subsidiaries of ¥875,208 million as of December 31, 2021
ings of domestic subsidiaries as the tax law provides a means because Canon interids to permanently reinvest such uridis-

by which the dividends from a domestic subsidiary can be tributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries. Deferred tax liabilities

received tax free. - will be recognized when such undistributed earrungs are no
Canon has not recognized deferred 1ax labilities of ¥15 162 longer permanently reinvested.
million for a portion of undistributed earnings of foreign ‘ ‘

A reconciliation of the begmmng and ending amount of unrecognized tax beneﬁts is as foilows

Years ended December 31 , y Millions of yert N

‘ 2021 2020 - 2019
Balance at beginning of year : . 8572 8,120 8,649
Additions for tax positions of the current year B e 1,168 s —
Additions for tax positions of prior years o ( 216 208 - 204 a
Reductions for tax positions of prior years o L ‘ @9 - - @
Settlements with tax authorities R ;7 HE — T (402)
Other - C ey 2038
Balance at end of year* , . 9,813 8,572 8,120

* The unrecognized tax benefits were offset by deferred tax assets in the amount of ¥1,695 million, ¥1,412 mllhon and ¥933 million-as of December 31 2021
2020 and 2019, respectively, and reported under "other noncurrent liabifities” on the consolidated balance sheets. )

The total amounts of unrecognized tax benefifs that would  and penalties accrued at December 31, 2021 and 2020

reduce the effective tax rate, if recognized, were ¥9,813 and interest and penalties included in income taxes for the
million and ¥8,572 million at December 31, 2021 and 2020, - years ended December 31, 2021 2020 and 2019 were not
respectively. ) significant.

Although Canon believes its estimates and assumptions of Canon files income tax returns.in Japan and various for- '

unrecognized tax benefits are reasonable, uncertainty regarding  eign tax jurisdictions. In Japan, Canon is no longer subject to -
the final determination of tax examination settiements and any regular income tax examinations by the tax authority for years

related litigation could affect the effective taxrate in afuture ~ before 2021. Canon s also no longer subject to a transfer .

period. Based on each of the items of which Canon is aware pricing examination by the tax authority for years before 2021,

at December 31, 2021, no significant changes to the unrecog- fn other major foreign-tax jurisdictions, including the. Um’ted )

nized tax benefits are expected within the next twelve moriths. States and the Netherlands, Canon is no longer subject to
Canon recognizes interest and penalties accrued related incorne tax examinations by tax authontles for years before

to unrecognized tax benefits in income taxes, Both interest - 2014 with few except:ons

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021 75



e The Co}péraﬁé

"I TO CONSOLIDATED HNMOAL,STATEM&NTS[ B

BTN RESERVE AND RETAINED EARNINGS

and the legal . The amoun available for dividends under théterbo:ationf

- “feserye equals 25% of thexr‘respeqéve.sta.ted capital. The - - . taw'of Japan is based on the amount recorded in the «

S ‘Corporation Lay of Japan also providas that additiona| paid- Company’s "enconsolidated books of account in accordance o

e Changes idécc’;fimdfatiec{ other égmp_féhéhéf»‘e

. Comprehensive income (loss)

76 canon afngia, REPORT 2021+ .

i Cumulative offe

e eq}ityi?éﬂsadioﬁ; 'W{tﬁ','ﬁoncon{rélifng in,féfé&tsvénd:othér' . 424y - A

. j.,;Ne,tfchainge.dpringjtﬁe year- . oo
Balance at December 37 W97 T e
- Equity transactions with ﬁon’_c'oﬁtrbjling interests ang other - T . _
" Other campféhgns{ve income (joss) 5eférgrecla'ss}f{cati6ns'_' (17,355) - - (1,199) 7.530) . (26,084
G compréh‘ensive incomei{lq‘ss)

L _Ne;?ch‘angédr,éring: the year Lo

aalari‘c'efarue‘c‘emberé‘;, 2020 T

ot 'Bétance, at Decem

o In capital and legaj feserve are availablo for appropria‘ti;‘)hs‘by’ o With financia) accounting standards of Japan. Such amount
' resolution of the shérehqfders._cmain foreign subsidia;ieslar_e ol was ¥858,455 million at December 31,2021, S s
- also reqguired 10 appropriate their earnings 10 legal reseries 1+ ! Retained earnings at December 31 - 2021 included Canon’s
. : : oy 3 o -s REEEIA < i i fhas - . .

equity in. undistributed earnings of affiljated_ Companies .

" i Cash dix}iderjds and appmpriéﬁcsns‘-(m the !egaf'r“eéénfe i " accounted for by the equity methog in the amount of 3
* ‘tharged to retained earnings for the yéars endeg Decemiber - ¥17,858 million, L wa L
To3% 2029, 2020 and 2019 rapresent 'diyider;ds paid out duking s L S

14 0mHer CQMmEHENs;yEme‘oME (ossy. o7 s

income (oss) or the yeers enied Decerpper 31,2021, 2020 and 2019 are 44 follows;

Wy ' ; Millions of yen o
- Foreign cuprency ) ‘ T Pension .
e tanslation . - Gains-ang losses on - fability .

E _adjustments, ‘derivative instruments 'ar.ijusdtmen!s(

“fotai .

Ttects. of accounting
. ~adoption of ASY No. 2017-12

S0 Tz o=
‘ A (@24)
reclassifications “(31,889) . 1723 (12,763) . 46,373)
“Amounts reclassifieg from accumifateq other - w0 e L o ‘
.-.COmprehensive f‘n(;qme-(iass}z. L D e

AN Oth_erc‘omprehénsh}e income (loss) before

850 - 7,054 7,550
(39249

(308,447)

— T

Amounts redassifieq from '~accumu;éted other .. -

- i

, (‘17,'364}*

2186 7560 . 9,745

e Other c;imp;eheésfve‘iricfomef(toss}’ before assifications | i B3z - 49758 1g611s

. A_m\otfntifi'eda&siﬁed from accigmulatéd c}tﬁe} S

- Nét chahge‘éf&rihétﬁéyéaf._"~'.f R ‘ _
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Reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehenswe lncome (Ioss) for the years ended December 31 2021 2020 and

2019 are as follows:

Years ended December 31

accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) *

Amount reclassified from

Millions of yen

Affected ling ftems in. consolidated

2021 2020 2019 . staternents of income
Foreign currency translation adjustments (759) . . S:ﬂgg{sg?nera! and admsmstrattve
— —_ (154).  Other, net
235 e — Income taxes
(524) — {154) :Consolidafed net income
Net income atiributable to
— —_— —— ‘noncontralling interests
{524) — (154) Net income attributable to Canon Inc.
Gains and losses-on derivative instruments 3,285 3,034 661 . Net Sales
' {959) {775) (2) - Income taxes
2,326 2,259 659 Consolidated net.income
. Net income attributable to
10 (73) (9 nonr;ontrplﬁng interasts
2,336 2,186 " 650 Net inﬁome attributable mC‘anon Inc.
Pension liability. adjustments 7,519 10,082 9,953 - Other, net o
{1,625) - {2,484) {2,523) Income taxes
5,894 7,598 7,430 Consolrdated net income
o 'Net income attributable to
{829) (38) (376) non;ontro!llng interests. )
5,065 7,560 7,054  Net income attributable to Canon Inc.
Total amount reclassified, ‘ ‘ A
net of tax-and noncontroliing interests 6,877 9,746 7,550 -

* Amounts'in parentheses indicate gains in consolidated statements of income.
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Tax effects allecated to each component of cther comprehenswe mcome (Jcss) and reclassnﬁcatlon adjustments mdudmg t

amounts attﬁbutable to noncontrollmg lnterests are-as fnllows

’ Years ended De«:ember 31

Mitlions of yen.

[ Beforetax -

.2019;

- ';‘AOther comprehensive. income (loss) -

“CANON ANNUALREPORT 2021 - <

* Tox {expense) Net-0f-tax
: amount . ofbenefit - amount
o 2021; - ‘ Vo
] Foreign currency translatlon ad;ustments SiedE D Em e w TN
E Amount anslng durmg the year . S s 122',075" T (112) . 120,963
Reclassmcanon adjustments for gams and Iosses reahzed in. net mcame 2 {(759) . 235 = (524)
- “Net ¢hange during the year - - o T : 1213160 . (877).. - 120,439
"+ Net gains. and 1osses on derwa‘cl've mstruments ) P = ‘ .‘ -
. ~Amount, ansmg dunng the year R 4596) . ."1,298 . (3,298)
i Reciass:f:catlon adjustmenits. for gams and losses reahzed in net mccme ' 3,285 . (959) . .. 2,326
, “Net change durmg the year “1.311) . ’ _339 : (972)
Pensxon liability adjustments , BTN S B
Amount arising durmg the. year - : . -68,729 18,115) 50,614
* Reclassification adjustmems for gains and }csses rc-:-ahzed in net xncome ot 7519 C(1,625) 5,894
" _Net change during thé year w : C e 76,248 . {19,740) © - - 56,508
- Othier comprehenswe lncome {loss) " 196,253 - . (20,278) 175,975
20200 i 5 Ny R R S
3 Formgn currency translatlon ad]ustmems B0 L SR e T
- Amount arising dunng the year _) ' : e 17,583) ¢ 229 (17,354)
‘Reclassification-adjustments for gains and !esses reai:zed in. net tncame' T R S~
1 Net change during’ the year . i : . .(17.583) 1229 (17,354)
- "Net gains and losses on. derlvatﬁ/e mstrumen’rs i R .
Amount arising dur ing.the year - . : 0,731 442 1,289)
' Reclassification adjustments for gams and !osses reahzed in ne’c Income .- 3,034 - (775 2,259
e Net change dunng the year . 1,303 R ©{333) "9710
P Pensron habmty adjustments ‘ \ P ST e
Amolnt arising during the year : it R .7 - WY € . ) (6,216)
Reclassﬁlcatlcn adjustmen’rs for gams and: losses reallzed in net mcome i » J0,0B_Z' . (2,484) ; 7,5‘98 g
Net change dufing the’ year : ‘ o 7587 (6,205) - 1,382
Other, comprehensuve income. {Eoss) (8,693) - (6,309) (15,002)
. Forexgn currency translat:on adjustments o A L .
- Amount- ansmg during the year- S o Sl (32,396). 393 (32,003
Reciassnﬁcatm adjustments far gams and losses reahzed in net mcome Cfel T U {(154) - (154 -
. Net change during the year - AT ‘ E (32550). . . 393 . . (32,157)
. Net gains and | losses on denvatwe mstrumen‘rs A N B
‘Amount arising. dunng the year \ ~ » . 'V'”.(»Z',jSO‘): Con e ;,‘453 ' a72n o
. Reclassification adjustments for gams and losses reahzed in net mcomé U ee1 S 2y .. - . 659
S Net change durmg the year Yo : ¢ ‘ ‘ (l 519) . 451 -, - (1,068)
s Pensmn liability ad}ustments N e -
" Amount arising during the year : PR SR (9 916) (1,144 0 (11,060)
Reclass:flcatlon adjustments for galns and Iosses reahzed in ne‘t mcome L . 9,953 (2,523) - i . 7,430
" Net change during the year S oo - - (3,667). . (3,630) .
. (34,032) - (2,823) .- . {36,855)
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15. REVENUE .

Revenue from sales of products of the Printing Business Unit,
such as office MFDs, laser printers and inkjet printers, and the
Imaging Business Unit, such as digital cameras, is primarily
recognized upon shipment or delivery, depending upon when
the customer obtains controls of these products.

Revenue from sales of equipment of the Medical Business
Unit and the Industrial and Others Business Unit that are sold .
with customer acceptanice provisions related to their function-
ality, including certain medical equipment such as CT systems
and MRI systems, and lithography equipment such as semicon-
ductor and FPD lithography equipment, is recognized when
the equipment is installed at the customer site and the agreed-
upon specifications are objectively satisfied and confirmed.

Most of Canion’s service revenue is generated from main-
tenance service in the products of the Printing Business Unit
and the Medical Business Unit which is recognized over time.
For the service contracts of the Printing Business Unit, the
customer typically pays a variable amount based on usage, a
stated fixed fee or a stated base fee plus a variable amount
which frequently. include the provision of consumables-as well
as break fixactivities, The majority portion of service revenue
from the products of the Printing Business Unit is recognized
as billed since the invoiced amount directly correlates with the
value to the customer of the underlying performarice obliga-
tion to date. For the service contracts of the Medical Business
Unit, the customer typically pays a stated fixed fee for-the
stand ready maintenanice service and revenue is recognized
ratably over the contract period.

The majority of service arrangements for the products are
executed in combination with related products. Transaction
prices for products and services need to be allocated to each
performance obligation on a relative’standalone seliing price
basis where judgements are required. Canon estimates the
standalone selling price using a range of prices that would:
meet the allocation objective based on all the information
that.is reasonably available including market conditions and
other observable inputs. If transaction prices of the product
or service contracts are not within the acceptable range then
the revenue is subject to allocation based on the estimated

FINANCIAL SECTION CORPORATE DATA.

standalone selhng prices. Canon’ recagmzes the sncremental
costs of obtaining a contract as an expense when related

" . products of the Printing Business Unit are sold.

Revenue from sales of certain industrial equipment which

do not have alternative use and for which Canon has enforce-

able right to payment 1o the customers for the performance -
completed to date is recognized over time with progress
towards completion measured using the cost based input
method as the basis 1o recognize revenue and an estimated
margir. Provisions for estimated losses ort uncompleted con-
tracts are made in.the period in which such losses become evi-
dent. Changes in job performance, job conditions, estimated
margin and final contract seftlerents may resultin revisions-to
projected costs and revenue and are recognized in the period
in which the revisions to estimates are identified and the .
amounts can be reasonably estimated. Factors that may affect.
future project costs and margins include, production efficien-
cies, availability and costs of labor and materials. Thase factors

‘can impact the accuracy of Canon's.estimates and matenaﬂy

impact future reparted revenue and cost of sales. :

The transaction prices that Canon is entitled to receive’in
exchange for transferring goods or servicés 1o the customer
include certain forms of variable consideration, including prod-
uct discounts, customer promotions and volume-based rebateés
mainly for the products of the Imaging Business Unit, which
are sold predominantly through distributors and retailers, *
Canon includes estimated amounts in the transaction price
anly to the extent it is probable that a significant reversal of
cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncer-
tainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved. -
Variable considerations are estimated based upon historical
trends and other known factors at the time of sale, and are
subsequently adjusted in each period based on current infor-
mation. In addition, Canon may provide a right of return on its
products for a short time period after a sale. These rights are
accounted for as variable consideration when determining the
transaction price; and accordingly Canon recognizes revenue
based on the estimated-amount to which Canon expects to be
entitled after considering expected returns.”
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Drsaggregated revenue by trming is as foilews Drsaggregated revenue by busmess umt pmduct and geographrc area are’

o '.descnbed in Nete 2.0

Millions.of yen

B 2021

SaL e oE o tee st ndustrialand Corporateand o ¢
< Printing . .- Imaging .. " Medical . - Others . eliminations Consolidated
. Revenue recogmzed ata pornt ln trme,‘- 1,419,043 646,849 - 329,323 439,914 . (105,126) 2,730,003
 Revende recognized over. time 519,804 - 6,683 - 151,039 - 105828 . — 783354
) Totar R A 1938,847 _ 653,532 450362; . 545,742 (105,126) 3,513,357
;.2020 A N P T T T
Revenue recegnlzed atapomt in timefr:':"21‘,:‘34_1"6,556 © 534,685, 287,849 "i 336,235 - (83,094) 2,392,231 .
Reveriué recognrzed over trme - .487,871 6,629 148225 125287 - — 768012
L Total 1,804,427 . 541,314 436,074 461,522  (83,094) 3,160,243
2019: , P R N
Revenue recogmzed at a'paint in fime 1,520,393 - . 651,629 - 290,702 391,272 = ©(93,180) 2,760,816 -
Revenue recognized overtime’ .. 572,071 10077 147,823 = 102512 .. - -— = 832483
_Total o 2,092,464 . 661,706 438, 525'.* - 493, 784' (93,180) 3,593,299

* Based on the realrgnment m‘ Canons rntema! repumng and management structure from the. begrnnrng of 2021 Canon has changed the name and structure of k,
.. - segments to Printing Business Unit, Imaging Business Unit, Medical Business Unit, and Industria and Others Busmess unit changes in the drsaggregated revenue
. '_ by trmmg and by segment for the f' s:e! year erided December 31, 2020 and 20 9 aiso have been recfassrﬁed Lot 2

4 Revén‘ué recogn ized over t‘ime includes' brimerily revenue
: Vfrom maintenance service'in'the products of the Printing
- "Busrness Unit and the:Medical Businéss Unit and sales of .

. certain equipment of the Industrial and Others Unit which. do
not have alternatrve use and for- whzch Canon has enforceabie

. ‘nght to payment 1o the customers for the performance com- "
pleted o date.” '
-Canon recognizes contract assets prlmaniy for unbrlled :

am ‘recewables mainly afising from servicés contracts for the

products of the Printing Busmess Unit; Centract assets are -
e reclassrfred to trade recervables when they are billed under the
terms of the-contract. The difference between the opening

: 'and closmg balances of contract assets primarily results frem j,

. the timmg difference of Canon s, performance and billing to .
_customers Contract: assets at Decernber 31,2021 and 2020
were ¥44, 722 million and ¥42,752. million, respectlvely.!, and

are included in prepaid expenses and other current assets in -

.:the’ consoirdated balance ‘sheets.’

Canon typi catly brﬂs to the cusmmerx}vhen the performance' :

( .. ‘ob igation is satisfied and cellects the payment in relatwely
- short term except for certain maintenance service of the. prad-
~ucts of the Prrntmg Business Unit and the Medical Buemess

o “Unit and certain industriaf equipment for which Canon

: "j: occasronally receives thie payment in advance from custom-
ers. The amdunt received in excess of fevenue recognized is

recorded as deferred re~renue untsl the performance obligation

for distinct goods or services are satisfied. Deferred revenue " -

CANON ANNUALREPORT 2021 -

. at December 31 2021 and 2020 were ¥132 087 mrllron and

¥135,455 mll]ron, respectwely, and are included in other cur-
rent labi lities and other non-current lrabrhties in the accom=
_panyrng consolidated balance sheets.Reveriue recognized for
.the year ended December 31, 2021, which had been included - -
“in the deferred revenue balance at December 31, 2020, was ‘

" ¥l 12,232 mrlhon

Remaining performance obhgatrons for producrs and equap-

" mentat December 31,2027 prrmanly arise from the salés of -

-certain. mdustnal equipment, ‘amounting 1o ¥1 50,833 million,

' 66% of which is expected to be recognized as revenue within

one year and remaining 34 % is within two years. Disclosure

_ of remaining performance obligations is-not required for the
- - majority of services since the related revenue is recognized

on‘an as billed basis applymg the right to invoice practical

£ ‘expedrem oris, generated from the contratts with original -

-expected duratron of less than one year. The portion of fixed
Vmamtenance service: contract for the products of the Prmtmg
~Business Unit and the’ Medrca! Business Unit wr{h original -

. expected duration of mare than one year is approxrmatety
" 13% of total service revenue and the average remaining -
period for these fixed contracts as of December 31,2021is
" abouttwo years.

Taxes coliected from customers and remrtted to governmen- .- .

. tal authontles are exdudecf frem revenues inthe conscl!dated i

statements of income..
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16. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

OrvApril 28, 2021, based on the approval of the board of
directors, the Company granted stock options to its directors
and executive officers to acquire 43,700 shares.of common
stock. Those ta whom stock acquisition rights are granted {the
“Holder(s)") shall be entitled to exercise all the stock acquisi-
tion rights together within 10 days (in case the last day is not
a business day, the following business day) from after the
date'when they cease to hold any position as a director or an. .

- executive officer of the Company. These option awards have a

30 year exercisable period. The grant-date fair value per share

. of the stock options granted during the year ended December

31, 2021 was ¥2,227.

On May 1, 2020, based on the board of the directors, the
Company granted stock options to its directors and executive
officers {o acquire 88,600 shares of common stock. Those to
whom stock-acquisition rights are granted (the 'Holder(s)")
shall be entitled 1o exercise all the stock acquisition rights
together within 10 days (in case the last day is not a business
day, the following business day) from after the date'when they
cease to hold any position as a director oran executive officer

- FINANCIAL SECTION CORPORATE DATA

~ of the Company. These option awards have a 30 year exercis-

able period. The grant-date fdir value per share of the stock
options granted during the year ended December 31,2020

“was ¥1,459.

On March 25, 2020, based on the board of the dlrectors,

the Company granted stock options to its executive officer

to'acquire 10,300 shares of comimon stock. The Holder shall
be entitled to exercise all the stack acquisition rights together
within 10:days:(in-case-the last day is not a business day, the
following business day) from after the date when they cease
1o hold any position as a director or an executive officer of
the Company. These option awards have a 30 year exercis-
able period. The grant-date fair value per share of the stock
options granted during the year ended December 31 2020
was ¥1,703.

The compensation cost recognized for these stack options
for the years ended December 31, 2021 was ¥97 million and
2020 was ¥1 47 million and 2019 was ¥265 million, and it is
included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the
corlsohdated statements ofi income.

The fair value of the option award was estimated on the date of grant using the Black~Shotes optlon pricing model that incor-

porates the assumptions presented below:

Years ended December 31 i 2020
2 Granted on March 25, Granted.on May 1,
2020 B 2020
Expected term of option (in years) 50 60. - - 60 . -

Expected volatility 24.33% - 20. 32% - 20.92%
Dividend yield 3.04% 6.25% - 6.97%
Risk-free interest rate 0. 10%) (0. 12%) - (O 17%)

A summary-of option activity under the stack optmn p[ans as of and for the years ended December 31,2021,2020 and 2019

is presented below:

Weighted-average

Weighted-
average . femaining - Aggregate
Shares exercise price:  contractual term - intrinsic value
. . Yen Year Millions of yen

Outstanding at January 1, 2019 74,000 - 1 1293 L2227
Granted 116,300. 1 o
Exercised (4,500) 1 cL L
Outstanding at December 31, 2019 . 185,800 - 1 290 . - 555
Granted 98,900 1 ‘ ‘
Exercised (37,100) co 1 ) - '
Outstanding at December 31, 2020 247,600 . - 1 284 324
Granted 43,700 1 L
Exercised (4,800} - 1 ’ .
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 286,500 1 378 - 802
Exercisable at December 31, 2021 286,500 1 278 802

The total fair values of shares vested during the years
ended Decembier 31, 2021 and 2020 were ¥97 million and
¥147 million, respectively, and 2019 was ¥265 million. Cash

recewed from the exercise of stock options for the years ended

December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 were not s:gmflcant
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,17 NET IMCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO CANON INC SHAREHOLDERS PER SHARE

A reconcrhatlon of the numerators and denommators of bas:c and dduted net mcome attnbutabie o Canon Inc. sharehoiders per o
'share computattons is as- follows » : . e .

L Millions.ofyer .

: ‘A'lRisk management pohcy

il i.'Di!uted: E

18. DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

" Carion operates internationally, exposmg it to the nsk of
' 'changes in foreagn currency exchange rates. Derivative finan- -
© . cial instruments are comprised principally of foreign exchange
o contracts utifized by the Company. and certain of jts subszdw
{aries to reduce the risk. Canon assesses forelgn currency .
< exchange rate'risk by contmually monitoring changes in the
o exposures and by evaluating hedging opportunities. Canon -
- .does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for .
- speculatwe purposes ‘Canon is alsa exposed to credit-related
“losses in-the event of non—performance by counterparttes 10

.. derivative financial.instruments, but it.is not expected that any

Foreign currency exchange rate rlsk management
o ‘Canon'’s international operanons expose.Canon to the risk
~of changes in foreign currency. exchange rates. Canon uses

_-foreign exchange contracts to manage certain fcreign cur--

- 'counterparties will fail to meet theu' obligations. Most of the

counterparties are mtematxonaﬂy recogmzed financial msmu-

- - tions and selected by Canon taking inta account their financial
. condition, and: comrads are: dsversnﬁed across a number of
; majcr fmancaa! mstatunons £ F S

‘ ‘frency exchange exposures pnncnpalty from the exchange of

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021. 0 .
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v ';Years ended December 31 B
St F T e TR 5 2021 B S 2020 - 2019
SéSicfmti-'t,inc?;me_éttribtv)t_labig,i‘tq'Ca,n;";h' e 24718 83318 . - 124964
) Dilgjt‘ed'nét,;’ﬁto?pg'aitﬁb;ﬁabte to'Canon Inc, - 214714 ©oe33ns 124,962 -
o : R oo ":,N‘ur'nbezrpfyshéres‘ i :
‘Avefage common shares oufstandlng 1,045,632,588 1,049,802,197 - - !_,QGQ,SSG;':’E?
| Effect delutwe secun’ttes S . L S
stock options LT S s 277,066 229,691 158,173
. Diluted common shares outstanding - © 1,045900,654  1,050,031,888 - 1,070,114,940
. ; . : : v‘fe;i e
B ,vNet mcame attnbutable to Canon inc sharehoiders per share:) T : ' L »
- Basic. T 8 20835 - . 7937 . 11679
20529 . 793 11677

U S dollars and BUFOS mto Japanese yen These contracis are -

o pnmarily used 1o, hedge the foreign currency exposure of fore-
“casted intercompany sales and intercompany trade receivables
" that are denominated in forelgn currencies. In accordance with

Canon’s policy, a specn‘" ic portion of forelgn currency exposure

' rresul’(mg from forecasted intercompany sales are hedged using ..
foreign exchange cnntrads which prinapally mature within
= three months :

Cash flow hedge ' :
~ Changes in the fair value of derwattve fmanc:lal mstruments
-designated as cash flow hedges mc[udmg foresgn exchange
- contracts assoccated with forecasted intercompany sales, -
are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income
.- (loss). These amounts.are subsequently reclassified into earn--
ingsin the samé Period as the hedged items affect earnings.
' Substantially all amounts recorded in accumulated other
’-‘.ccmprehenswe income (ioss) as of December 31,2021 are
* expected to'be recognized in nét sales aver the next twe!ve
“months. Changes in the fair value of a foreign exchange
*.contract for the. per:od between the date that the forecasted
_ _mtercompany ‘sales oceur and 4ts matunty date are recagnized
' _m earnmgs ‘ o
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Derivatives not designated as hedges ' foreign exchange co‘n‘t‘rackts have not been designated as - /

Canon-has entered into certain foreign exchange contracts hedges as required in order to apply hedge accounting, the
to primarily offset the earnings impact related to fluctuations.  contracts are effective from an economic perspective. The
Jinforeign currency exchange rates associated with certain . “changes in the fair value of these contracts are recorded in
assets denominated in foreign currencies. Although. these earnings lmmedlately :

Contract amounts of foreign exchange contracts at December 31 . 2021 and 2020 are set forth below:

Decernber 31 : A ) Millions of yen

o 2021 b © 2020
To sell foreign currencies ‘ ] ' t 169,392 137,721
-To buy foreign currencies i : - 27,453 C o 27,2207

Fair value of derivative instruments in the consoclidated balance sheets
The following tables present Canon’s derivative instruments measured at gross fair value as reflected in the cnnsohdated baiance
sheets at December 31, 2021 and 2020. :

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

December 31 ) ' Millions of yen-,
. Fair value
Balance sheet location 2021 2020
Assets: ' '
Foreign exchange contracts Prepaid expenses and.other current assets .42 426
Liabilities: | ' ' ‘
Foreign exchange contracts Other current liabilities 777 ( 416

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

Decerber 31 » Millions of yen
o ) “Fair value
Balance sheet location. 2021 -2020
Assets: : o - ‘
Foreign exchange contracts . Prepaid expenses and other current assets . 25 o 107 .
Liabilities: / V ‘
Foreign exchange contracts Other current liabilities e Co1342 - o 809
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.. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

;Derlvatlves in cash ﬂow hedgmg relatlonshlps o

Yeam ended December 31 )

o Effect of derlvatwe mstrumenu in the consolldated statements of income o ~
©  The following tables present the effect:of Canon s derivative lnstruments m the ccnsohdated statements of income for the year-s

ended December 31 2021 2020 and 2019

. Millions of yens

- Gain {oss) recagnized . °Gain (loss) rediassified from
Sdnocl - . accumalated OCL into income

. Ameint Location . Amount

202%: Fpreign)gkéhafhé‘é, corifracts - o . : o e . (4,596) Net salésf‘;,/ - (3,285)

2020; Foreign exchange contracts . - % . - . (1731)  ° Netsadles . (3,034) .

| o1 quéigheichange‘c§n¥racts'”'*t"ﬂ;f_,-' @80 Netsdles - (661)

e ACash paxd for amount mcluded in the measurement of Iease llablhtzes s e e =
- ,_:Operatmg cash flows from operatmg leass .. el e o 39,379A .. 36,733

; Nencash actwr:y nghts of use asset_s obtamed in ‘éxchange for lease habﬂmes ) 3 o L ‘

B Operatmg Ieases W : S0 21,588 ¢ 30,700 -

© 84

‘ Fdfgig'n exchange contracts

. Operatmg Iease cashflow S A
s Supp[emental cash ﬂow mformat:on IS asfollows. L

b Derlvatwes not deﬂgnated as hedgmg :nstruments~

*VYearsendedDecembeHI ‘ S e e Mlions of yén

- Gairi (loss) fecognized in income on ‘derivative:

location . 2031 2020 . 2019 .
Other, net  '(6,099).- - 104 - ' 805

B '19 LESSEE ACCOUNTING

N Lease costs are mcluded in cost uf safes ar: selhng general and admlmstratwe expense in accompanymg consohdated statements
B of lncome Supplemental income statement mforrna’ﬂan Is as folfows -

-

YearsandedDecember31 Lot e T Millions of yen

2021 ¢ - . 2020

,"‘Operatmg Iease cos‘-t S wy, - o S 39,699 ¢ 1140'0‘53

Short-term lease cost: o S E o w0 e e 13,961 0 - 14,245

)Otherleasecost I T/ S T RS . SRS .« B

53,731 - 54,418

) qugsendeqpecembe,ﬁ‘l. f o e e R . LELE o M:onnsofyen

, 2021 ST 2020
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STRATHSS CORPGRATE STRUCTURE FINANCl&L SECTION
* Maturity Analysis '

The following is-a schedute by year of the future minimum lease payments under operatmg leases at December 31 2021

Years ending Decernber 31: Millians of yen

2022 32,941

2023 22,512

2024 © 15,226

2025 10,816

2026 7,832

Thereafter 11 ,‘t 92"

Total future minimum lease payments 100,519

Less Imputed Interest '(4,189)
96,330

Remaining lease term and discount rate g

The following is remaining lease term and discount rate under operatmg leases at December 31, 2021 and 2020

December 31 . ‘2021 . 2020,

Weighted-average remaining iease term _ 54 months 56 months

Weighted-average discount rate 21% . . 21%

20. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Commitments

At December 31, 2021, commitments outstanding for-the pur-
chase of property, plant and equipment approximated ¥76,229
million, and commitments cutstanding for the purchase of parts
and raw materials approximated ¥249,909 million.

Guarantees
Canon occuples sales offices and other facilities under lease
arrangements accounted for as operating leases. Deposits
mainly for restoration made under such arrangements aggre-
gated ¥10,812 million and ¥10,962 millien at December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively, and are included in noncurrent
receivables in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
Canon provides guarantees for its employees, affiliates

and other companies. The guarantees for the-employees are -
principally made for their housing loans. The guarantees for
affiliates and other companies are made for their lease obllga-

“tions and bank loans to facilitate financing.

Canon would have to perform under a guarantee if the

borrower defaults on a payrnent within the contract terms. The

contract terms are 1 yeario 15 years in case of employees with
housing loans, and 1 year to 5 years in case of affiliates and-
other companies with lease obligations-and bank loans. The
maximurm amount of undiscounted-payments Canon would
have had to make in the event of default is ¥2,078 million at -
December 31, 2021. The carrying amounts of the liabilities -
recognized for Canon’s obligations as a guarantor under those
guarantees at December 31, 2021 were notsignificant.
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. .NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -~

c Canon also offecs assurance—type Warrantres under whrch it generatly guarantees the performance of products deirvered and’
' services rendered. for a ceértain period or, ‘term: Estimated product warranty casts’‘are recorded at the time fevenue is recognized -

j E g and are ‘included in selling, general and admmrstratwe expenses in the accompanying consohdated staterrients of income.
*“Estimates for accrued product warranty costs'are based on hrstor cal experience. Accrued product warran!y costs are included i in

o xand 2020 are summanzed as follows

Sl Yeam ended December 31

o 'accrued éxpenses in the accompanying consohdated balance sheets and ’che changes for. the years ended December 31,2021

" Millions of yen

jBalance at end of the year ;

« e 2021 - 2020
) Bafance at begmmng of the year ce .+ 14,300 15,846

-~ -Additions SRR 15,687 11,355
-~ Utilization .. -~ (11,928) (10,657)
Other - (1,110)- (2,244)
16.949 ~ 14,300 V

Legal proceedmgs o B e
. Canon is involved in various claims and legal acnons arising -

" inthe ordznary course of business. Canon has recorded pmvr-

.- sions for liabilities when itis probable that liabilities have been -

incurred and the amount: of loss can be’ reasonably estimated.

w7 ;,‘Canon reviews these provisions.at least quarterly and adjusts ©
- these provisions to reflect the impact.of the negonanons i
i settlements rulrngs, adwce of Iegal counsel and cther

§ nl»‘mformatlon and events pertamzng toa partscuiar case, Based

on its experience, although litigation is inherently unpredict-
able, Canon believes that any-damage amounts claimed in.

'outstandmg rnatters are nota meanmgful indicator of Canon’s

. potential habmty in the opinion of management, any reason-
_ ably possible range of losses from outstanding matters would

“ - not have a material adverse effect on Canon’ consolidated
So fmancral posrtron, results‘of operatlons,yand cash flows.

) 21 DISCLOSURES ABOUT THE FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIA!_ INSTRUMENTS AND CONCENTRATIONS OF

CRED!T RlSK

e Fair value of fmanclal mstruments : o : -
iy The estimated fair-values of Canon’s financial tnstruments at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are set forth below The fol Iowmg
-, summary: exc!udes cash-and cash equivalents; trade receivables, noncurrent receivables, short- fefm loans, trade payables and

4 8

_ " accrued expenses, and the fair values of these instruments approximate their carrymg amounts. The summary also excludes

lnvestments and denvanve |nstruments whlch are drsdosed in Note 2 and Note 22 and Note 18, respec’nveiy

- Decembrer 31

- : Millions of yen- . . :
2021 . 2020
Carying “Estimated . Canying , Estimated
L Yy R amount fair value. amount fair value
wng-term debt tndudmg current rnstallments {177, 410) (177 343) (346,317). (346,275)

The foliowmg methods and assump’aons are used to estr- L
g mate the farr value m the above table .

ghy :Long-term debt

. <Canon’s long-term debt |nstruments are ctassrfled as Level 2 :
- instruments and valued based on the present value of future -
+ ~cash flows associated with sach instrument discounted using-
" current rmarket bormwmg rates for s:rmlar debt instrurients ~ ..
o of comparable matunty The Fevels are mcre Fully descrrbed in .

e Note 22.

e
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: anutat:ons of fair value estimates

- Fair value estimates afe made at a specrflc point in time, based

. _on relevant market information and information about the
"+ financial mstruments These estlmates are subjective'in nature

" +.-and involve uncertainties and matters of srgmﬂcan‘c judgment
: ;'and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes

‘,";m assurm ptlons could s:gnlﬂcantly affect the esﬂmates

S Concentrat:ons of credit risk : :
- No'single customer accounted for more than 10 percent of con-

sohdated trade recewables as of Decernber 31 2021 or 2020
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CIFEPORATE DATS,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most
advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. A
three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value is as follows: ;

Level 1= Inputs are guoted prices in active markets for identi-

cal assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs are quoted prices for similar assets or liabili-

tles in active markets, quoted-prices for identical or
similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not
active, inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable, and inputs that are derived principally

Level 3 -

fram or corroborated by observable market data by

correlation or other means.

Inputs are derived from valuation techniques in ‘
which one or more significant inputs or value drivers . -

are unobservable, which reflect the reporting entity's

own assumiptions about the

assumptions that mar-

ket participants would use inestablisking a price.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
The following tables present Canon’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value'on a recumng basis consistent with the

fair value hierarchy at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

1,225 = - -

December:31 Millions of yen
2021
Level 1 Level 2 - level 3 Total
Assets: ' 2
Cash and cash equivalents — 500 0. . — 500
Investments: o
Fund trusts-and others 281 328 : - . 609
Equity securities 28,640 = ' — 28,640
Prepaid expenses and other current assets:
Derivatives — 65 L 65
- Total assets 28,921 893 . B 29,814
Liabilities: '
Other current liabilities: : ,
Derivatives — 2,119 R— 2,119
Total liabilities — 2,119 . —_ 2119
Detember 31 Millions of yen
2020
Level 1 Level 2 : Leval 3 Total
_ Assets: . L. .
Cash and cash equivalents e 500 B 500
Investments: ‘ '
Fund trusts and others 284 248 e 532
Equity securities 18,683 e o 18,683
Prepaid expenses and other current assets: '
Derivatives — 533 o= ‘533, -
Total assets 18,967 1,281 — . 20,248
Liabilities:
Other current liabilities: . :
Derivatives — 1225 - - 1,225
Total liabilities . 1,225
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ™ -

Le\le! 1 lnvestmems are compnsed prmcrpalty 01‘ Japanese

" equity secuntles which are valued using an unadjusted quoted ) -
- interest rates, based on market approach
- frequency of. transactions, Level 2 cash and cash equwaients o
.- are valued based on ‘market approach using qucted pnces for L

_market price in active markets with sufficient volume and -

- identical assets in markits that are not active. ‘

o Denvatwe financial |nstrumems are comprised 1 of forelgn

R exchange contracts Level 2 derivatives are valued using:
‘,fquotes obtalned fmm z:ounterpames or thll’d pames whlch

i ;1,23. SEGMENT lNFORMATION

»/'Canon reports m four segments ‘che anmg Busmess Umt

.'fthe Imaging Business Unit, the Medical Business Unit, and the -

_Industrial and Others Business Unit, which are based on the

N crgamzatlonal structure and information rewewed by Canon's
" managerment to evaluate resuits and allocate resources.

- Based on the realignment of: Canon s internial reparting and
‘ 'management structure; from 2021 Canon has changed the
“‘name and structure of segments fram Office Busmess Unit, .

Ty lmagmg System Busiriess Unit, Medical System Business Umt'
+- and ndustry and Others Business Unit ta. Printing Buisiness

f Unit, Imaging Business Umt, Medical Business Unit, and - -
1ndustnai and Others Business Unit. Major changes include

'movmg lnkjet pnnters frorn lmagmg System Business Unit to 5

“the Printing Business Untt the same busingss unit as Oﬁ‘tce L

L _multlfuncnon dewces (MFDs) and Laser multlfunc’uon pnnt— ‘
= oers (MFPS) and r moving Network cameras from Industry and ca

,' ‘Others Busmess Unit to the Imaging Business Unit, the same -
,_v‘busmess unit as Interchangeable lens digital cameras. Pnor '
‘ .;penod amounts also have heen reclassn‘led %

o ZPrm’tmg Busmess Umt. _ "
. Office multifunction devices (MFDS) / Document soiu’nons /
Laser multifunction printers (MFPS)/ Laser printers/:

o Inkjet: printers / Image scanners / Calculators /

 Digital continuous feed presses / / Dlgltal sheet»fed presses /
' Large format prl nters : , T

. CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

.are penodlcaﬂy valtdated by pricing models using observable

rarket.inputs; stich as forengn currency: exchange rates and

Assets and hablhtles measured at falr value ona .
nonrecurrmg basis

. There were na significant assets or habmtles to be mea5ured
“at fair value on a nonrecurring basxs t:{unng the year ended
; ;.December 31,2021 and 2020 ;

, 'Imaglng Business Umt. :

Interchangeable-lens dlglta[ cameras ! !nterchangeab[e lenses /
Digital compact cameras-/Compact photo printers/. |

" Network: cameras # Video management software /|
Video content analytics software / Digital camcorders /
- Digital cinema cameras/ Broadcast equ:pment/
i Mulnmedra pro;ectcrs o

‘Med lcal Busmess Umt
‘ Ccmputed tomography (CT) systems / :
" - Diagnostic ultrasound systems / Diagnostic X-ray systems /
... Magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) systems /
... Clinicai chemlstry analyzers / Dlgltal radmgraphy systems /
i Oph‘chalmlc equzpment

' lndustrral__and Othe.r_s B.usmessUn_it: o '
- Semiconductor lithagraphy equipment / FPD (Flat panel
<% display) lithagraphy equment/ OLED display manufactunng

equipment / Vacuum thin-film deposztmn equipment / Die.

: ST el T bunders/ Handy term;naisl Document sCanners
The pnmary products mduded m each segment are as follows :

: The accountmg policies of the segments are substantlaily the

‘f sarne as those' described-in the significant accountlng policies in
; Note 1, Cangn eva#uate results and allocate resources for each .-
4 'segmen‘tbbased on income before income taxes,



STRANTEGY

FINANCIAL SECTION .

SORPURATE DATA

Information about operating results and assets for sach segment as of and for the years ended December 31 2021, 12020 and

2019 s as follows:
Millions of yen
. industrial and Corporate and e
Printing Imaging Medical Others " eliminations. **~ "Consolidated
2021: ' L

Net sales; .. . vt oy
External customers 1,934,012 651,494 480,029 449,915 (2,093) 3,513,357 .
Intersegment . 4,835 2,038 333 95,827 (103,033) o=

Total 1,938,847 653,532 480,362 . 545,742 {105,126) 3,513,357

Operating cost and expenses 1,713,154 574,814 450,942 501,434 {8,905)- - 3,231,439

Operating brofit 225,693 78,718 . 29,420 44,308 {96,221) 281,918

Other income (deductions) 7,259 (256) 4,876 . 342 8,567 - 20,788

Income before income taxes 232,952 78,462 34,296 44,650 {87,654) 302,706

Total assets 1,009,922 236,143 311,247 345,883 2,847,693 4,750,888

Depreciation and amortization - 69,549 21,840 12,435 27,677 89,745 - 221,246

Capital expenditures 63,609 12,069 11,888 25,759 65,675 179,000

2020:

Net sales: . ) S
External customers 1,800,898 539,560 435,368 385,177 {760) . 3,160,243
Intersegment - 3,529 1,754 .. 706 76,345 '(82,334) R

Total 1,804,427 541,314 436,074 461,522 (83,094) - 3,160,243

Operating cost and expenses 1,657,319 . 535,584 410,830 441,006 4,957 3,049,696

Operating profit 147,108 5,730 - 25,244 20,516 (88,051) 110,547 -

Other income (deductions) 5,076 (778) 300 1,171 13,964 ‘ 19,733

Income before income taxes 152,184 4,952 25,544 21,687 (74,087) 130,280

Total assets 913,931 239,605 286,749 348,614 2,836,715 4,625,614

Depreciation and amortization - 69,725 22,201 11,781 28,720 - 95,398 227,825 .

Capital expenditures 56,613 12,540 7,244 L 21,276 64,054 C61,727

2019:

Net sales: . ) ) ‘ ,
External customers 2,089,024 - 560,105 . 437,456 405,114 (1,600 3,593,299
Intersegment 3,440 1,601 1,069 88,670 (94,780 = —

Total 2,092,464 661,706 438,525 493,784 (93,180) } 3,593,299

Operating cost and expenses™ 1,908,436 634,773 411,781 465,197 (1,308) 3,418,879

Operating profit 184,028 26,933 . 26,744 28,587 . (91,872) 174,420

Other income (deductions) 6,066 905 . 539 . —_ 13,563 21,073

Income before income taxes 190,094 27,838 27,283  ’ 28,587 (78,369) 185,493

Total assets 1,002,778 288,545 273,525 310,110 - 2,896,960 4,771,918

Depreciation and amortization 74,958 24,561 11,760 129,08 - 96,962 237,327

Capital expenditures 61,789 18,929 7,074 28436 9&00@ " 214,228

* During 2018, the Company implemented a restructunng plan centered in Europe with the gosl of recrganizing sales structure and improving profitability
mainly in the Printing Business Unit. The employee severance charges in the Printing Business Unit under the plan for the year ended December 31, 2019
were ¥15,656 million and most: of the charges are included in selling, genaral and administrative expenses in the cnnsohdated statements of income. The
restructuring charges for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were not significant. o
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“NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS *

!ntersegment sales are reccrded at the same’ pnces used m'( i Corporatlon) are al 50 mcluded in corporate expenses

. fransactions w;th third: pames ‘Expenses not directly associ- vSegment assets are based on those directly associated with
- ated with Spemﬂc segments are allocated based on the most - -gach segment: Corporate assets primarily consist of cash and

reasonable meastres. apphcable ‘Corporate’ expenses mdude -+~ cash equivalents, investments; deferred tax assets, goadwill,

"o/ certain corporate fesearch and development expenses. - . identified intangible assets from. acquisitions and corporate

: "Amartlzatton cc:s’ts of Identlfled mtang:bie assets result= - propemes Capital expenditures represent the additions to

“.ing from the purchase price allocation of Toshiba Medlca! T property, fant and equnpment and-intangi b!e asse‘cs mea-
.”Systems Corpora’aon (currently, Canon Medlca! Sys“tems ', E ’ sured onan accrual basns '

knformatron about sales by preduct and semce to extemal customers for each segment for the years ended December 31,

' 2021,2020 and 201915 as follows

"Yearsendedbecemberm REY - LT T ilions of yen
3 : ' o Len 2021 . 2020 . 2019
Prmtng R N A B A A
- Office. multlfunctlon dewces S e T o 477,000 . 455357 ¢ 573,297
Offlceothers L e Tiage 366 267423 . ¢ 292,378
o Office 00 et e o - 756,366 0 722,480 - 865,675
Claserprnters oo bE0459 0 502,157 . 624,597
" Inkjet printers and Others . . .~ - o ... 3380933 326,041 . - 296,622
S S Prosumer .. o o T f.teoT s o 889,081 . . 828,198 921,219
___Production - B RN T .. 288,555 250,220 302,130
ol R el e T e ;71;934.0112‘ | 1,800,898 . = 2,089,024
Cameras Cornete el e e T mges e UT240 466,306,
-~ Network cameras and Others R T e TS "‘218 609 192,320 - 193,799
Sotal <L . et o TRl T 651,484 - .. -539,560 660,105
Medlcal ' e Ty e EE el Ta e e e 2L e R : .

Diagnostic equipment” -~ oo 480.0295_,' 435368 . 437,456

‘ Industnal and Others

thographyeqmpmeht kA R L 213,699_3' » 142516 . - 157,160
lndustnaleqmpment Celote o s T 112,014 126,762 -+ 107,281

. Others R S oo 0123942 0 115899 140,673

,.—Total Lo So e L aA8915 . . 385177 - . 405,114

"ltbr‘porate‘ L e e (2,008) . - (760) 7 - 1,600

' ',Conséli‘datéd”[ cooso LT sl oot 0 3843,387 0 3,160,243 - 3,593,299

90

. 'CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Based on the reahgnment m‘ Canon S mterna! Peportmg and “ware, Video content analytics software, Digital camcorders,

_management structure, from the beginning of 2021, Canon = Digital cinema cameras, Broadcast equipment and Multimedia .
* - has'changed products category. Produiction includes Di gxta! pro;ectors in the primary products. industrial equipment

contmuous feed presses, Dlgital sheet-fed presses and {arge = .mcludes OLED drsplay manufacturing equipment; Vacuum

= ,;-format prmters in'the. pnmary products Ne‘rwork cameras and . thin-film depdsition’ equspment and Die bonders.in the primary
- Others mclude Network cameras Vldeo management soft- 8 j_L j products Pnor penod amcunts also have been mclassmed




BUSIMESS SEGMENT

s
STRATEGY CHRPGRATE STRUCTURE

FINANCIAL SECTION CORFORATE DATA’

information by major geographxc area as of and for the years ended December 31, 2021 2020 and 2019 s as follnws .

. - Millions of yeri - .
2021 - 2020 . .. 2019,
Net sales: . : A o :
Japan 830,378 806,305 872,534
Americas 968,839 - 852,451 11,029,078
Europe - 894,898 . 795,616 882,480
Asia and Oceania ~ 818,242 705,871 809,207
Total 3,513,357 3,160,243 3,593,299
Long-lived assets: - oo
Japan 986,638 - 1,011,109 11,053,074
Americas 152,137 133,648 148,669
Europe 158,297 175,516 191,050
Asia and Oceania 141,915 143,265 159 217
Total 1,438,987 1,463, 538 1,552, 010

Net sales are atiributed 1o areas based on the location
where the products are shipped and the services are per-

formed to the customers. Other than in Japan and the United

States, Canon does not conduct business in any individual
country inwhich its sales in that country exceed 10% of
consolidated net sales. Net sales in the United States were

24. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On January 5, 2022, Canon borrowed ¥70,000 million
under-its existing overdraft facilities with Mizuho Bank,.
Ltd. and MUFG Bank, Ltd. for required operating funds.

Additionally, on March 16, 2022, Canon borrowed ¥30,000

¥907.908 m;lhon ¥801:376 miltion and ¥958,442 mxﬂ:on

. for the years ended December 31, 2021 2020 and 2{)19

respectively.

Long-lived assets represent property, plant and eqmpment
intangible assets, and operating lease right- -of-use assets for
each geographic area.

million under its existing overdraft facilities with Mizuho
Bank, Ltd. and MUFG Bank,. Ltd. for reqmred operating

funds. The overdraft facilities bear mterest at arate equal to

a base rate plus a spread.

SCHEDULE Il VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Years ended December 31

illions of yen-

Balance at beginning  Addition-charged - Deduction bad debts

- Translation Balance atend

of period to ncome writtenoff adjustments andother - of period -
2021: ' ‘

Allowance for credit losses o )

Trade receivables 7 11,645 1,857 {1,540) .. 532 L }2;494
Finance receivables 3,068 2,331 {2,157) 548 . 3,791
2020: ‘

Allowance for credit losses . .
Trade receivables 10,359 3,419 {1,983} (150) - 11,645
Finance receivables 2,627 2,351 2,199y . 289 . - 3,068

2019: ) o ' :

Allowance for credit losses L . :
Trade receivables ‘ 11477 1,840 (2,189) 769y 10,359
Finance receivables 2,675 1,495 {1 ,653)

110 . -2,627
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f,’lj‘MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON o
’,‘,«INTERNAL conmcc oven F!NANCIAL REPORTING

The management ot Canon is responsrble for establrshmg and mamtammg adequate ntemal control over fmam:sat reporting.
“Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). promulgated under the Exchange Act, as a pro-
o Cess desrgned by,.or under the supervision of, the company's prmcapai executive and prificipal financial officers and effected by -
o the companys board of d;rectors management and other personnel, to. provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
‘tmanczal reporting and the preparatton ‘of financial staterents for éxternal purposes in accordance. with U.S. generally accepted

accountmg pringi iples and includes’ those pohcres and procedures that (1) pertain to the mamtenance of records that in reason-
able detail accuratety and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of Canon; (2) provide reasonable assur-

o | ance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of fi nanc:ai statéments in accardance with U.S. generally

" accepted accounting pnncrples, and that receipts and expenditures of Canon are belng made only in accordance with authoriza-

o tions of management and directors of Canon; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of »

E unauthcr zed acqunsetlon use or dlsposxtlon of Canon'’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

‘Because there are inherent hmltations to the etfactweness of any system of disclosure controls and procedures mdudmg the pos-
- sibility of human error and the circumvention or overndmg of the controls and procedures, internal control‘over financial reporting
" is not intended to provide ahsolute assurance that a mtsstatement of our financial statements would be prevented or detected.
a Accordmgly, even effective disclosure: controls and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control
* objectives. Projections of any evaluation of effectweness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inad- -
, \equate because of chan gesin condmens ot that the degree of ccamplrance with the pohcres or procediires may deteriorate.

* 'Canon’ s management asseSsed the effectrveness of internal comrel over fmancca! repertmg asof December 31,2021. In mak- -

ing this assessment, management used the ¢riteria established in Internal Control—lmegrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Commrttee of Sponsorlng Organlzatlons of the Treadway Commission ("COSO") : :

Sased on its assessment management conduded that as of December 31 2021 Canons rnternal control over f nancaal report-

- ing was effectwe 4 : : A
. Canons mdependent registered publrc accountmg ﬂrm, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC has rssued an audrt report on the eﬁec«
’ trveness of Canon's mternal control over, fmancnal reportrng Thls report appears in ltem 18 : o
i Remedlauon of Prevrously Reported Matenal Weaknesses in lnternal Control over Fmanclal Reportmg _
“As descnbed in Canon S previous Annual Report on Form 20~F Canon S management concluded that Canon‘s internal control

over financial repomng was not effectwe as-of December 31, 2020, due to identified deficiencies in the risk assessment and con- .
trol activities principles. associated with the COSO framework, which, erther mdwuduaﬂy ofin the aggregate, constituted mate-,

.rial weaknesses relatmg to 0} ldentifylng and analyzmg srgmﬁcant changes that could 1mpact the system of lntemai controi and

contnbutmg to the material weaknesses described above included the taalure 1o generate or mamtam sufficient evadence support-
. ing Canon’s.consideration of the srgnn‘ucant thanges and the impact on. !tS mternal controls over financial repomng

‘ ‘Dunng the. year ended December 31,2021, management implemented, measures to remedlate the identified defrc::encnes iriclud-

B ing generation and maintenahce of. suft:cnent evidence to support Canon’s: corisideration of significant changes and the |mpact of
such changes’ on its system of intemal control and controf activities, The folluwmg remediation steps were cnrnpleted

. Improved ‘open.and- tomely commumcatrons within the organlzatron wuth established policies and procedures, in writing; to facﬂrtafe )

. and mamtam the ldentrﬁcatron of sugnn‘rcant changes that could rmpact Canon% system of internal control and tontro! activities
. Strengthened controls and documentatron around managements review of accountmg posmons and treatment ‘
i lmplemented controls and. documentatrcn around’ managements rewew of the basis’ appited for transactuons 1o be cons;dered .

matertal tothe ﬁnanc:al statements i ina txmely rmarnrier.

h : ;As a resuit of these efforts Canons management concluded that: the matenat weaknesses had been remedlated as of December
.31, 2021 s : i

. Executwe Vice Prestdent & CFO

o ;iMamh 30,202
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCGUNTING FIRM

e O'tte“ : * Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC. .
: W Marunotchi Nijubashi Buiiding
3-2-3 Marunouchi; Chivoda-ku -
Tokyo 100-8360
Japan,

Tl +81(3)6213 1000
. Fax:+81(3)62131005
www.deloltte.com/jpfen . -

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of
Canon inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Canon Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”} as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020; the related consolidated statements of income, comprehernisive income, equity, and cash flows, -
for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes and the schedule listed in the Index
at Item 18 (collectively referred to as the “financial stateéments”). frrour opinion, the financial staternents present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations

“and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2021, in conformity wrth accounting pnnmples

generally accepted in the United States of Amerzca

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Pubhc Company Accounting Overmght Board (Unlted States) |
(PCAOBY), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established

in Internal Contral — Integrated Framework {2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway ™
Commission and otr'report dated March 30, 2022, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control over -
financial reporting. : o

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Durﬁrésponsibilrity is to express ah opinion on
the Company’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm fegistered with the PCAOB and are
required to be indepgendent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal secunt&es faws and the apphcab!e
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Comrnission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits inaccordance with the standards of the PCADB. Those standards require that we plan and perform :
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether *
due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to thoose risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test biasis, evidehce regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statemants. Our audits also mcluded
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluati ing the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits prowde a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current-period audit of the ﬁnar{cial sta’fements
that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) refate to accounts or disclosures
that are material to thefinancial statements and (2) involved our espedially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The

communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and

we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate oplmons on the critical audit matters or on the
accounts or disclosures to which they relate. .

' CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021 -
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REPGRT OF lNDEF‘ENQENT REGlSTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNT]NG FIRM

' ’Goocfwntl——Medical Reportmg Umt-«Refer to Notes 7 and B to the Financial Statements

_ Critical Aud!f Matter Descnptmn o e T e e o

The Company tests gooclwﬂl for lmpalrmen‘c annually in the foun:h quaner of each year, or more l"requently |f mdlcators of
- potentlal impairment exist. Fair value of a reporting unit is- determined pnmanly based on the discounted cash flow analysis,

" which involves estimates of projected future cash flows and dfscoun‘c rates. The Company’ total consolidated goodwill was
- ¥953,850'million as of Decembeér 31, 2021, of’ which ¥537 183 mallmn was allocated tothe Medlcal Reporting Unit. Estimates of

pmjected future cash flows for the Meducal Reporting Unit are based ona mld-term management plan that considered the future

rnarket growth of medvca equnpment and growth in geographles where the Company operates its medical busingss. Esnmates o
...of discount rates are-determined: based ‘on the weighted average cost of capital, whlch considers primarily market and industry -
-+ data as well as spec:ﬁc risk factors. Wnth regard to the goodwill attributed to the Medical Reporting Unit, fairvalue in excess of

reported carrying value'asa percentage is lower than other reportang unns As a result a futme reductlon |n cash flows of the
Medical Reportlng Unxt could tngger an impairment X s ‘ :

- leen the s:gmflcant Judgmen’rs made by management o estnmate the falr value of the Mecllcal Repomng Unat performmg audit .-

- procedures to evaluate the reasonableness of managements estimates and assumpnnns related to the projected future cash-~
.. flows and selection of the discount rate requn'ed a hlgh degree of audm:r Judgmem and an mcreased extent of effort, mcludmg
" the need to mvolve falr value 5pec1al:sts : .

N  How. the Cntical Audlt Matter Was Addressed in the Aud;t ./‘j

-Our audlt procedures related to the pro;ected future cash flows and selectson of the dlscount fate used by management to

estlmate the falr value of the Medtcal Repomng Unit rncluded the follawmg, among others ,

c e We tested the effectweness of controls over management‘s goodmll lmpalrment evaluatlon mcludmg managements contrals -

over pro;ectecl future cash ﬂows and selectlon of the discount rate.

eWe evaluated managements ablllty to accurately project future cash flows by com panng actual results to managements -

“historical pro;ectlons . R R T L

B We evalua‘{ed the reasonableness of management’s pro;ected future cash flaws by companng the pro;ectlons to!

o

‘ -—Hlstoncal cash flcws ;

' -—lnternal commumcanons to management and the anrd of Dzrectcrs

S f_—ProJected mformatlon mcluded in Cumpany press releases as well as |n analyst and mciustry reports fcr the Company and

cerl:am of its peer cc;mpames R . L ‘ - ) ) )
Wrth the assnstance of our falr value specuallsts we: evaluated the reasonableness of the val uation rnethodology and dlscount
.‘-_rate by : AR : X i : : <

' mExamlnlng whe’ther the methodnlogy, assumptlons and models usecl were consistent wnh exrstmg valuatlon practlces that
. -are both generally accepted in practice ; and recogmzed as appropnale in s;mllar c:rcumstances and testmg the use and
: welghtmg uf valuation techmques ; S S no ;

B . ~—Test|ng the' source mformatlon underlylng the determlnatfon of the dlscount rate and the mathematlcal accuracy of the

ca culatlan

B ;-—Developmg a range m‘ mdepen dent estimates and companng those to the dlscount rate selected by rnanagement
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Revenue—Long-Term Contracts in the Industrial and Others Segment—kefer to Note 75 to the Financial Statements

Critical Audit Matter Descrfp tion

The Company recognized revenue on long-term contracts of certain mdustnal equipment in the Industrial and Others segment
totaling ¥105,828 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The Company recognized revenue over the contract term .
(“over time") for long-term contracts of certain industrial equipment for which there is no alternative use and for which the -
Company has an.enforceable right to-payment from customers for performance completed to date The Company considers
costs incurred and future project costs in accordance with the input method to'determine progress, and as such, revenue is ;
recognized over time based on costs incurred to date plus the estimate of margins at completion. Changes in job performance,
job conditions, estimated margin and final contract settlements may result in revisions to projected costs and revenue and are
recognized in-the period in which the revisions to estimates are identified and the amounts can be reasonably estimated. Factors
that may affect future project costs and margins include production efficiencies and avaliabmty and costs of labor and materials.

Given the judgments necessary to estimate future project costs and the margins at completion of certain lcmg-term contracts
for certain industrial equipment in the Industrial and Others segment, auditing these estimates for certain contracts required
extensive audit effort and a high degree of auditor 1udgment

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the estimates of future costs and the margins at ccmp[etmn tor certain long—tevm contracts of :
industrial equipment in the Industrial and Others segment included the following, among others:

* We tested the effectiveness.of contrals over long-term contract revenue recogmzed over t;me, including management's
controls over the estimates of future costs and the margins at completion for certain long-term contracts.

» We evaluated managemaent’s ability to estimate future costs-and margins at completion accurately by comparing actual costs ‘

and margins at completion for similar contracts that were previously completed to management s historical estsmates for -
such contracts, :

* We evaluated the reasonableness of management’s estimates of future costs and margins at completfon by comparing the
estimates to management’s work plans, engineering specifications, meeting minutes and fee proposals and hy perfnrmmg
corroborating inquiries with management, project managers, and engmeers, among others. .

» We selected samples from actual costs incurred subsequent to December 31, 2021 and traced them to the future costs
estimate schedule to determine whether the selected cost was properly conmdered in the future costs.

De /b;‘{‘-rg, Tocncdre %‘)M&TI-»] ‘l;b(,

March 30, 2022

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2020.
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' Tegulations of the Securities ang Ex&héﬁge Commission and the PCACB

o Control — Integratecs Framework (2013) Ssed by coso. e
" We have also auditeq, iﬁ'atcordaricé Wlth the standards of the Public Company’
" (PCAOB, § he conspﬁdated_ financial Statements as of angy for the yvear endeg December 31 #2021, of the Company and oyr

Marunﬁuchi‘Nijubashi_Buitding
. 323 Marunouchi, Chiyoda i,

* Tokyo 100-8367 .
Japan,

D e O'ttE% S C e B Defa;&é?ouchérbﬁmatshLLc

Tel: 481 (36213 000
Fax: +81 (36213 1095 -~
»mw.deﬁoitre.mm/jp/en

Sponsorifg Orﬁganiéation:s of tha Treadway Commission {€O30). In pyr apinion, tha Company Maintained, in 4 material

- TESpects, effactive intgrry) ton"crr'gi‘over_ﬁnahé:ial reporting as df'Dééembey 31, 2'021,v‘based, Or-Critefia establisheq in Internaf

Accounting Oversight Boarg (United Statps). -

report déchd March‘BQ,v 2022, expressed an unquafifi

ed opinion or ‘tﬁosevﬁnandaf.statémenﬁ. -

| Basis for “Oﬁi‘p‘iqn '

: ~'We conducted our g&dit in écrfo.rdéntéiwith the standargs cf'tﬁe'P(fAéB._ Those standéy'rds‘require that we plan and pe#crrﬁ

 the audit t6 obtain reasohabié‘assur;ance about whether effective internal control aver financia reporting was maintairied in a1t

matéiial reﬁsprects:'(f)ur'aydit inchided abtaining an understanding of ‘interﬁ‘af cbntfol over financial feporting, assessing the risk

9

that a materiaf Weakness Xists; testing gng évaiuaﬁng the design and Operating effezftévenes’;'of internal controf based on tha

i assessed risk and performing such other er'Qedu‘r‘ers as we ‘conss’deired; necessary in the drcumstances, e believe that oyr audit -

Provides a feasortabla basis for oyp Opinion. .
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Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is-a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that |

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the

company are being made only in accordance with authorizations.of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthonzed acquisition, use, or dlspcsmon of the companys :

assets that could have a material effect on the finandial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting méy noi» prevént'or detgd: misstatements. Alﬁo,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. i
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TRANSFER AND
REGISTRAR’S OFFICE

Canon Inc. i
30-2, Shimomaruko 3-chome, Ohta-ku, Tokyo 146-8501, Japan

Manager of the Register of Shareholders

Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.
1-3-3, Marunouchi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8241, Japan

Depositary and Agent with Respect to American
Depositary Receipts for Common Shares

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
383 Madison Avenue, Floor 11, New York, NY 10179, USA

MAJOR CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

{As of Dacember 31, 2021)

Manufacturing

Cénon Precision Inc.

Canon Tokki Corporation

Fukushima Canon Inc,

Canon Medical Systems Corporation
Canon Electron Tubes & Devices Co., Ltd.
Canon Components, Inc.

Canon Semiconductor Equipment Inc
Canon Chemicals Inc.

Canon Electronics Inc,

Canon Finetech Nisca Inc.

Canon ANELVA Corporation

Nagahama Canon Inc.

Canon Machinery Inc.

Oita Canon Materials Inc.

Oita Canon Inc.

Nagasaki Canon Inc.

Miyazaki Canon Inc.

Canon Virginia, Inc.

Canon Bretagne S.AS.

Canon Production Printing Netherlands B.V.
Canon Production Printing Germany GmbH & Co.KG
Axis Communications AB

Canon Dalian Businass Machines, Inc.
Canon (Suzhou) Inc.

Canon Zhongshan Business Machines Co., ktd.
Canon Inc., Taiwan

Canon Vietnam Co., Ltd.

Canon Hi-Tech (Thailand) Ltd.

Canon Prachinburi {Thailand) Ltd.

Canon Business Machines (Philippines), inc.
Canon Opto (Malaysia} Sdn. Bhd.

Canon Medical ‘Systems Manufacturing Asia Sdn. Bhd.
Canon-Machinery (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd,

SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION -

Stock Exchange Listings: '

Tokyo, Nagoya, Fukuaka Sappcaro and New York
stock exchanges

American Depositary Recelpts are traded on the New York
Stock Exchange (CAJ)

"Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
March of each year S

7 Fur’ther Information:

For publications or information, pléaséjcqntact the
Public Affairs Headquarters, Canon Inc., Tokyo,
or access Canon's Website at global.canon/en

Research & Development
Canon Research Centre France 5.A.S.

Marketing & Other

Canon Marketing Japan Inc.
Canon System and Support Iric.
Canon IT Solutions inc.

Canon Medical Finance Co., Ltd
Canon US.A, Inc

Canon. Canada Inc.

Canon Solutions America, Inc.
Canon Financial Services, Inc,
Canon Medical Systems USA, lnc
Axis AB.

Canon Europa N.V-

Canan Europe Lid.

Canon Ru LLC .

Canon (UK) Ltd.

Canon Deutschland GmbH

.Canon (Schweiz) AG

Canon Nederland N.V.

Canon France 5.AS.

Canon Middle East FZ-LLC
Canon lialia $,p.A..

Canon Medical Systems Europe B. V.

. Milestone Systems A/S

Canon (China) Co., Ltd.

Canon Hongkong Co Ltd, -

Canon Semiconductor Equipment Taawan inc o
Canon Singapore Pte. Lid. ‘ :
Canon India Pvt. Lid,

. Canon Australia Pty. Ltd.
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